
Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
Directorate 

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  Botchergate  Carlisle 
Cumbria  CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 606060  Email 

democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

 

  

 

 
To:   The Chair and Members of the Scrutiny 

Management Board 
 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 
A meeting of the Scrutiny Management Board will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Thursday, 8 September 2022 

 Time: 10.00 am 

 Place: County Offices Kendal 

 

 
NB A PRE-MEETING OF THE BOARD WILL BE HELD AT 9.30 AM IN COUNTY 

OFFICES, KENDAL TO WHICH ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO 
ATTEND 

 
 

 
Catherine Parkinson 
Interim Chief Legal Officer and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Lorraine Davis 
Direct Line: 07929 164805 
Email: lorraine.davis@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 



MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Conservative Members (6) 
 
Mrs HF Carrick 
Mr P Dew 
Mr K Hitchen 
Mr J Lister 
Mr CP Turner 
Mr WJ Wearing (Chairman) 
 

Labour Members (5) 
 
Mr KR Hamilton 
Mr M Hawkins 
Ms C McCarron-Holmes 
Mr W McEwan 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 

 
Liberal Democrat Members (3) 
 
Mr SB Collins 
Mrs S Evans 
Mr N Hughes 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk  
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 
   
 
2   MEMBERSHIP 

 
To report any changes to the membership of the Board. 
   
 
3   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 

 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

 
(b) Which has not been fully discharged.  

 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 

 



7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
the authority; and 

 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
   
 
4   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda. 
   
 
5   MINUTES 

 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 13 June 
2022 (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
6   CALL-IN ITEMS 

 
For members to be informed of any call-in items received by the County Council and to 
consider whether any further action needs to be taken by the Board. 
   
 
7   REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORK AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

 
To consider a report by the Assistant Director – Customer and Community Services 
(copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 13 - 100) 
 
 
 



8   SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE 
 

To receive updates from the Chair of each of the following:- 
 
Scrutiny Panel - Children and Young People                    Mr P Dew 
Scrutiny Panel - Communities and Place  Mr S Collins 
Cumbria LEP Scrutiny Mr W Wearing 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee                                 Ms C McCarron Holmes 
Scrutiny Panel - Adults  Mr M Wilson 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Mr W McEwan 
  (Pages 101 - 114) 
 
9   SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK 

PROGRAMME 
 

To receive a report from the Senior Manager – Policy and Scrutiny (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 115 - 136) 
 
10   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will take place on 28 November 2022 at 10 
am at County Offices, Kendal. 
   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Scrutiny Management Board held on Monday, 13 June 
2022 at 10.00 am at County Offices, Kendal 
 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Mr WJ Wearing (Chairman) 
 

Mr SB Collins 
Mr P Dew 
Mrs S Evans 
Mr KR Hamilton 
Mr K Hitchen 
 

Mr N Hughes 
Mr J Lister 
Ms C McCarron-Holmes 
Mr CP Turner 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
 

 
Also in Attendance:- 
 
Ms H Blake - Senior Manager - Customer, Policy and Scrutiny 
Mrs L Davis - Democratic Services Officer 
Mr R Foster - Libraries and Archives Manager 
Mr S Higgins - Assistant Director - Customer and Community Services 
Ms C Killeen - Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager 
Mr J Metcalfe - Chief Executive 
Dr D Roberts - Executive Director - Corporate, Customer and 

Community Services 
 

  
PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 

PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 
The Chair welcomed and introduced the Chief Executive who attended the meeting 
to give an update and outline his thoughts on his role for the next 8-9 months. 
 
The Chief Executive gave a brief overview of priorities since his appointment 
including meeting staff, looking at the Council’s objectives and achievements, the 
Corporate Plan and LGR reorganisation.  Focus was also being given to the 
Children Looked After service, the Fire and Rescue Service during their period of 
change and the future Ofsted inspection.  In discussion of the LGR process, the 
Chief Executive discussed staff engagement and was hopeful for a relatively 
seamless transition.  Staff were encouraged to think years in advance and not just 
focus on vesting day on 1 April 2023.  
 
A member questioned the seamless transition as it was the end of the County 
Council.  Another member questioned whether there had been engagement with 
residents.  The Chief Executive said meetings had been arranged with a number of 
voluntary, community and business sectors.  It was acknowledged that there were a 

7

Agenda Item 5



 

 

lot of unknowns in the LGR process but work was taking place, within the tight 
deadlines, to ensure a smooth transition. 
 
The Chair thanked the Chief Executive for his attendance and informed the Board 
that members of the Shadow Authorities had been and would continue to be invited 
to observe the Board meetings. 
 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr M Hawkins, Mr W McEwan and Mrs H 
Carrick. 
  
 
2 MEMBERSHIP 
 
There were no changes to membership of the Board to note. 
 
3 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 
4 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of any item on the agenda. 
 
5 MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2022 be agreed as a 

true record of the meeting. 
 
Further to Minute 57, the Local Member for Eden Lakes raised a question with the 
Chair of the Communities and Place Board on the HIAMs system and the difficulties 
in identifying locations from rural postcodes.  The Chair of the Board advised that 
other tracking systems, such as “What three words”, were now used. 
 
6 CALL-IN ITEMS 
 
The Chair advised that there were no call-in items for the Board to consider. 
 
7 CUSTOMER SERVICES - TRANSFORMATION OF LIBRARIES 
 
The Chair thanked the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community 
Service for all her hard work and dedication given to Scrutiny, whilst wishing her well 
in her new post as Chief Executive of Dumfries and Galloway Council. 
 
Members received a report and presentation that provided an update on the 
transformation of the library service since late 2019, that had included a full 
restructure of the workforce, improvements to a number of buildings, the 

8



 

 

introduction of new technology system, and a refreshed focus on council priorities. 
The report also touched upon libraries in, during and after the pandemic. 
 
The Senior Manager - Customer, Policy and Scrutiny outlined the transformation 
journey from 2019 to 2022, the current focus and future challenges and 
opportunities.  Members noted that the full restructure of the workforce which had 
led to the recruitment of 70 plus replacement staff, the digital system introduced to 
improve customer service and the partnership working that was taking place with 
other council services and other partners to enhance services.  Members were 
informed of the next focus for the service and the options that had been developed 
for Local Government Reform (LGR). 
 
Members asked about the provision for children.  The Senior Manager highlighted, 
amongst other provision, the existence of the school library service and summer 
reading challenge.  Staff provision at smaller branch libraries was mentioned.  
Members discussed the need for physical books in addition to electronic versions.  
A discussion around partnership working that was taking place in libraries was held 
and an explanation of the proposed Intellectual Property Centres in Barrow and 
Carlisle was given by the Senior Manager.  In answer to a member’s question, the 
Library and Customer Manager outlined the proactive support and provision in place 
for inclusivity.  The Local Member for Risedale commended the library and archive 
service at Barrow.  A member asked about changing places toilets and it was 
confirmed that these were in place in Carlisle and Barrow.  Officers were asked to 
consider installation of these in future building transformations.   A member 
requested further details in future reports so that these could be circulated to groups 
and residents.  It was confirmed that free wifi and quiet spaces were still available in 
libraries.  The impact on libraries and other services of reductions in bus services 
was discussed.   
 
The effect of the pandemic and the closure and reopening of libraries and facilities 
such as toilets were discussed.  The officers confirmed that all libraries were back to 
their normal operating hours and facilities were available for public use.  A member 
suggested celebration of this and it was noted that 70 plus members of staff were 
being appointed (to fill posts vacant after the restructure) to meet demand.  The 
officers continued to outline joint working with the Council’s property team to 
improve buildings/facilities and investments that had been made in digital services 
to enhance customer service.   A member asked whether the public had been 
consulted in order to ensure a responsive service.  Members noted that a customer 
survey had been undertaken at the beginning of the pandemic and regular meetings 
took place with different groups to help shape the service.  It was agreed that a 
briefing note on customer engagement and feedback be made available for the next 
meeting of the Board.  
 
In discussion of LGR, members noted the various options that were being 
developed – separate, hosted or hybrid service.  Members were informed that a 
decision on the blueprint for the service would be made by the Shadow Authorities.  
Members questioned, if the service was separated, would residents be able to use 
the other authority’s services.  The use of Borrowbox, a digital book borrowing 
service, was mentioned and members were informed that if the library service did 
split, two subscriptions for this service would be needed.  Members hoped that there 

9



 

 

would be no future library closures and recognised the importance of central 
locations, close to other facilities.  The Chair reiterated the invitation sent to the 
Shadow Authority members to observe the Board’s meetings. 
 
The officers were thanked for their attendance and very informative presentation. 
 
RESOLVED, that 
 

(1) the report be noted; 
 

(2) a briefing note on customer engagement and feedback be made available 
for the Board at the September meeting. 

 
8 SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE 
 

(1) Scrutiny Advisory Board – Children and Young People 
 
The Chair of the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Advisory Board advised 
members of issues and developments that had occurred since the last meeting of 
SMB.  It was noted that the last meeting of the Children and Young People’s 
Scrutiny Advisory Board took place on 24 May 2022 and the Board received reports 
and presentations on Children’s Participation, Youth Justice, LGR and preparation 
of children’s services.  The next Board was scheduled for 21 September and 
members would receive an update on the Annual Ofsted Letter,  SEND update and 
Child exploitation six monthly update. 
 

(2) Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults 
 
Members received an update on the work of the Adults Scrutiny Advisory Board and 
any issues and developments that had occurred since the last meeting of SMB.  
Members received reports on the Adult Social Care Strategic Position, Discharge to 
Assess and Safeguarding Adults at risk from abuse and neglect.  It was noted that 
the next meeting of the Adults Scrutiny Board would take place on 24 June 2022 
and a number of issues were due to be considered at that meeting.  It was noted 
that the Joint Health and Adult Social Care Task and Finish Group had been 
established.  
 

(3) Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Members received an update report from the Chair of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny 
Committee which had last met on 18 May.  Members noted that at the Committee 
meeting reports had been received on Urology Services at the University Hospitals 
Of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust, Inpatient Mental Health Provision 
Across South Cumbria , Liberty Protection and North West Ambulance Service 
Provision in Cumbria.  The next meeting would provide reports on an Update on the 
Health & Care Act and the impact on powers of Health Scrutiny, Mental Health 
Services at Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust (CNTW) 
and Dentistry Services in West Cumbria. 
 

10



 

 

In discussion of the Health and Care Bill, members noted that part of the bill had 
been postponed and stressed the importance of retention of the scrutiny referral 
function. 
 

(4) Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities and Place 
 
The Chair of the Communities and Place Board updated members on items 
received at March meeting which included a Strategic update from Cumbria Fire and 
Rescue Service, a Coastal Strategy report and the Independent Planning Review 
progress.   
 
Members noted that a further meeting had been held on 10 June and the agenda 
included items on Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service – lessons learned from major 
incidents, Highways information management system and the draft local flood risk 
management strategy. 
 

In answer to a member’s question on the HIAMs system and the difficulty of finding 
locations using rural postcodes, the Chair confirmed officer use of other location 
services such as “What3words”.  Following a question on the Coastal Strategy, the 
Chair replied that flooding in coastal areas had been discussed but not in detail.  
The Chair agreed to raise any specific questions from members on this.  
 

(5) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board 
 
The Chair informed members that a meeting of the LEP Scrutiny Board had been 
held in March 2022 and the items on the agenda included Economic Overview, 
Journey to net zero, Levelling Up White Paper and implications for LEPs and 
Repurposing the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund.  It was noted that the next meeting 
was scheduled in September 2022.  
 
The changing status and funding level of the LEP was discussed. 
 

(6) Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 
 
A written update was received from the Chair of the Cumbria Police and Crime 
Panel.  It was noted that the Panel meeting scheduled to take place on 5 April 2022 
had been postponed.  The next meeting was scheduled for 19 July 2022 and would 
include on its agenda consideration of the Cumbria Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Annual Report for 2021/22 and a presentation of the Panel Chair’s 
Annual Report.  
 
A member requested the attendance of the Chair of the Police and Crime Panel at 
the Board.  The member raised a question why little funding was being made 
available for speed enforcement in Cumbria.  A member outlined other avenues for 
exploration on this issue, such as submitting a report to the CRASH Group and 
Local Committee funding.   
 
The Chairs were thanked for their updates. 
 

11



 

 

9 SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK 
PROGRAMME 

 
Members received a report that provided an update on issues and developments 
that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board in March 2022.  Attached to 
the report at Appendix 1 was the Programme for 2022/23 and the current Forward 
Plan of Key Decisions 1 July 2022 – 31 August 2022, attached as Appendix 2. 
 
The Chair of the Communities and Place Board highlighted that he had requested a 
report on the handling of electronic waste.  A briefing note on this was to be 
circulated to the Board’s members, and if necessary, a full report prepared for a 
future meeting. 
 
RESOLVED, that 
 

(1) the activity set out in the report be noted; 
 

(2) the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2022/23 be noted; 
 
(3) the Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1 July 2022 – 31 August 2022 be 

noted. 
 
10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Board will be held on 8 September 2022 at 
10 am at County Offices, Kendal. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12.25 pm 
  

 
 

 

12



 

 

 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 

Meeting date: 8 September 2022 

From: Assistant Director – Customer and Community 
Services 

 
 

Scrutiny Review 
 

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To present the Scrutiny Review report following engagement with elected 
Members via the workshops held at Scrutiny Board meetings and interviews. 

1.2 To present proposals for development of the final CCC Scrutiny report for 
approval. 

1.3 To outline proposals for wider sharing of the report findings. 

2.0 Issues for Scrutiny 

2.1 Members are asked to agree that the findings and information in the Scrutiny 
Review report (appendix 1) be used for the development of the final Cumbria 
County Council (CCC) Scrutiny Report.   

2.2 Members are asked to consider the proposed approach to developing the 
final CCC Scrutiny Report and the type of content to be included. 

2.3 Members are asked to identify any historic pieces of scrutiny work that they 
would like to highlight in the final CCC Scrutiny Report.  

2.4 Members are asked to consider how the Scrutiny Review report (appendix 1) 
report might be shared.  

3.0 Background 

SCRUTINY REVIEW PROJECT 

3.1 In response to concerns of the possible loss of Scrutiny corporate memory 
within the Local Government Reorganisation process, a project was created 
to work with Scrutiny Boards to capture knowledge, intelligence and 
experience from elected Members and officers involved in Cumbria County 
Council’s scrutiny arrangements. 

13

Agenda Item 7



 

Page 2 of 3 

3.2 The Scrutiny Review project was split into three areas: 

• Scrutiny Board Activity – which involved the collation of scrutiny 
items discussed at boards. 

• Scrutiny Recommendations – which involved collation of 
recommendations made by the Council’s Scrutiny Members to the 
Council’s Cabinet and other decision-makers, the subsequent 
decisions made and their implementation. 

• Scrutiny Lessons Learnt – which involved collecting the views of the 
Council’s Scrutiny Chairs and Members, Cabinet Members, and 
heads of service regarding the enabling factors and barriers to good 
scrutiny via interviews and workshops. 

3.3 The project focused on the last seven years to allow a range of issues, 
strategies and plans to be covered, and to cover at least two political terms.  
It involved working with: 

• Scrutiny Management Board 

• Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults 

• Scrutiny Advisory Board – Children and Young People  

• Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities and Place 

• Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

3.4 The findings of the project can be found in Appendix 1: Scrutiny Review 
report. 

THE FINAL CCC SCRUTINY REPORT 

3.5 It is proposed that the successes highlighted in the Scrutiny Review report, 
via recommendations implemented and effective overview and scrutiny 
activity be used within the final CCC Scrutiny report.  This will be detailed in 
a case study style, focussing on outcomes. 

3.6 In addition, ideas are welcomed on further historic Scrutiny achievements 
that members would like to see highlighted in the final CCC Scrutiny report. 

3.7 As in previous years, it is proposed to include a reflection from each of the 
Scrutiny Board Chairs, however, this would not be restricted to just the 
previous year of Scrutiny.  

3.8 It is proposed to share the Scrutiny Review report with the two Shadow 
Authorities to help support the development of future scrutiny arrangements. 

 

Tracey Moran 
Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer  
25 August 2022 
 
  
 

14



 

 

Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – CCC Scrutiny Review Report 
 
 
Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions 
[including Local Committees] 
 
“No previous relevant decisions”. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
“No background papers”  
 
 
Contact: Tracey Moran, Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer, 07814481177, 
tracey.moran@cumbria.gov.uk 
 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
Cumbria County Council Scrutiny – 

research and review to support 
development of future Scrutiny 

arrangements 
 

 Initial Findings  
 

August 2022 
  

17



PAGE 1 

 

Contents 

Introduction .....................................................................................................................................................................2 

Scrutiny Board Activity ................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scrutiny Recommendations ......................................................................................................................................... 6 

Scrutiny Lessons Learnt ................................................................................................................................................7 

Appendices ................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix 1 - Scrutiny Management Board meetings from 2015 to 2022 ........................................................ 10 

Appendix 2 - Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults meetings from 2015 to 2022 ................................................. 23 

Appendix 3 – Scrutiny Advisory Board – Children and Young People meetings from 2015 to 2022 ............ 32 

Appendix 4 – Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities and Place meetings from 2015 to 2022 .................. 41 

Appendix 5 – Cumbria Health Scrutiny meetings from 2015 to 2022 ............................................................. 49 

Appendix 6 – Scrutiny Recommendations and updates ................................................................................... 63 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



PAGE 2 

 

Introduction  

This report sets out the findings of research and review activity to capture knowledge, intelligence and 

experience from elected Members and officers involved in Cumbria County Council’s scrutiny 

arrangements. 

This has provided an opportunity to reflect on the breadth and scale of the Scrutiny work undertaken 

by the Council’s Scrutiny Members over the years, and the positive outcomes achieved, whilst also 

sharing learning and experience to inform development of future scrutiny arrangements following local 

government reorganisation in Cumbria. 

The project was split into three areas: 

• Scrutiny Board Activity – which involved the collation of scrutiny items discussed at boards. 

• Scrutiny Recommendations – which involved collation of recommendations made by the 

Council’s Scrutiny Members to the Council’s Cabinet and other decision-makers, the subsequent 

decisions made and their implementation. 

• Scrutiny Lessons Learnt – which involved collecting the views of the Council’s Scrutiny Chairs 

and Members, Cabinet Members, and heads of service regarding the enabling factors and 

barriers to good Scrutiny via interviews and workshops. 

The project focused on the last seven years to allow a range of issues, strategies and plans to be 

covered, with many being refreshed every five years, and to cover at least two political terms. 

Interviews and Workshops  

Cumbria County Council Scrutiny Boards, Cabinet Members, and officers had the opportunity to 

highlight what had helped, and in addition what had got in the way of the board delivering the four 

principles of good scrutiny as suggested by the Centre of Scrutiny and Governance: 

1. Provide constructive “critical friend” challenge 

2. Amplify the voice and concerns of the public 

3. Drive improvement in public services 

4. Be led by independent people who take responsibility for their role  

 

 

19



PAGE 3 

 

This project involved working with the following Scrutiny Boards: 

• Scrutiny Management Board 

• Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults 

• Scrutiny Advisory Board – Children and Young People  

• Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities and Place 

• Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

Scrutiny Board Activity 

Cumbria County Council has three Scrutiny Advisory Boards overseen by the Scrutiny Management 

Board. The Boards make recommendations on policy and hold the Leader and Cabinet, as well as 

Officers, to account for decisions they have made. They scrutinise the Council's performance in relation 

to policy objectives, performance targets, service areas and the work of external partners such as health 

bodies.  Cumbria County Council also has responsibility for health scrutiny functions delivered through 

the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee and hosts the Local Enterprise Partnership Scrutiny Board and 

the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel.   

Scrutiny Management Board 

The board has overall responsibility for the Overview and Scrutiny function of the Council. 

Standing items for this board include updates from each of the Scrutiny Board Chairs on activity, and 

updates from the Performance Working Group. In addition, Scrutiny Management Board has 

responsibility for all Call-in activity as well as the commissioning of Task and Finish group activity.  The 

board leads the engagement of non-executive Members in the Council’s strategic and budget planning.  

This board is also responsible for reporting on Scrutiny activity to Full Council, including the production 

of Scrutiny Annual Report. 

The areas scrutinised by the board in the past seven years have been varied, with a focus on 

overarching, cross-cutting and organisation-wide services or issues, such as improving customer 

services and digital transformation of services, workforce planning with a particular focus on absence 

management, the Council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic and the development of the Recovery 

Strategy for Cumbria.  Details and links to the last seven years of meetings and items can be found in 

Appendix 1. 

20



PAGE 4 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults 

The board delivers overview and scrutiny of the powers and duties, decisions and policies relating to 

Cumbria County Council services delivered to support Adults. 

The board has one standing item which is to receive an update and analysis of adult safeguarding 

activity.   

The areas that the board has scrutinised in the past seven years has been varied, including items such 

as the Social Care Vision and Strategic Plan, Winter Planning, and Delayed Transfer of Care.  Details 

and links to the last seven years of meetings and items can be found in Appendix 2. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board – Children and Young People  

The board delivers overview and scrutiny of the powers and duties, decisions and policies relating to 

Cumbria County Council services delivered to support Children and Young People. 

This board has one standing item, which is to receive an update from the two Cabinet Members for 

Children’s Services, and Schools and Learning. 

In addition, the board has scrutinised a wide selection of services and issues for Children and Young 

People, including items on Youth Justice, Cumbria Early Help strategy, and Child exploitation.  Details 

and links to the last seven years of meetings and items can be found in Appendix 3. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities and Place 

The board delivers overview and scrutiny of the powers and duties, decisions and policies relating to 

Cumbria County Council services delivered under the themes: Safer/stronger and inclusive 

communities, Planning, Highways, The environment, and Economic regeneration. 

The board has investigated a wide variety of functions, including the Fire Services performance, Clean 

and Inclusive growth, the National bus strategy, Highways Asset Management strategy, and the Flood 

Response plan.  Details and links to the last seven years of meetings and items can be found in 

Appendix 4. 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

The committee brings together County and District Members to overview and scrutinise matters relating 

to the planning provision and operation of health services in Cumbria. 

21



PAGE 5 

 

The Committee receive updates and information from NHS colleagues from North Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Group and Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group areas, as well as items from 

Cumbria County Council and Third sector organisations.   

A wide range of health items have been brought to the committee over the last seven years, including 

items such as, the Health and Care Act, North-West Ambulance provision, Staffing/Recruitment, and 

an Update on Dentistry.  Details and links to the last seven years of meetings and items can be found 

in Appendix 5. 

*All Scrutiny Boards and Committees have a Board Briefing standing item, which includes an update 

on the activity of the board and members between meetings, advises of relevant information, and work 

programming.  

Task and Finish Groups commissioned 

1. ABSENCE MANAGEMENT 

2. AUTISM 

3. CHILDREN AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES  

4. CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION IN CUMBRIA 

5. EQUALITY OBJECTIVES 

6. FLUORIDATION OF WATER SUPPLIES 

7. HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION 

8. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CARE ACT 

9. LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES 

10. LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM, PHASE 1 

11. LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM, PHASE 2 

12. PROVISION OF INFRASTRUCTURE TO SUPPORT NEW DEVELOPMENT 

13. REMOTE WORKING/ POST-COVID WAYS OF WORKING 

14. TRANSFORMING SERVICES THROUGH DIGITAL INNOVATION 

15. TRANSPORT AND YOUNG PEOPLE  

16. WASTE AND THE THIRD SECTOR  

22



PAGE 6 

 

Scrutiny Recommendations 

Through scrutiny non-executive Members can review the decisions of Cabinet, other committees or 

organisations, and officers to ensure accountability for decisions made and policies implemented, which 

can result in recommendations to Cabinet and other organisations.  

Scrutiny Management Bcoard has three key routes for making recommendations: Task and Finish 

Groups, the Call-in mechanism, and engagement in Strategic Planning. 

Task and Finish Groups  

Scrutiny Management Board commissions scrutiny reviews via Task and Finish Groups.  These 

informal groups bring together Members and participants, invited for their specific skills and experience, 

to take an in depth look at a topic area that is of particular interest or is providing particular concern to 

the Council and/or the community.  

Task and Finish Groups produce a report of findings and recommendations that is presented to the 

Cabinet, and other organisations for consideration with an aim to improving outcomes for the 

communities of Cumbria. 

Scrutiny Management Board has made a range of recommendations via Task and Finish Groups over 

the past seven years, please see appendix 6 for a list of the recommendations, with an update on 

implementation.  

Call-in mechanism 

The call-in mechanism is an important part of the decision-making process and is designed to test the 

merits of the decision and to ensure that non-executive Members have an opportunity to recommend 

change, reconsideration or deferral.   

Three or more non-executive Members may call in a decision for scrutiny.  Scrutiny Management Board 

will first consider the decision, and if still concerned, may refer it back to the decision-making person or 

body for reconsideration. 

In the past seven years Scrutiny Management Board referred two Call-ins to Cumbria County Council’s 

Cabinet: 

23



PAGE 7 

 

1) The decision taken by Cabinet on 23 September 2021 that a claim is issued for Judicial Review 

against the decision of the Secretary of State to implement the East/West two unitary proposal 

in Cumbria.  Following review, the decision was upheld. 

2) The decision taken by Cabinet on the 14 November 2019 to cease residential care provision at 

The Abbey in Staveley.  Following review, the decision was upheld.  

Strategic Planning 

Scrutiny Management Board makes recommendations taken from feedback collected as part of the 

engagement of non-executive Members in the Council’s strategic planning process on the proposed 

Council budget annually.  A range of issues and suggestions have been highlighted over the past seven 

years and, where appropriate, Cabinet has reflected this within budgets and work programmes. 

Scrutiny Lessons Learnt  

As part of this research and review project, three workshops and fifteen interviews were conducted with 

Members and Officers who have been involved with or have experience of the Council’s scrutiny 

function.  All participants were asked both what they thought had enabled and what had been a barrier 

to Scrutiny delivering the four principles of good scrutiny as described by the Centre for Governance 

and Scrutiny:   

1. Provide constructive “critical friend” challenge 

2. Amplify the voice and concerns of the public 

3. Drive improvement in public services 

4. Be led by independent people who take responsibility for their role  

Participants offered a range of interesting comments and insights, key lessons learnt are detailed 

below. 

Enablers to good scrutiny 

The key lessons learnt from the insights provided by participants that enabled good and effective 

scrutiny are: 

• The experience, knowledge and expertise gained by Members through their work in their 

community and their involvement in Scrutiny; 

24



PAGE 8 

 

• The commitment, persistence and determination of Members to provide effective overview and 

scrutiny; 

• Good relationships between Scrutiny Members and Officers, and between Scrutiny Members 

and Cabinet Members; 

• The independence of Scrutiny which is informed, but not unduly influenced, by Officers, Cabinet 

Members or political parties; which plays a part in ensuring that instances of conflict in relation 

to political views and the scrutiny process are limited; 

• Good quality and sufficiently resourced Scrutiny Officer support; 

• The involvement of the relevant Senior Officers in Scrutiny activity; 

• Members’ confidence in Officers and ability to be open to challenge; 

• Members’ understanding of Scrutiny areas informing effective and constructive challenge, with 

evidence and information being sought from a range of sources; 

• The time and resources Scrutiny can utilise to investigate issues and identify trends enabling 

Scrutiny Members to offer a fresh look at policies, issues and projects; 

• Clear and effective processes for Call-Ins and for the development and making of 

recommendations to the Council’s Cabinet, with a confidence that Cabinet valued the quality of 

Scrutiny Members’ work and gave careful consideration to their recommendations; 

• The approach taken by Scrutiny to enable more non-executive Members to contribute to the 

decision-making process, particularly through purposeful Task and Finish Groups and the 

approach to Scrutiny engagement in the Council’s strategic and budget planning processes; 

• Recognition that overview was as important as scrutiny which supports Members to identify good 

practice and areas for improvement, and to monitor and oversee improvement. 

Barriers to good scrutiny 

The key lessons learnt from the insights provided by participants that proved barriers to good and 

effective scrutiny are: 

• There are opportunities for Scrutiny to be more challenging with questioning and 

recommendations, and for closer tracking of the implementation of recommendations made by 

Scrutiny which will enable Members to better hold those responsible for decision-making and 

delivery to account; 

• Enhanced and consistent provision of good quality and timely data to Scrutiny, alongside robust 

benchmarking and contextualisation, will support increasingly effective Scrutiny; 

25



PAGE 9 

 

• Improved understanding of Scrutiny by all Councillors, Officers, and the public is critical to 

strengthening the Scrutiny function and could play a part in increasing the currently low level of 

public participation in the work of Scrutiny; 

• The wide scope of the services and policy areas within the remit of Scrutiny Boards results in 

challenges in prioritisation, managing work programmes and ensuring Members are kept up to 

date across the full range of responsibilities and accountabilities; 

• If contributors focus too much on what worked well, the potential for Scrutiny to support 

improvement and innovation is diminished; 

• More engagement and connectivity by Scrutiny Members with external groups and outside 

bodies would enrich the information and intelligence base for Scrutiny; 

• Levels of contact between Scrutiny Boards and relevant Cabinet Members which vary across 

the Scrutiny function can impact the consistency and quality of Scrutiny across policy and service 

areas; 

• The published Forward Plan of Cabinet Key Decisions which includes decisions to be made over 

only the subsequent two months adversely impacts on the ability of Scrutiny Members to develop 

their Work Programme in a timely manner over the medium to longer-term. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



PAGE 10 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Scrutiny Management Board meetings from 2015 to 2022 

The heading for each meeting is a link to the papers.  For further information and papers for this committee: 

Link to Scrutiny Management Board* 

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 13th June, 2022 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• CUSTOMER SERVICES - TRANSFORMATION OF LIBRARIES - update on the transformation of the 

library service since late 2019 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Review details 

o Shadow Scrutiny support arrangements  

o Performance Working Group update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Tuesday, 1st March, 2022 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• ABSENCE MANAGEMENT UPDATE – presentation highlighting that employee wellbeing and sickness 

absence remained a key priority for the council 

• CUSTOMER SERVICES UPDATE – presentation on delivering accessible and usable services for 

Adult Social Care (ASC). 

• DRAFT SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to 

full Council 

• SCOPE FOR HEALTH AND CARE TASK AND FINISH GROUP - to agree the draft scope 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 24th November, 2021 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - noted that the Board had considered a valid Call In on the decision of Cabinet on 23 

September in respect of the Potential Claim for Judicial Review against the decision of the Secretary of 

State in respect of Local Government Reorganisation.  

• LOCALITY SERVICES - REVIEW OF PROGRESS - update Locality Services 

• FLUORIDATION OF WATER SUPPLIES, TASK AND FINISH GROUP DRAFT REPORT - draft report 

from the Fluoridation of Water Supplies Scrutiny Task and Finish Group for approval 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

27

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=167&Year=0
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=12341&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11487&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11486&Ver=4


PAGE 11 

 

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Agree to delegate sign-off of the Report from the Local Government Reform Task and Finish 

Group 

o Agree to delegate sign-off of the Scrutiny Feedback to the Cabinet’s Strategic Planning 

proposals 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Call-in update 

o Strategic Planning update 

Call in of a Cabinet Decision, Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 11th 

October, 2021 2.00 pm 

• CALL-IN - claim for judicial review against the decision of the Secretary of State to implement the 

East/West two unitary authority proposal in Cumbria. 

Scrutiny Management Board - Thursday, 9th September, 2021 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• ICT SERVICE: INFRASTRUCTURE, PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE PLANS – update on the ICT 

Service infrastructure, current performance and the future plans of the ICT Service to support delivery 

of services and wider transformation programmes. 

• ABSENCE MANAGEMENT, REVIEW OF PROGRESS – update on sickness management and 

performance, following the previous discussions at SMB (March 2021) where the importance of health, 

wellbeing and new ways of working were highlighted. 

• LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM TASK AND FINISH GROUP, DRAFT SCOPE FOR NEXT PHASE 

OF WORK - draft scope for the second phase of work for the Local Government Reform Scrutiny Task 

and Finish Group 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Development Plan update 

o Strategic planning update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 25th June, 2021 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• NEW WAYS OF WORKING - report and presentation updating on the development of the New Ways of 

Working Programme. 

• RECOVERY STRATEGY FOR CUMBRIA – pre scrutiny of the draft Cumbria Covid-19 Recovery 

Strategy  

• DRAFT SCOPE FOR TASK AND FINISH GROUP ON FLUORIDATION OF WATER SUPPLIES - 

report presenting a draft scope for a Scrutiny Task and Finish Review 

28

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=12246&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=12246&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11485&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11484&Ver=4


PAGE 12 

 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny development plan update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 8th March, 2021 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT UPDATE - update on progression of the Organisational 

Development programme 

• POST-COVID WAYS OF WORKING SCRUTINY REVIEW – presentation of findings and 

recommendations 

• DRAFT SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to full Council 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 13th November, 2020 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• STRATEGIC PLANNING, FEEDBACK FROM EARLY SCRUTINY ENGAGEMENT - summary of 

Members’ discussions at the session held for all non-executive Members on 6 October 2020 

• TASK AND FINISH GROUP ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM, LOCALITY MODELS - Update on 

the progress of the Task and Finish Group 

• SCOPE FOR THE REMOTE WORKING TASK AND FINISH GROUP – outline of proposed scope for 

approval 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Delegate authority to the Chair and Vice Chair of Scrutiny Management Board to provide the 

final sign-off of the report from the Infrastructure Task and Finish Group 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Development Plan update 

o Strategic planning update 

 

29

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10537&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10537&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=167


PAGE 13 

 

Scrutiny Management Board - Thursday, 10th September, 2020 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND ABSENCE MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE UPDATE - 

update to Organisational Development and cultural change, following previous discussions at Scrutiny 

Management Board 

• UPDATE ON TASK AND FINISH GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS - update on key recommendations 

made by the Scrutiny Advisory Boards since June 2019 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Scope for Scrutiny Activity – Local Government Reform 

o Scrutiny Development Plan update 

o Strategic planning update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 22nd May, 2020 1.30 pm 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• COVID 19 BRIEFING, THE COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO DATE - overview of the Council’s activity to 

date in response to the Covid-19 pandemic 

• WAYS OF WORKING AND RETURN TO THE WORKPLACE – presentation on ways of working and 

return to the workplace 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Review of Scrutiny Work Programme and Development Plan 

Scrutiny Management Board - Tuesday, 3rd March, 2020 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - noted that the Board had considered a valid Call In on the decision of Cabinet to 18 

December in respect of Cumbria Care Reshaping of Services. 

• UPDATE ON THE CUSTOMER - update on delivery of the customer programme 

• SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to full Council 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Development Plan update 

o Strategic planning update 

 

30

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10529&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10529&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11364&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11364&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10525&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10525&Ver=4


PAGE 14 

 

Call in of a decision of Cabinet, Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 18th 

December, 2019 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - decision of Cabinet on 14 November 2019 – Cumbria Care – Reshaping of Services 

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 27th November, 2019 10.30 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• SCRUTINY FEEDBACK ON STRATEGIC PLANNING - summary of scrutiny engagement in strategic 

planning for 2020-2021 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Development Plan update 

o Strategic planning update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 16th September, 2019 2.00 pm 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• CUSTOMER PROGRAMME UPDATE - update on delivery of the customer programme 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Development Plan update 

o Strategic planning update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 28th June, 2019 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• ABSENCE MANAGEMENT, 2018/19 PERFORMANCE UPDATE - overview of the Council’s sickness 

absence performance for the 2018/19 period.  

• UPDATE ON RECOMMENDATIONS - update on key recommendations made by the Scrutiny Advisory 

Boards over the last two years 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Self- Assessment update 

31

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11320&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11320&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11126&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=11126&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10521&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10515&Ver=4


PAGE 15 

 

o Strategic planning update 

o New National Scrutiny Guidance 

o LGA Corporate Peer Challenge  

Special Meeting, Scrutiny Management Board - Tuesday, 12th March, 2019 2.00 

pm 

• CUMBRIA LEP - GOVERNANCE, STRATEGY AND DELIVERY PROGRESS REPORT - update on 

Cumbria LEP’s (CLEP) governance, delivery and strategy arrangements 

Scrutiny Management Board - Tuesday, 12th March, 2019 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• DRAFT SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to full Council 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Information on workshop session planned to consider progress with the Council’s approach to 

commercialism and enterprise 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Scrutiny Self-Assessment update 

Call In of a Decision of the Cabinet on 20/12/18, Scrutiny Management Board - 

Tuesday, 22nd January, 2019 3.00 pm 

• CALL-IN - decision of Cabinet on 20 December 2019 – 2020-2021 School Admissions Arrangements 

Scrutiny Management Board - Thursday, 22nd November, 2018 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• UPDATE ON DELIVERY OF THE SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT STRATEGY - report relating to the 

Sustainable Procurement Strategy: 2018-22 objectives 

• SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP UPDATE - update from the Scrutiny Performance 

Working Group 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Strategic planning update 

o Deep Dive session took place on the management of long-term absence update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Scrutiny Self-Assessment update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Thursday, 20th September, 2018 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• PRESENTATION TO UPDATE ON THE COUNCILS APPROACH TO COMMERCIALISM AND 

ENTERPRISE - presentation on the Council’s approach to Commercialism and Enterprise 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

32

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10845&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10845&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9274&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9274&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10667&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10667&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9273&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9273&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9272&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9272&Ver=4


PAGE 16 

 

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Scrutiny Self-Assessment update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 18th July, 2018 1.45 pm 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• DEVELOPING THE COUNCIL'S APPROACH TO COMMERCIALISM – presentation on building a 

financially sustainable Council, updating on progress on the enterprise strand of the Council Plan 

• OVERVIEW OF PROGRESS WITH TASK AND FINISH GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS - report on 

progress with recommendations from Scrutiny to Cabinet over the past two years 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Scrutiny Self-Assessment update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Tuesday, 6th March, 2018 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• NOTIFICATION OF LOCAL MEMBERS – verbal update regarding notification o issues in electoral 

divisions to local Members 

• SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT STRATEGY - review of the Draft Strategy to provide comments prior 

to it been presented at Cabinet 

• MANAGEMENT OF ATTENDANCE UPDATE - update on Attendance Management 

• DRAFT SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to full Council 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

Call In of a Decision of the Cabinet 23/11/2017, Scrutiny Management Board - 

Wednesday, 20th December, 2017 10.30 am 

• CALL-IN - decision of Cabinet on 23 November 2017 – Response to the Referral from Copeland Local 

Committee 

 

 

33

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10223&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=167
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10160&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10160&Ver=4


PAGE 17 

 

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 11th December, 2017 2.30 pm 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• RESPONSE TO STRATEGIC PLANNING CONSULTATION - summary of Scrutiny’s engagement in 

Strategic Planning for 2018/19, outlining key points and recommendation as the formal response to the 

proposed Council vision, approach to be a financially sustainable organisation and the Budget 

Consultation for 2018/19 

• EQUALITIES TASK GROUP - report of the Task and Finish Group on Equality Objectives 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Scrutiny Skills session on 27th November update  

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 20th September, 2017 1.00 pm 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• EXEMPTIONS FROM CALL IN - verbal update exemptions from Call in 

• CABINET MEMBER FOR CUSTOMER SERVICES, TRANSFORMATION AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 

- overview of portfolio and description of interest and personal experience  

• MANAGEMENT OF ATTENDANCE UPDATE – update on progress with the management of absence 

between the period 31 March 2017 to 31 July 2017 

• UPDATE ON THE DELIVERY OF THE DIGITAL STRATEGY – update on progress against actions set 

out in the Council’s digital strategy and the next steps to be taken to implement digital approaches to 

service delivery 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o An introduction to the role of Scrutiny 

o Centre for Public Scrutiny will run a session on Scrutiny Skills 

o Delegate responsibility to the Chair and Vice Chair of SMB to agree any Task and Finish Group 

scopes and reports to Cabinet that require sign off in between meetings of SMB 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 3rd March, 2017 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• CHIEF EXECUTIVE - Introduction 

• MANAGEMENT OF ATTENDANCE UPDATE - update on the management of attendance by the 

Council 

• SCRUTINY ANNUAL - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to full Council 

• ANTI POVERTY UPDATE - presentation on anti-poverty, providing a brief overview both nationally and 

locally, and an update on some of the activity underway 

34

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10108&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=10108&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9268&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=9268&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8790&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8790&Ver=4


PAGE 18 

 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny led Member Development Session on Autism update 

o one day session on the Equalities Objectives information 

o Performance Working Group update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 23rd November, 2016 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - Scrutiny Management Board met on 26th October 2016 to hear a call-in in respect of a 

decision taken by Cabinet on 22nd September 2016 regarding the future of Edenside Residential Care 

Home, Appleby. 

• WORKFORCE PLAN - update on performance against the Council’s Workforce Plan and Delivery Plan. 

• SCRUTINY RESPONSE TO BUDGET PROPOSALS 2017-18 - Summary of Scrutiny engagement in 

strategic planning for 2017/18, and the key points to be included in Scrutiny’s formal response to 

Cabinet in respect of the Budget consultation. 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 26th October, 2016 1.30 pm 

•  CALL-IN - decision taken by Cabinet at its meeting on 22 September 2016: 

o Not to re-occupy the building in Appleby known as ‘Edenside’ and to de-register this location as 

a care home on a permanent basis; 

o To continue to operate the Cumbria Care Home in Penrith for the residents that were 

transferred from Edenside in Appleby during the floods of 2015/16; 

o To note and support the work already being undertaken to develop a robust plan to address and 

support the future needs of older residents in Appleby and the Appleby area 

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 26th September, 2016 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• HEALTHWATCH CUMBRIA: SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY FROM 1 APRIL-30 JUNE 2016 – summary of 

the overall performance of Healthwatch Cumbria (HWC) from 1 April - 30 June 2016 

• DIGITAL STRATEGY PROGRESS - update on the implementation of the Digital Strategy and on 

progress with the delivery of the Service Centre model 

• EFFICIENCY STATEMENT – update on the Efficiency Strategy 

• INFORMATION GOVERNANCE (FREEDOM OF INFORMATION) – review on if the Council is doing all 

it can to charge for information provided under the FOIA 

• AUTISM – Autism Task and Finish Group final draft report for approval 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

35

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8789&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8789&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8787&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8787&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8672&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8672&Ver=4


PAGE 19 

 

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Training session on adult safeguarding information 

o Meeting to consider the Government’s consultation on business rate retention information 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 10th June, 2016 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• MANAGEMENT OF ADVOCACY/HEALTHWATCH CONTRACT – update on the arrangements in 

place to manage the recently awarded contract for the provision of advocacy services and the 

Healthwatch function 

• MONITORING OF TASK GROUP – update on progress with the recommendations of recent Scrutiny 

Task and Finish Groups. 

• MANAGEMENT OF ATTENDANCE – update on the management of attendance by the Council 

• ANNUAL SME REPORT - 1ST APRIL 2015 - 31ST MARCH 2016 - update on the number (%) of 

SME’s that have successfully been appointed onto contracts and frameworks during the financial period 

of 2015/16 

• ANTI POVERTY STRATEGY - overview of the Council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy and set out the focus of 

the Year 3 Delivery Plan 

• CAMHS – verbal update on the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) Task and 

Finish group’s findings and recommendations. 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Scrutiny Development Session information  

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 4th March, 2016 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• CHILDREN'S PROMISE - presentation on Cumbria’s Promise to Looked After Children 

• TRANSFORMING SERVICES THROUGH DIGITAL INNOVATION, PROGRESS REPORT – update on 

progress of the recommendations from the Task Group review on “Transforming Services through 

Digital Innovation”  

• WORKFORCE - background to the purpose and core themes of the Council’s draft refreshed 

Workforce Plan 

• SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT - draft Scrutiny Annual Report before submission to full Council 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

36

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8350&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8350&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8348&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8348&Ver=4


PAGE 20 

 

o Scrutiny Development Session information 

o Strategic planning update 

o Consideration of performance issues  

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 22nd February, 2016 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - decision taken by the Corporate Director – Environment and Community Services on 27 

January 2016 to approve the award of a contract to People First in Lot 1 to provide advocacy services 

for four years. 

 Scrutiny Management Board - Friday, 29th January, 2016 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• MANAGEMENT OF ATTENDANCE UPDATE – update on the management of attendance by the 

Council since the last report to the Board on 1st October 2015, and on progress against measures 

introduced to improve absence 

• SCRUTINISING PERFORMANCE - review of the focus and operation of the Performance Working 

Group one year on from its establishment. 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Consideration of performance issues  

Scrutiny Management Board - Wednesday, 25th November, 2015 2.00 pm 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• SCRUTINY RESPONSE TO COUNCIL PLAN AND BUDGET CONSULTATION - summary of Scrutiny 

engagement in strategic planning for 2016/17, key points and recommendations to be included in 

Scrutiny’s formal response to Cabinet in respect of the Council Plan and Budget Consultation 

• HEALTHWATCH CUMBRIA UPDATE - update report and a presentation on Healthwatch Cumbria  

• UPDATE ON CONNECTING CUMBRIA - update on the current status of the programme. 

• LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES TASK GROUP REPORT – outline of findings of the Learning 

Disability Services Task and Finish Group. 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Information on the draft Highways Strategy engagement and Council’s future engagement in 

Rail North 

o Child Sexual Exploitation session information  

o Consideration of performance issues 

 

 

37

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8628&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8628&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8347&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8347&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8347&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8346&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8346&Ver=4


PAGE 21 

 

Scrutiny Management Board - Thursday, 1st October, 2015 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• FUTURE PROCUREMENT OF HEALTHWATCH - update on procurement arrangements for 

Healthwatch in Cumbria. 

• MANAGEMENT OF ATTENDANCE UPDATE - update on progress against the measures implemented 

as a result of a report considered by the Scrutiny Management Board on 23 January 2015 and an 

internal audit in April 2015. 

• MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE – update on the implementation of proposals to help improve 

member communications. 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

Scrutiny Management Board - Monday, 6th July, 2015 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• TRANSPORT ARRANGEMENTS, ABSENCES FROM SCHOOL - outlining the current arrangements in 

place with taxi companies for home to school transport, and in particular: Financial cost of incidents 

when a child was absent from school and the Council still have to pay for the taxi and the arrangements 

in place with taxi operators and the procedure followed by schools, with regard to the 

reporting/recording of pupil absences from school 

• CONNECTING CUMBRIA UPDATE PHASE 1 AND 2 – update on the current status of this programme 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Private briefing session following the publication of the Ofsted report information  

o Health Scrutiny development session information  

o Scrutiny Development Session information 

o Consideration of the Council Plan Delivery Plan 

Scrutiny Management Board - Thursday, 30th April, 2015 10.00 am 

• CALL-IN - no call-in items for the Board to consider 

• HEALTHWATCH CUMBRIA UPDATE - update on Healthwatch Cumbria 

• AUDIT AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE - update on the work of the Audit and Assurance 

Committee 

• SCOPE FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING TASK AND FINISH GROUP - draft scope for a proposed Task 

and Finish Group looking at different ways of work in order to inform the Council’s strategic planning 

process 

• SMALL MEDIUM ENTERPRISE (SME) REPORT FOR THE PERIOD OCT 2014 TO MARCH 2015 - 

outlines the numbers of local business’ (Small Medium Enterprise –SME’s) that have been successful 

in winning Cumbria County Council contracts during the third and fourth quarters of 2014/15. 

38

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8345&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=8345&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=7399&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=7399&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=7489&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MId=7489&Ver=4


PAGE 22 

 

• SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE - updates from the Chair of all Scrutiny groups CCC delivers  

• SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME - update on 

issues and developments that have occurred since the last meeting, work programme and Forward 

Plan of key decisions, including: 

o Task and Finish activity update 

o Strategic planning update 

o Performance Working Group update 

o Workshops and briefings information  

o Scrutiny development session information  

*All links correct at the time of collation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



PAGE 23 

 

Appendix 2 - Scrutiny Advisory Board – Adults meetings from 2015 to 2022 

The heading for each meeting is a link to the papers.  For further information and papers for this committee: 

Link to SAB - Adults * 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 24th June, 2022 10.00 am 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC POSITION – update on the current position 

• QUALITY (PROVIDER SERVICES) – an update and assurance into the overall governance held within 

Provider Services. Description of the audit process within Provider Services. 

• LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION – ASC: Summary of scope, Programme shape, 

Workplan, Disaggregation, Opportunities, Key challenges 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o HEALTH & CARE INTEGRATION TASK & FINISH GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Monday, 28th March, 2022 10.00 am 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC POSITION & WORKFORCE – update on the current position 

• DISCHARGE TO ASSESS – explanation of service and current position 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o HEALTH & CARE INTEGRATION TASK & FINISH GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 25th January, 2022 10.00 am 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC POSITION & WORKFORCE – update on the current position 

• EXTRA CARE HOUSING UPDATE – explanation of service and current position 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP update and Referral - Action M2.10 (Work towards 

increasing Cumbria Care’s market share by 8-14% each financial year) which was rated Red. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 1st October, 2021 10.00 am 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC POSITION & WORKFORCE – update on the current position 

• DRAFT ADULT SOCIAL CARE VISION AND STRATEGIC PLAN - to consider the Adult Social Care 

Vision and Strategy for 2021-23 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

40

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=215&Year=0
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=11799&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=11798&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=12273&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=12273&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=11796&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=11796&Ver=4


PAGE 24 

 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP update and Referrals 1) Working with health partners on 

improving patient flow (from acute to community / home settings) and the increased / changed 

demand on reablement and related services resulting from the higher dependency of patients; 

2) The future shape of social care sector and the local market; 3)The future of the social care 

workforce – attracting people into the sector, and improving quality and consistency of practice; 

and, 4)The financial challenges in respect of social care nationally and locally 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 26th March, 2021 10.00 am 

• COVID AND WINTER – changes to demand, current situation, impact 

• IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON INDIVIDUALS WITH LEARNING DIFFICULTIES AND 

CARERS – update national and local context 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE WORKFORCE – update on the implementation of the new structure in ASC 

Operations and broader ASC workforce issues 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs of new or updated items of significance to 

the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Thursday, 7th January, 2021 10.00 am 

• DAY OPPORTUNTIES AND SUPPORTED LIVING, IMPACT OF COVID 19 – Information on how Day 

Opportunities are opening safely, how the ask from people accessing services might be changing, how 

the closures of Day Services during the pandemic have impacted on informal carers  

• TESTING AND VACCINATION - verbal update on the roll out of testing and vaccinations 

• WINTER PLANNING – update on actions undertaken to support system flow improvements since 

October 2021 on changes to discharge arrangements and the impact on delayed transfers of care; 

details steps taken across the Health and Care systems to prepare for expected Winter pressures and 

increase systemic resilience; details how partners across the NHS and adults social care have worked 

together to develop arrangements for dealing with the national requirements for jointly agreed winter 

planning 

• WORKFORCE WELLBEING - summaries wellbeing support and initiatives in place to support the 

workforce, pre and during Covid-19, with specific focus on support across Adult and Provider services. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs of new or updated items of significance to 

the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 16th October, 2020 10.00 am 

• ALL AGES CARER CHARTER – details the support provided to Carers throughout the COVID 19 

pandemic; updates on progress with the All Ages Carers Charter 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs of new or updated items of significance to 

the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

41

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10564&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10564&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10563&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10563&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10562&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10562&Ver=4


PAGE 25 

 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Thursday, 16th January, 2020 10.00 am 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE RESHAPING – Information on the ASC reshaping to align to the revised target 

operating model. 

• BARROW IN FURNESS DRUGS DEATHS - update on the intensive activity in Barrow in Furness to 

address the recent spike in drug poisoning deaths. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 4th October, 2019 10.00 am 

• SHARED LIVES – information on the service  

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity  

• DEVELOPMENT OF REASONABLE OFFER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE IN CUMBRIA - overview of 

the procedure followed in Adult Social Care for calculating a personal budget to meet people’s needs 

for social care support. 

• ACTION PLAN TO DELIVER THE CUMBRIA HEALTHWATCH REPORT ON PEOPLE WITH A 

LEARNING DISABILITY – information on the action plan that has been developed following the 

publication of the Cumbria Healthwatch report: what does a good life look like for people with learning 

difficulties in Cumbria? - A platform for change. 

• DELAYED TRANSFERS OF CARE – details performance of Cumbria with regard to Delayed Transfers 

of Care (DTOCs): Current situation, and what the drivers are for the system’s performance. 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 25th June, 2019 10.00 am 

• PROMOTING INDEPENDENCE PROGRAMME – update on progress and next steps 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Monday, 1st April, 2019 10.00 am 

• CONSULTATION RESULTS ON CARE CHARGING POLICY FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE SERVICES 

- update on the implementation of the changes to Adult Social Care Charging policy which took place in 

2018 incorporating an update on the number of people affected by these changes, income generated 

and level of complaints 

42

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10559&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10559&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10558&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10558&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10557&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=10557&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9282&Ver=4


PAGE 26 

 

• ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY – Information on Assistive technology and its use in Cumbria; details of 

how AT services will be affected by the Digital 2025 project. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Thursday, 17th January, 2019 10.00 am 

• DELAYED TRANSFER OF CARE – Information on the statutory requirements relating to delayed 

transfers of care (DTOC) as determined by The Care Act 2014, details of the partnership arrangements 

in place in both North and South Cumbria to oversee and improve the DTOC position in Cumbria, 

details of the current DTOC position in Cumbria 

• LEARNING DISABILITY AND AUTISM BOARD - update on the work of the Learning Disability and 

Autism Partnership Board 

• PROMOTING INDEPENDENCE PROGRAMME – update on how the programme will realise planned 

savings within 2018–19 budget, incorporating an update on the delivery of the ‘Strength Based 

Approach to Social Care 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Wednesday, 10th October, 2018 10.00 am 

• DAY SERVICES REVIEW – details of the review’s approach, ambition and delivery 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP - update and Referral of item for scrutiny: reablement, 

waiting times from referral to initial assessments and redesign of day services 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Thursday, 28th June, 2018 10.00 am 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE CHARGING POLICY - update on the results from the consultation on current 

proposal to review fees and charges across Health Care and Community Services Directorate 

• SOCIAL WORK PRACTICE, NEW WAYS OF WORKING, STRENGTH BASED APPROACH - 

explanation of the work being undertaken in adult services to develop strength-based practice and to 

support the emergence of a culture that promotes and supports independence 

• DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY STANDARDS - background to the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

(DoLS) for adults service and the current situation and backlog of DoLS applications, current volume of 

work in relation to DoLS in Cumbria, update and analysis of DoLS activity since bringing the service 

43

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9281&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9281&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9280&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9280&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9279&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9279&Ver=4


PAGE 27 

 

back in house in October 2017, details actions taken and planned to strengthen or consolidate 

improvements in the service  

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Monday, 19th March, 2018 10.00 am 

• ALL AGES CARERS CHARTER - to provide input into the All Age Carers’ Charter at an early stage of 

its development 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Thursday, 18th January, 2018 10.00 am 

• CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC) INSPECTION LOCAL SYSTEM REVIEW OF HEALTH AND 

SOCIAL CARE - verbal update from the Health, Care and Community Directorate on the preparations 

for the CQC inspection 

• CARERS STRATEGY - to provide input into the outline for an All Age Carers’ Charter at an early stage 

of its development. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP 

o JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Thursday, 2nd November, 2017 10.00 am 

• ACCOUNTABLE CARE SYSTEMS - update on progress in carrying out Council policy with regards to 

Accountable Care in South Cumbria. Update on the development of Integrated Care Communities 

(ICCs) and proposals to develop the integration of the health and care system using an accountable 

care model. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP - update and Referral of items for scrutiny: Use of 

Assistive Technology and Delayed Transfers of Care 

o SCOPE FOR JOINT HEALTH AND ADULTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 

44

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9278&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9278&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9277&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9277&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9276&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9276&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=9276&Ver=4


PAGE 28 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 7th April, 2017 10.00 am 

• IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CARE ACT - update on the recommendations made by Scrutiny in 

November 2014 in relation to the implementation of the Care Act in Cumbria 

• MODERNISATION OF CUMBRIA CARE CONSULTATION AND A REFLECTION ON THE BOARD'S 

INVOLVEMENT - update on the recommendations made by Scrutiny in November 2014 in relation to 

the implementation of the Care Act in Cumbria 

• ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY – Information on AT’s purpose, what is available, levels of use, targets and 

plans to increase its use 

• REVIEW OF LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES - update on the recommendations set by the 

Learning Disability Services Task Group (established by the Adult Scrutiny Board)  

• CARE HOMES UPDATE – maps and data for the Care Homes provided 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 17th January, 2017 10.00 am 

• CARE QUALITY COMMISSION: OUR NEW APPROACH – presentation on the new approach 

• MODERNISATION OF CUMBRIA CARE CONSULTATION - Update following recommendations made 

at meeting 22 November 2016 regarding Modernisation of Cumbria Care : Public Consultation.  

• DELIVERY OF THE EXTRA CARE HOUSING STRATEGY - update on the initial implementation of the 

Extra Care Housing Strategy 

• UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF 'COMMISSIONING STRATEGY FOR CARE AND SUPPORT 

DELIVERED BY ADULT SOCIAL CARE 2016-2020 - update on the implementation of the council’s 

Commissioning Strategy for Care and Support delivered by Adult Social Care 2016-2020 

• LEARNING DISABILITIES REVIEW - overview of work currently underway in the learning disabilities 

service area, including an update on the Transforming Care Community Model. 

• DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY STANDARDS - overview of the current issues relating to the development 

of the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) function in Cumbria 

• CARE HOMES UPDATE - data relating to residential vacancies in Local Authority Care Home 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Health & Care Integration Services Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 22nd November, 2016 10.00 am 

• MODERNISATION OF CUMBRIA CARE: PUBLIC CONSULTATION - to consider the consultation 

process and provide feedback to the proposed approach, seek assurance that the process outlined is 

comprehensive and enables residents, families and local stakeholders to be involved and engaged. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Wednesday, 12th October, 2016 10.00 am 

• PARKVIEW GARDENS (BARROW-IN-FURNESS) 

• HEALTH AND SOCIAL WELLBEING SYSTEM UPDATE REPORT  

• DAY SERVICE REVIEW  

45

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8360&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8360&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8361&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8361&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8795&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8795&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8359&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8359&Ver=4


PAGE 29 

 

• PERFORMANCE REVIEW  

• CARE HOMES UPDATE 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Health & Care Integration Services Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 23rd August, 2016 10.00 am 

• EDENSIDE RESIDENTIAL HOME, APPLEBY – outlines the consultation process and key themes in 

relation to the future of Edenside Care Home in Appleby to date. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 28th June, 2016 10.00 am 

• EDENSIDE RESIDENTIAL HOME – presentation on the consultation process in relation to the future of 

Edenside Residential Care Home and the proposed engagement with stakeholder groups 

• NEW OPERATING MODEL FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE - update on the new operating model for adult 

social care and discussion on what this means both for staff and for local residents 

• COMPLAINTS CONCERNS AND ENQUIRIES - HEALTH AND CARE, ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

ANNUAL REPORT APRIL 2015 - DECEMBER 2015 – Information on Adult Social Care – 

Compliments, Comments and Complaints Annual Report for 2015-16 

• CARE HOMES UPDATE - details of the residential vacancies in Local Authority Care Homes for April 

and May 2016 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Health & Care Integration Services Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 15th April, 2016 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT AND STRATEGIC PLAN – receive 

the Cumbria Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2015 and Strategic Plan October 2015 – 

September 2018. 

• BETTER CARE - briefing on the Better Care Fund for 2016-17.  

• REABLEMENT AND HOW IT SUPPORTS THE INTEGRATION AGENDA – briefing on the 

Reablement Service and how it supported an integrated health and care system 

• NEIGHBOURHOOD CARE INDEPENDENCE PROGRAMME - DELIVERY TO DATE AND PLANS 

FOR THE FUTURE - update on the Neighbourhood Care Independence Programme (NCIP), including 

delivery to date and plans for the future 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE - COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS & COMPLAINTS REPORT APRIL 2015 - 

DECEMBER 2016 – receive analysis of Compliments, Comments and Complaints received by the 

Health and Social Care Directorate for the 9-month period from 1 st April 2015 to 31st December 2015 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Health & Care Integration Services Review 

o Performance Working Group 

46

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8718&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8718&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8358&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8358&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8521&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8521&Ver=4


PAGE 30 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Wednesday, 13th January, 2016 10.00 am 

• IMPACT OF FLOODING ON HEALTH AND CARE - briefing on the recent floods that had hit Cumbria 

and the response to the crisis 

• COMMISSIONING STRATEGY – presentation of the Commissioning Strategy for Adult Social Care 

2015-2020 

• EXTRA CARE HOUSING – presentation of the draft Extra Care Housing and Supported Living Strategy 

2015 – 2025 

• UPDATE ON INTEGRATION OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE - Update Scrutiny on progress on the 

recommendations from the Scrutiny Review and other key developments and programmes in relation to 

the integration of health and social care 

• PREVENTION – presentation of a new Health and Wellbeing System, and what was planned over the 

coming months 

• CARE HOMES UPDATE- details of the residential vacancies in Local Authority Care Homes between 

1st April – 30th November 2015. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Tripartite meeting 

o Learning Disability Services Review 

o Health and Care Integration Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 9th October, 2015 10.00 am 

• CQC GREENGARTH INSPECTION REPORT AND RESPONSE - update on the actions being taken 

as a result of the CQC inspection of Greengarth Residential Home 

• INTEGRATION OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE - Update on progress on the recommendations from 

the Scrutiny Review and other key developments and programmes in relation to the integration of 

health and social care. 

• ADULT SOCIAL CARE - COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS, AND COMPLAINTS ANNUAL REPORT 

APRIL 2014 - MARCH 2015 – receive analysis of Compliments, Comments and Complaints received 

by the Health and Social Care Directorate for the year to 31st March 2015. 

• CARE HOMES UPDATE- details of the average bed vacancy data in Local Authority Care Homes for 

the fourth quarter of 2014, together with the number of registered beds. . 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Tripartite meeting 

o Learning Disability Services Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Tuesday, 30th June, 2015 10.00 am 

• INTEGRATION OF HEALTH AND CARE SERVICES - Update on progress on the recommendations 

from the Scrutiny Review and other key developments and programmes in relation to the integration of 

health and social care. 

• LOCAL WELFARE ASSISTANCE END OF YEAR TWO REPORT - summary of the first two year 

operations of the Local Welfare Assistance programme. 

47

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8357&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8357&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8502&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8502&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8492&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=8492&Ver=4


PAGE 31 

 

• LOCAL AREA CO-ORDINATORS - NEW WAYS OF WORKING - overview of the role of Local Area 

Coordinators 

• CARE HOMES UPDATE- details of the average bed vacancy data in Local Authority Care Homes for 

the fourth quarter of 2014, together with the number of registered beds 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Tripartite meeting 

o Learning Disability Services Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Adults - Friday, 17th April, 2015 10.00 am 

• WELFARE REFORM COMMISSION- update from the Welfare Reform Task Group to the Cumbria 

Leaders Board which includes commentary on progress up to the end of February 2015   

• INTEGRATION OF HEALTH AND CARE - verbal update on the integration of Health and Care, with a 

detailed report to be provided at the next meeting of the Board 

• CARE HOMES UPDATE- details of the average bed vacancy data in Local Authority Care Homes for 

the third quarter of 2014, together with the number of registered beds. 

• SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK FROM ABUSE AND NEGLECT - Update and analysis of adult 

safeguarding activity 

• ADULT SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD BRIEFING - informs members of new or updated items of 

significance to the Adult Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Tripartite meeting 

o Recommendations update 

o Learning Disability Services Review 

o Performance Working Group 

*All links correct at the time of collation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=7407&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=215&MId=7407&Ver=4


PAGE 32 

 

Appendix 3 – Scrutiny Advisory Board – Children and Young People 

meetings from 2015 to 2022 

The heading for each meeting is a link to the papers.  For further information and papers for this committee: 

Link to SAB - Children and Young People* 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 24th May, 2022 

10.30 am 

• CHILDREN'S PARTICIPATION REPORT - update on progress of the Cumbria Children’s Participation 

Framework; overview of the work during the Covid pandemic and key developmental activity 

• YOUTH JUSTICE UPDATE – pre-scrutiny of the Youth Justice Strategy going to Cabinet July 22 

• LGR UPDATE - update on LGR and Children’s Services 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for Schools 

and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and opportunities for further scrutiny. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Monday, 21st February, 

2022 10.30 am 

• EDUCATIONAL DISADVANTAGE - overview of tackling disadvantage and closing the attainment gap 

• EARLY HELP BOARD – update on the progress of the Cumbria Early Help Strategy; overview of the 

work during the Covid pandemic and key developmental activity 

• ADDRESSING CHILDREN AND FAMILIES’ HEALTH INEQUALITIES - overview of key issues 

regarding children and families health inequalities; update on current and planned approaches to 

addressing these, with a focus on partnership working with health 

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and items on the Board’s forward plan. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 10th December, 

2021 10.30 am 

• CHILD EXPLOITATION PROGRESS REPORT - overview of child exploitation, the current picture in 

Cumbria and developments since the last report presented in February 2021. 

• SEND IMPROVEMENT UPDATE - update on the special educational needs and disability (SEND) 

improvement programme; summary of the feedback from the last formal monitoring meeting with the 

Department of Education (DfE) and National Health Service England (NHSE) and update on the 

inspection revisit 

• EXAM RESULTS UPDATE - overview of GCSE and ‘A’ Level outcomes in 2021 

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and items on the Board’s forward plan. 

 

 

49

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=216&Year=0
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12039&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12039&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12038&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12038&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12037&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12037&Ver=4


PAGE 33 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 21st 

September, 2021 10.30 am 

• POSITIVE HOUSING PATHWAY (AGES 16-25) - presentation on the Positive Housing Pathway 

• CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN - overview of the refreshed Cumbria Children and Young 

People’s Plan 

• EDUCATION VISION FOR CUMBRIA - pre-scrutiny of the vision, outcomes, objectives and priorities 

ahead of the Education Vision going to Cabinet in October 

• OFSTED FOCUS VISIT - update the Board following the Ofsted short focused visit of children’s 

services undertaken in August 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and items on the Board’s forward plan. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 9th February, 

2021 10.30 am 

• CHILD EXPLOITATION - overview of child exploitation, the current picture in Cumbria and a look 

ahead at priorities for development 

• ACCESS TO EDUCATION - update on attendance and exclusion data in the context of COVID-19, and 

the support provided to children and families during the pandemic; details longer-term strategic work to 

support improved access to education in the future 

• SEND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT - Overview of Cumbria’s SEND 

Improvement Programme 

• COVID UPDATE - update on the impact of COVID across the children’s system. 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and items on the Board’s forward plan, 

including: 

o Children’s System 

o Cumbria Youth Justice Plan 

o Post-16 Education and Skills 

o Alternative Provision 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 4th December, 

2020 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA EARLY HELP STRATEGY - overview of the development of the Early Help Strategy and the 

Childrens Trust Board locality partnership groups 

• REGULATORY OVERVIEW - outline of the existing regulatory regimes that relate to the breadth of 

children’s services, highlighting Covid impact, with current status update; Overview of the North West 

Peer Challenge Process and a recommendation that Scrutiny review the self-evaluation submissions at 

a future meeting 

• COVID-19 UPDATE - update on impact of Covid on the children’s system, its plans for recovery and a 

look ahead to priorities for children and families 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and items on the Board’s forward plan. 

50

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12036&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=12036&Ver=4
http://moderngov.ccc/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10367&Ver=4
http://moderngov.ccc/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10367&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10366&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10366&Ver=4


PAGE 34 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 11th September, 

2020 10.30 am 

• CHILDREN'S COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY IN CUMBRIA - update on the how the 

children’s system has responded to COVID-19, its plans for recovery and a look ahead to priorities for 

children and families. 

• CUMBRIA YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE: WORKING THROUGH COVID 19 AND BEYOND - - 

presentation on the impact of COVID-19 and the transition to recovery of the Cumbria Youth Offending 

Service 

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Overview of the Board’s business and items on the Board’s forward plan. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 20th December, 

2019 10.30 am 

• SEND UPDATE - presentation on progress in implementing the SEND Written Statement of Intent. 

• CONTEXTUAL SAFEGUARDING - presentation on Contextual Safeguarding, and the outcomes of the 

Local Government Association’s Peer Review of Contextual Safeguarding in Cumbria 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE- updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Update Scrutiny on the activity of the Board and relevant items in the Cabinet 

Forward Plan, including: 

o Changes to School Placements 

o Making Your Mark Report 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Monday, 23rd 

September, 2019 10.30 am 

• SEND WRITTEN STATEMENT OF ACTION - presentation on the joint written statement of action 

published in response to the SEND joint local area inspection 

• NEW SAFEGUARDING ARRANGEMENTS - presentation on the new Cumbria Safeguarding 

Children’s Partnership (CSCP). 

• OSTED HUB FOCUSED VISIT - presentation on the outcome of Ofsted’s focused visit to Cumbria in 

August 2019. 

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATES - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Update Scrutiny on the activity of the Board and relevant items in the Cabinet 

Forward Plan 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Thursday, 30th May, 

2019 10.30 am 

• SEND LOCAL INSPECTION - presentation on the outcomes of Ofsted’s SEND local inspection 

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• CORPORATE DIRECTOR'S UPDATE – update from the Executive Director People 

51

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10365&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10365&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10362&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10362&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10361&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10361&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10360&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=10360&Ver=4


PAGE 35 

 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update Scrutiny on the activity of the Board and relevant items in the Cabinet 

Forward Plan. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 12th February, 

2019 10.30 am 

• SOCIAL WORK ACADEMY AND SOCIAL WORK RECRUITMENT - update on Social Work 

Recruitment including the Academy. 

• CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION UPDATE - presentation on work to tackle CSE in Cumbria 

• BEING A CHILD IN CUMBRIA - presentation by Barnardo’s on their report on the views and 

experiences of 8-12 year olds in Cumbria 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update Scrutiny on the activity of the Board and relevant items in the Cabinet 

Forward Plan 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 7th December, 

2018 10.30 am 

• CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT UPDATE - standing item that provides the Board an update on the work 

of the Children’s Improvement Board 

• CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN – consultation on the refresh of the Children and Young 

People’s Plan 

• SCHOOL ATTAINMENT - update on school attainment for 2018.  

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATES - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update Scrutiny on the activity of the Board and relevant items in the Cabinet 

Forward Plan, including: 

o Item referred from Scrutiny Performance Working Group - Children’s Services budget pressure 

and wanted to confirm what arrangements are in place between Scrutiny and the Corporate 

Parenting Board to oversee the delivery of the CLA Sufficiency Strategy. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 14th September, 

2018 10.30 am 

• SCHOOL EXCLUSIONS - update on school exclusions in Cumbria since 2014 in line with changes to 

national policy and exclusions nationally and regionally 

• CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT PLAN - overview of how Scrutiny will be involved in reviewing the 

Children’s Improvement Plan  

• YOUTH SERVICE PROVISION - update on Youth Services in Cumbria – historic and current provision 

• CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet 

Members for Children’s Services and for Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update of Board activity, and to notify the Board of items for the next Board 

meeting and any children’s related Cabinet decisions on the Forward Plan, including: 

o Recommendations arising from the private meeting on the Youth Justice Strategy 

o Recommendations for the private meeting on School’s Admissions consultation 

 

52

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9614&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9614&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9613&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9613&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9610&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9610&Ver=4


PAGE 36 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 29th May, 2018 

10.30 am 

• DEEP DIVE ON APPRENTICESHIPS - overview of the policy and priorities for apprenticeships and the 

current Council apprenticeship programme; outcomes of first year and an indication of the 2018 

apprenticeship recruitment programme 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S UPDATE- update from the Executive Director People (Deputy Chief 

Executive) 

• BOARD BRIEFING – briefing activity since the previous Board, proposed work programme that is due 

to go to Scrutiny Management Board and the forward plan of Cabinet decisions relevant to children and 

young people 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 20th February, 

2018 10.30 am 

• CORPORATE DIRECTOR UPDATE ON OFSTED - presentation on the Ofsted recommendations from 

the November 2017 inspection of Children’s Services 

• REGIONAL ADOPTION AGENCY – update on progress to establish a Regional Adoption Agency. 

• CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION UPDATE - update on multi-agency work to tackle Child Sexual 

Exploitation (CSE). 

• ALTERNATIVE PROVISION UPDATE - update on progress in developing the proposals around 

Alternative Provision 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• CORPORATE DIRECTOR'S UPDATE- update from the Corporate Director – Children and Families 

Services 

• BOARD BRIEFING – briefing activity since the previous Board, proposed work programme that is due 

to go to Scrutiny Management Board and the forward plan of Cabinet decisions relevant to children and 

young people, including: 

o Ofsted Inspection 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Monday, 18th December, 

2017 10.30 am 

• CHILDREN'S COMPLAINTS  - presentation of the Complaints Annual Report 

• SCHOOL ATTAINMENT DATA 2017 - summary of 2017 school attainment for the main indicators that 

were of interest to Scrutiny 

• REVIEW OF ALTERNATIVE PROVISION - pre-scrutiny of proposals to establish new Alternative 

Provision in Cumbria. 

• TRANSFORMING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, 

GOVERNMENT GREEN PAPER – to seek Scrutiny’s input to any response from Cumbria 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• CORPORATE DIRECTOR'S UPDATE- update from the Corporate Director – Children and Families 

Services 

53

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9608&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9608&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9607&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9607&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9604&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9604&Ver=4


PAGE 37 

 

• BOARD BRIEFING – briefing activity since the previous Board, proposed work programme that is due 

to go to Scrutiny Management Board and the forward plan of Cabinet decisions relevant to children and 

young people, including: 

o Participating in the Ofsted review in November 

o Working jointly with the Corporate Parenting Board on responding to Government consultation 

on Corporate Parenting Principles. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 15th September, 

2017 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA'S CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT JOURNEY – presentation setting out the Council’s and 

partners’ progress in implementing the Children’s Improvement programme. 

• CUMBRIA LSCB EARLY HELP STRATEGY - presentation on the Early Help Strategy Refresh 

• CABINET MEMBER UPDATES - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – briefing on changes to Membership, activity since the previous Board, proposed 

work programme that is due to go to Scrutiny Management Board, including: 

o Scrutinising activities related to Children’s improvement and the Youth Justice agenda. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 17th February, 

2017 10.00 am 

• SCHOOL AND EDUCATION POLICY – presentation on the key aspects of school policy in England, 

the structure of schooling in England and how it related to Cumbria, the role of the Regional School 

Commissioner and the relationship between the Council, the School Forum, CASL and the DfE/RSC. 

• SCHOOL ATTAINMENT - presentation on Educational Performance 2016.  

• CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT - presentation on the Children’s Improvement Update: 

Letter from the Minister following DfE Review, Current Performance, Next Step, Schools Update 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 18th October, 

2016 10.00 am 

• CHILDREN MISSING FROM EDUCATION – briefing on the work in Cumbria relating to children who 

are missing from education in the light of a national report from the government that was shared with 

Corporate Parenting Board. 

• CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION ANNUAL UPDATE - annual update on progress to date in relation to 

the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) in Cumbria  

• CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT UPDATE - update on the most recent information presented to the 

Children’s Improvement Board 

• INCLUSION STRATEGY - presentation on the Inclusive Cumbria Review 2016. 

• CABINET MEMBER - CHILDREN'S SERVICES - update on key issues relating to Children’s Services 

• CABINET MEMBER - SCHOOLS & LEARNING - update on work relating to the Schools and Learning 

Portfolio 

• BOARD BRIEFING – Informs members of new or updated items of significance, including: 

o Autism Task and Finish Review update 

 

54

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9602&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=9602&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8734&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8734&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8530&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8530&Ver=4


PAGE 38 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Thursday, 28th July, 

2016 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE STRATEGIC PLAN 2016 to 2017 – overview of the 2016-

17 plan 

• CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER WITH DISABILITIES  - briefing on the outcome of a review of all disabled 

children who are cared for under section 20 provision of the Children Act (1989) 

• CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT UPDATE - update on the most recent information presented to the 

Children’s Improvement Board 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update Scrutiny on the forward plan and any items relevant to the business of the 

Board, including: 

o CAMHS and Autism Task and Finish Groups 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 10th May, 2016 

1.30 pm 

• TARGETTED YOUTH SUPPORT STRATEGY AND IMPLEMENTATION OF 11- 19 SERVICES 

COMING IN HOUSE - presentation on Targeted Youth Support 

• INTEGRATING 0-19 HEALTHY CHILD PROGRAMME EARLY HELP SERVICES -  presentation on 

integrating the 0-19 Healthy Child Programme and Early Help Services.  

• HEADSTART PROJECT AND UPDATE ON EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND MENTAL WELLBEING FOR 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE - update on the Cumbria HeadStart Project describing where it fits 

in terms of a whole system approach to improving and supporting the emotional and mental wellbeing 

of children and young people. 

• NATIONAL SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULA – briefing to the key issues from the 2 consultations 

launched by the Department for Education relating to the future funding for schools and school 

services. 

• CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT UPDATE – update on improvement activity within Children’s Services 

and across the partnership since the last meeting of the Scrutiny Board in February 

• CABINET MEMBER BRIEFINGS - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update the board on the forward plan of agenda items and agree any additional 

items. To provide an update on any task and finish groups, including: 

o CAMHS and Autism Task and Finish Groups updates  

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 19th February, 

2016 10.00 am 

• INCREASING PARTICIPATION, REDUCING NEET - update on how well the Local Authority supports 

young people to meet their duty to participate in education and training (Raising Participation) and 

supports NEET young people into Education, Employment and Training [EET]. 

• IMPROVEMENT AND SAFEGUARDING UPDATE – update on improvement activity undertaken within 

children’s services and across the partnership based on information that taken to the January 

Children’s Improvement Board 

55

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8529&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8529&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8528&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8528&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8527&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8527&Ver=4


PAGE 39 

 

• CHILDREN'S COMPLAINTS REPORT AND APRIL - DEC 2015 – presentation on annual complaints 

report 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update to the business of the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Board, 

including: 

o CAMHS Task and Finish Group 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 22nd 

December, 2015 10.00 am 

• CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE PLAN – presentation of the Children and Young People’s Plan 

(CYPP) 

• CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT PLAN - update on progress based on information that was shared with 

the most recent Children’s Improvement Board 

• CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER PROMISE – update on the new Corporate Parenting Pledge for children 

and young people who are looked after and care leavers, known as Cumbria’s Promise 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER, CHILDREN'S SERVICES UPDATE - - update from the Cabinet Members for 

Children’s Services 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER, SCHOOLS AND LEARNING UPDATE - update from the Cabinet Members for 

Schools and Learning. 

• EDUCATIONAL OUTCOMES FOR CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER 2015 - overview of the 2015 

education outcomes for children looked after (CLA) 2015 at all key stage 

• AUTISM SPECTRUM CONDITION - overview of the processes and services involved in diagnosis and 

provision of support for children and young people with an autistic spectrum condition, and 

developments in services for children and families. 

• CORPORATE DIRECTOR'S UPDATE - update from the Corporate Director – Children’s Services 

• BOARD BRIEFING – update to the business of the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Board, 

including  

o CAMHS Task and Finish Group 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Friday, 16th October, 

2015 10.00 am 

• COMMISSIONING SCHOOL AGE NURSING SERVICES - presentation on the 0-19 Healthy Child 

Programme Consultation 

• LSCB ANNUAL REPORT 2014 to 2015 – presentation of the Annual Report 2014-2015 for the Cumbria 

Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB). 

• ACCOMMODATION FOR 16/17 YEAR OLDS  - update members on the progress being made in 

improving our response to young people who present as homelessness. 

• SCHOOL PLACES/ADMISSIONS/SMALL SCHOOL VIABILITY -  information on school places in 

Cumbria, pressure points in respect of school admissions, special schools, Pupil Referral Units and 

additional alternative provision, issue of developer contributions towards school places through 

s106/CIL agreements, work that will shortly be undertaken through the Cumbria Alliance of System 

Leaders (CASL) and the Local Alliances of System Leaders (LASLs) to discuss the long term viability 

and sustainability issues that are facing many of the small schools in Cumbria 

56

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8578&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8578&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8526&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8526&Ver=4


PAGE 40 

 

• CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION TASK AND FINISH GROUP, CABINET RESPONSE - briefing on the 

outcome of the Cabinet response to the recommendations of the task and finish review of Child Sexual 

Exploitation in Cumbria   

• SAFEGUARDING AND IMPROVEMENT UPDATE - update on progress in the delivery of the 

Children’s Improvement Plan, which has replaced the Safeguarding Improvement Plan following the 

Ofsted report in May 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - informs of new or updated items of significance to the Children and Young People 

Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o CAMHS Task and Finish Group 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 28th July, 2015 

10.00 am 

• UPDATE ON OFSTED INSPECTION AND CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT PLAN - presentation on the 

recent Ofsted Inspection and Children’s Improvement Plan 

• DEVELOPMENT OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD - sought the views of the Children and 

Young People’s Scrutiny Advisory Board on the development of a Corporate Parenting Board 

• PROGRESS ON SOCIAL WORK ACADEMY – update on the Social Work Academy 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – briefing paper on new or updated items of significance to the Children and Young 

People Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Ofsted Report 

o Update on task and Finish groups - Child Sexual Exploitation and Child and Adolescent Mental 

Health Services (CAHMS) 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Children and Young People - Tuesday, 12th May, 2015 

1.30 pm 

• VIRTUAL HEAD - information about the work of the Virtual School Head 

• ELECTIVE HOME EDUCATION - information about Elective Home Education in Cumbria 

• YOUTH JUSTICE STRATEGIC PLAN 2015to16 – sought support for the initial draft of the Youth 

Offending Service (YOS) Strategic Plan; update on the progress of the YOS from 2014/15 into 2015/16 

• A NEW APPROACH TO TRANSITION - update Scrutiny on progress in relation to Transition 

arrangements for young people with disabilities, specifically the response to Scrutiny recommendations 

for developments in transition arrangements. 

• PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE - updates from the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and for 

Schools and Learning. 

• BOARD BRIEFING – informs of new or updated items of significance to the Children and Young People 

Scrutiny Advisory Board, including: 

o Tripartite Meeting 

o Child Sexual Exploitation – information sessions for members 

o Child Sexual Exploitation – Task and Finish Group 

o Safeguarding 

*All links correct at the time of collation 

57

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=7529&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=7529&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8116&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=8116&Ver=4


PAGE 41 

 

Appendix 4 – Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities and Place meetings 

from 2015 to 2022 

The heading for each meeting is a link to the papers.  For further information and papers for this committee: 

Link to SAB - Communities and Place* 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 10th June, 2022 10.00 

am 

• FIRE SERVICES PERFORMANCE – summary of the current approach to Learning Lessons within 

Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service and Cumbria County Council, detailing integrated processes that are 

in place to identify lessons 

• HIGHWAYS INFORMATION ASSET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM - Update on the Highways Information 

Asset Management System 

• DRAFT LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY - presentation of the draft local flood risk 

management strategy 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Recommendation on Independent Planning Review 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Thursday, 10th March, 2022 

10.00 am 

• UPDATE ON STRATEGIC ISSUES FACING CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE (CFRS) - 

update on strategic issues currently facing CFRS, with a view to informing discussion as to the Scrutiny 

work programme over the next twelve months 

• CUMBRIA COASTAL STRATEGY UPDATE - presentation on the Cumbria Coastal Strategy. 

• INDEPENDENT PLANNING REPORT, INTERIM REPORT - update following the Scrutiny paper of 2nd 

September 2021, entitled Independent Planning Review Outcome Report: Energy from Waste Facility, 

Kingmoor, Carlisle (Section 73 Planning Application), and the update paper of 22nd November 2021. 

• CLEAN AND INCLUSIVE GROWTH - advise on the work of the Council to promote clean and inclusive 

growth within the county 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Update on the informal session regarding Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service Governance for the 

future 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Thursday, 2nd September, 

2021 10.00 am 

• NATIONAL BUS STRATEGY FOR ENGLAND: BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS PLAN - presentation 

on the National Bus Strategy for England 

• CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE, IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE - update on the delivery of 

the Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service (CFRS) Improvement Plan and how CFRS has responded to the 

recent Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) Covid-19 

thematic inspection 

• NATIONAL WASTE POLICY UPDATE AND IMPLICATIONS - an outline of the waste industry in terms 

of emerging policy and how this will impact on Local Authorities 

58

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1069&Year=0
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=11496&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=11496&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=11495&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=11495&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=11493&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=11493&Ver=4


PAGE 42 

 

• INDEPENDENT PLANNING REVIEW OUTCOME  - report on the outcome of the Independent 

Planning Review single case study into the ‘Verus’ Energy from Waste (EfW) Section 73 (S73) planning 

application. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 12th March, 2021 

10.00 am 

• COVID-19 RESPONSE: CUSTOMER AND COMMUNITY SERVICES - n overview of the work 

undertaken by Customer and Community in response to the COVID pandemic. With particular 

emphasis on the Library and Archive Service 

• RESPONSE TO CONCURRENT EVENTS IN THE COVID ERA – presentation of the approach taken 

by the Local Resilience Forum in planning for dealing with concurrent events, and the 

recommendations that should be taken forward. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Update on the Provision of infrastructure to support new development - Task and Finish report 

o The Scrutiny Development Plan 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Tuesday, 17th November, 

2020 10.00 am 

• ROADSIDE VERGES AND WILDFLOWERS - presentation on Roadside Verges and Wildflowers 

outlining the Council’s responsibilities with regards to roadside verge maintenance and when and how it 

took place. 

• CUMBRIA TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN - to comment and feedback on the proposed 

approach to developing the Cumbria Transport Infrastructure Plan, ahead of public consultation in 

February 

• ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCIAL AND WASTE IMPACTS OF PLASTIC ROADS PILOTING - 

presentation outlining the Live Labs Project, a project designed to investigate the sustainability and 

suitability of developing a surfacing operation that utilises waste plastic as an additive in bituminous 

asphalt to provide a stronger, longer lasting and more resilient road network whilst conveying a local 

waste for local roads ethos.   

• NEW HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY - update on the Cumbria Highways Asset 

Management Strategy which was approved by Cabinet in July 2020. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o The Boards’ action tracker 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Thursday, 24th September, 

2020 10.00 am 

• DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY - overview of the proposed Digital Infrastructure Strategy for 

comment before submission to Cabinet for their consideration 

• CUMBRIA CLIMATE CHANGE GROUP & CARBON update on the work of the Cumbria Climate 

Change Group, zero carbon Cumbria, the successful Carbon Action Fund Lottery Bid; outline of current 

Carbon Management activity and proposed next steps 

• FLOOD RESPONSE PLAN – presentation outlining the Flood Response Plan 

59

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10771&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10771&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10770&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10770&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10769&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10769&Ver=4


PAGE 43 

 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Approach for further scrutiny regarding verge maintenance 

o Approach for tracking recommendations by the Board 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Thursday, 12th March, 2020 

10.00 am 

• FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE INSPECTION OUTCOME AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN - updates on 

the outcome of the Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services 

(HMICFRS) inspection of Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service in 2019 and the improvement work 

underway to address the areas highlighted by the inspectors, and on the national context following the 

publication of the ‘State of Fire and Rescue: The Annual Assessment of Fire and Rescue Services in 

England 2019’ 

• HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY – presentation of the refreshed Highway Asset 

Management Strategy  

• IMPLEMENTATION OF HIGHWAYS PERMIT SCHEME - presentation outlined the objectives behind 

the Council’s move to a Permit Scheme. 

• SCOPE FOR TASK AND FINISH GROUP - draft scope for a Task and Finish Group with a  focus on 

the impacts and needs of new development in respect of physical and social infrastructure. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Monday, 25th November, 

2019 10.00 am 

• EQUALITY - update on progress in implementing the recommendations from the Task and Finish 

Group on Equality Objectives. 

• RURAL STRATEGY AND LOBBYING - NATIONAL DEVELOPMENTS AND LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES 

– presentation on Lobbying on Rural Matters in a range of areas such as education, transport and 

accessing healthcare. 

• APPROACH TO DEVELOPING AND MANAGING SECTION 38 AND 278 AGREEMENTS – 

presentation on Section 278 and Section 38 Agreements.   

• RAPID RESPONSE VEHICLES, EVALUATION REPORT – outcome of the 6-month pilot of Rapid 

Response Vehicles in Arnside and Staveley presented. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Thursday, 5th September, 

2019 10.00 am 

• WASTE AND THIRD SECTOR TASK AND FINISH RECOMMENDATIONS, SIX MONTH UPDATE 

REPORT - update on the recommendations from the Reuse and the 3rd Sector findings 

• HIGHWAYS DIGITAL SERVICE REDESIGN, CUSTOMER AND MEMBER – presentation on the 

Highways Digital Service Redesign and improvements to the Customer and Member Experience  

• HIGHWAYS PERMITTING AND HIGHWAYS CONDITION AND INSPECTION - update on Highways 

Permitting, and the Highways Condition and Inspection Schemes 

• LOCAL INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY UPDATE – presentation on the Local Industrial Strategy. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

60

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10767&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10767&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10766&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10766&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10765&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10765&Ver=4


PAGE 44 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 7th June, 2019 10.00 

am 

• HIGHWAYS PERMIT SCHEME – presentation on the progress of the introduction of the Highways 

Permit Scheme in Cumbria, bringing it in line with national guidance 

• HIGHWAYS CONDITION AND INSPECTION TEAM – presentation on the introduction of the new 

Highways Condition and Inspection Teams 

• WASTE NATIONAL POLICY CHANGES AND IMPLICATIONS – update on the current waste policy 

changes and examination of the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) 

Resources and Waste Strategy published on 18 December 2018,with a summary of the key 

consultations associated with the strategy (launched to date) and the implications for the Council 

• SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS) – information on what a Section 106 

Agreement is and how it can used to secure contributions to mitigate the impact from development on 

infrastructure and services the County Council is responsible for; update on the sessions that have 

taken place with all the Local Committees to explain what a Section 106 Agreement is, how at it can 

used 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 15th March, 2019 

10.15 am 

• CABINET RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE WASTE AND THIRD SECTOR TASK AND 

FINISH GROUP - consider the response of the Council’s Cabinet to the report of the Waste and Third 

Sector Task and Finish Group 

• REQUEST TO ESTABLISH A TASK AND FINISH GROUP, KESWICK TO PENRITH RAILWAY LINE - 

verbal request from Eden Local Committee to establish a Task and Finish Group to review the 

feasibility of reopening the Penrith to Keswick. 

• FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE INSPECTION PREPARATION SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP - 

update on the work of the Working Group established by the Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory 

Board to engage in the Council’s preparation ahead of inspection 

• SEND TRANSPORT PILOT, EVALUATION - presentation evaluating the SEND Transport Pilot 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o A small number of Members of the Board visited the United Utilities West Cumbria Pipeline site 

o Members of the Scrutiny Performance Working Group visited North West Fire Control 

o The Waste and Third Sector Task and Finish Group presented its report and recommendation 

to the Council’s Cabinet; 

o The Fire Inspection Working Group completed its review of the 3 inspection elements and the 

related self-assessment activity to date. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Tuesday, 20th November, 

2018 10.15 am 

• INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN, UPDATE - opportunity to discuss progress against the 

IRMP Year 3 Action Plan, and to ask questions of the Service. 

• ARRA WORKING - update as to what stage Area Planning had reached 

61

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10764&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=10764&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9168&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9168&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9167&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9167&Ver=4


PAGE 45 

 

• BORDERLANDS GROWTH DEAL AND LOCAL INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY - presentation on the Local 

Enterprise Partnerships (LEP) and presentation detailing the ambition of the Borderlands Deal 

proposal  

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Consider the Council’s Equality Action Plan 

o The Waste and Third Sector Task and Finish Group update 

o Fire and Rescue Service – inspection working group 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 7th September, 2018 

10.15 am 

• CHANGES TO PREVENT - briefing detailing announcements and implications arising from the 

refreshed Contest Strategy, released by the Home Office and an update as to the delivery of actions 

against the Prevent element of the Strategy in Cumbria. 

• HIGHWAYS PERMIT SCHEME - presentation on the Highways Permit Scheme and how this would 

benefit road users with Cumbria 

• FINDINGS OF THE PLASTIC AUDIT - overview of Waste Prevention activities and actions within 

Cumbria County Council’s corporate buildings driven by the Internal Waste Prevention Group 

• WRAP UPDATE – update on the progress of the government funded Waste and Resources Action 

Plan (WRAP) Consistency in Recycling Programme 

• CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE RAPID RESPONSE VEHICLES – presentation on the 

proposed pilot of Rapid Response Vehicles (RRV) at Staveley and Arnside. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Equality Objectives Task and Finish Group update 

o Waste and Third Sector Task and Finish Group update 

o Fire and Rescue Service – inspection working group 

o Visit the United Utilities Thirlmere – West Cumbria Pipeline project site 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 15th June, 2018 10.15 

am 

• FIRE INSPECTION - update in regard to a self-assessment carried out by the Fire and Rescue Service 

against Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) 

• HIMS IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE - presentation on the Highways Integrated Management System 

(HIMS) 

• HIGHWAYS CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE - presentation on the Highways Customer Strategy. 

• INTERGRATED TRANSPORT – presentation on a new Integrated Transport Service for Special 

Educational Needs and Disabilities, (SENDS) and Adult Social Care (ASC). 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Briefing note on the Management and Responsibility of Closed Landfill Sites 

o Briefing note on Section 106 Agreements 

o Waste reuse and recycling task group update 

o Equality Objectives Task and Finish Group update 

 

62

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9166&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9166&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9165&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9165&Ver=4


PAGE 46 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 16th March, 2018 

10.00 am 

• MECHANICAL BIOLOGICAL TREATMENT PLANTS (MBT) - overview of the Mechanical Biological 

Treatment (MBT) facilities, that form part of the PPP Contract with Renewi Cumbria Limited (RCL – 

formerly Shanks). 

• HOUSEHOLD RECYCLING TARGETS - review of the Recycling performance information for the 

County Council and the District Councils 

• SCOPE FOR RECYCLING AND REUSE TASK AND FINISH GROUP -  draft scope for work to explore 

how recycling and reuse of household waste can be maximised through work with the 3rd sector. 

• THIRLMERE TO WEST CUMBRIA PIPELINE – verbal update on progress of Thirlmere to West 

Cumbria Pipeline 

• PERMIT SCHEME - Presentation on working arrangements between Highways Department and Utility 

Companies 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Integrated Risk Management Plan 

o Equality Objectives Task and Finish Group 

o Referral from Scrutiny Performance Working Group - street sweeping waste 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Monday, 27th November, 

2017 10.15 am 

• WASTE PREVENTION - overview of the County Council’s waste prevention function 

• INFRASTRUCTURE REPORT – details the broad purpose and approach to infrastructure planning 

activity being undertaken by Cumbria County Council. 

• FIRE INSPECTIONS – update on Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 

Services (HMICFRS), the associated framework and potential timeframes; Give an indication of 

preparation needed for the new inspection; Agree the appropriate level of Member Scrutiny, 

governance and support against the key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) / Work streams 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Update on progress with the recommendations from the recent task and finish groups 

o Scrutiny Performance Working Group referral - variances in rates of recycling across the county 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 8th September, 2017 

10.00 am 

• UPDATE ON HIMS - briefing on progress made in the new HIMS system and current status 

• FIRE SERVICE INSPECTION PREPARATIONS - overview of the new fire inspection framework and 

indication of what preparation needed 

• WASTE RECYCLING – presentation on the structure for recycling in the two-tier structure of the 

County and the collaborative arrangements in place through the Cumbria Waste Strategic Partnership. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Recommended key topics for consideration by the Communities and Place Board over the 

coming year 

63

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9950&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9950&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9949&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9949&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9162&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=9162&Ver=4


PAGE 47 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Friday, 17th March, 2017 

10.00 am 

• RECYCLING OF LARGE DOMESTIC APPLIANCES - report on recycling of white goods (large 

domestic appliances)  

• TRANSPORT AND YOUNG PEOPLE TASK AND FINISH GROUP - response to the recommendations 

of the Transport and Young People Task Group. This followed the presentation of a survey carried out 

by the Cumbria Youth Parliament on bus services for 11-19 years old in November 2014 

• UNITED UTILITIES UPDATE IN THE BARROW - update on the ongoing work taking place in Barrow 

on the drainage systems provided by United Utilities following a partnership approach being undertaken 

by both organisations to resolve a number of issue 

• HIMS SYSTEM - HIMS Launch update and a summary of the background to the system 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Overview of issues that this Board has covered over the last four years 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Monday, 21st November, 

2016 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE: WHOLETIME AND ON-CALL FIREFIGHTER 

RECRUITMENT AND ON-CALL FIRE STATION APPLIANCE AVAILABILITY - update on Cumbria Fire 

and Rescue Service (CFRS) wholetime and on-call Firefighter recruitment campaign and on-call fire 

station appliance availability 

• WINTER BRIEFING AND SNOW CHAMPION UPDATE - presentation on adverse weather and winter 

maintenance which included an update on the Adverse Weather Policy, winter maintenance, weather 

forecasting, salt management, winter fleet, snow champions and parish salt schemes. 

• UPDATE ON CAPITAL PROGRAMME - presentation on capital programme covering: Children and 

Families Services, Health Care and Community Services, Economy and Highways Service, Highways 

and LEP Projects, Achievements in the last three months 

• INFRASTRUCTURE RECOVERY UPDATE – presentation on Infrastructure Recovery since Storm 

Desmond. 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Offer from the Community Safety Team to observe them in action 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Monday, 12th September, 

2016 10.00 am 

• FIRE SERVICE RESPONSE TO ISSUES RAISED AT PERFORMANCE WORKING GROUP – 

presentation on Day Crewing Plus and Accidental Dwelling Fires. 

• FLOODING UPDATE – presentation on Multi-agency response, Multi-agency recovery, Government 

funding, Section 19 investigations, Winter ready, Next steps. 

• HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY – presentation on the Highways Asset Management 

Strategy.  

• TRANSPORT AND YOUNG PEOPLE TASK GROUP UPDATE – verbal update on the 

recommendations of the Transport and Young People Task Group 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

64

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8255&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8255&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8253&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8253&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8251&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8251&Ver=4


PAGE 48 

 

o The proposed way forward for the review of the Council’s equality objectives 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Tuesday, 14th June, 2016 

10.00 am 

• MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS UPDATE - presentation on Major Infrastructure Projects 

• PARKING SERVICES UPDATE- update on the progress of the Council’s Parking Services team during 

the 2015/16 financial year 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board. 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Monday, 23rd November, 

2015 10.00 am 

• NUGEN AND MAJOR PROJECTS – presentation on NuGen and Major Projects. 

• LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE – update on the work of the LEP in particular: 

Cumbria Infrastructure Plan, Development of a Devolution Deal for Cumbria, Growth Deal, LEP Audit 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Transport for Young People Task and Finish Group 

o Scrutiny Highways Workshop 

Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place - Tuesday, 16th June, 2015 

11.00 am 

• PRESENTATIONS FROM UNITED UTILITIES AND HIGHWAYS TEAM - presentations from United 

Utilities and CCC Highways Team 

• BOARD BRIEFING - Work programme; Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions; Activity and updates 

following the last meeting of the Board including: 

o Tripartite meeting  

o Visit to Fire and Rescue control centre Warrington 

o Transport for Young People Task and Finish Group 

 

*All links correct at the time of collation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8250&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8250&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8248&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=8248&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=7607&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1069&MId=7607&Ver=4


PAGE 49 

 

Appendix 5 – Cumbria Health Scrutiny meetings from 2015 to 2022 

The heading for each meeting is a link to the papers.  For further information and papers for this committee: 

Link to Cumbria Health Scrutiny * 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 25th July, 2022 10.30 am 

• HEALTH AND CARE ACT – update on the changes to the Health Scrutiny Function resulting from the 

recent Health & Care Act 2022 

• MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES AT CUMBRIA, NORTHUMBERLAND, TYNE AND WEAR 

FOUNDATION - presentation by Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust 

• UPDATE ON NHS DENTISTRY IN NORTH CUMBRIA – presentation  

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Health and Adults Task and Finish Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 18th May, 2022 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - minutes of the meeting of 

the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 15 March 2022  

• UROLOGY SERVICES AT UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF MORECAMBE BAY NHS FOUNDATION - 

details of the Independent Investigation into Urology Services at University Hospitals of Morecambe 

Bay NHS Foundation Trust. 

• INPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH PROVISION ACROSS SOUTH CUMBRIA - feedback on the planned 

changes to Inpatient Mental Health provision across South Cumbria 

• NORTH WEST AMBULANCE SERVICE PROVION IN CUMBRIA – presentation  

• LIBERTY PROTECTION SAFEGUARDS - report from North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation 

Trust 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 

o appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Health and Care Act – Implications for Health Scrutiny 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 10.30 am 

• IMPACT OF COVID 19 PANDEMIC – updates on the impact of the pandemic on other health 

conditions which were not able to be treated and the measures being put in place to address these 

across the North and South systems 

• STAFF/RECRUITMENT - update on the current position with staffing and recruitment, with a particular 

emphasis on the impact of the pandemic on international recruitment 

• EDEN YOUTH COUNCIL - presentation from Eden Youth Council on mental health issues 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 

o appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

 

66

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=152&Year=0
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12133&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12133&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12132&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12131&Ver=4


PAGE 50 

 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 7th December, 2021 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - minutes of the Cumbria 

and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 9 November 2021 

• IMPACT OF COVID 19 PANDEMIC - verbal updates from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay 

NHS Trust and North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

• ACCESS TO PRIMARY CARE AND PHARMACY - joint presentation from NHS North Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Group and NHS Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group  

• LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA PATHOLOGY COLLABORATION – presentation on the 

planned formation of a single pathology service for Lancashire and South Cumbria by 2023 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 4th October, 2021 10.30 am 

• IMPACT OF COVID 19 PANDEMIC - verbal updates from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay 

NHS Trust and North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

• UPDATE ON HEALTH AND CARE BILL IMPLEMENTATION AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM - 

joint report from the Chief Operating Officer - North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group and Chief 

Officer - NHS Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group on the introduction of the Health and 

Care Bill 2021-22 

• ENHANCED NETWORK MODEL OF ACUTE STROKE CARE AND REHABILITATION IN 

LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA – presentation from Lancashire and South Cumbria Health and 

Care Partnership 

• UPDATE ON NHS DENTISTRY IN NORTH - presentation from NHS England and NHS Improvement 

• ROWANWOOD WARD, CARLETON CLINIC, CARLISLE, TEMPORARY CLOSURE - report 

from Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

• AMBULANCE PROVISION IN ALSTON - update on ambulance provision in Alston from North West 

Ambulance Service 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Lead Health Scrutiny Member Meetings 

o Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 21st July, 2021 10.30 am 

• COVID 19 UPDATE - verbal updates from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Trust and 

North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

• NEW HOSPITALS PROGRAMME UPDATE - report from Lancashire and South Cumbria New 

Hospitals Programme 

• NORTH CUMBRIA INTEGRATED CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST CARE QUALITY COMMISSION 

ACTION - report from the North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust 

• NORTH CUMBRIA STROKE SERVICE JULY 2021 - report from North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS 

Foundation Trust 

• COMMUNITY HOSPITALS BED BASE REVIEW - joint report from Morecambe Bay Clinical 

Commissioning Group and University Hospital Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust - progress 

update of Morecambe Bay CCG’s and University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Trust’s engagement 

activities for the Community Hospitals Bed Base Review in South Cumbria 

67

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12130&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12223&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12223&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=12128&Ver=4


PAGE 51 

 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Lead Health Scrutiny Member Meetings  

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 23rd February, 2021 10.30 am 

• COVID 19 UPDATE - verbal updates from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Trust and 

North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

• MENTAL HEALTH SERVICE USER FEEDBACK - presentation from Healthwatch Cumbria on the 

experiences of people accessing mental health services during the COVID 19 pandemic 

• MENTAL HEALTH IMPACT OF COVID 19 PANDEMIC AND FUTURE PLANS - report by Lancashire 

and South Cumbria NHS Foundation Trust regarding Mental Health, Learning Disability and Autism 

Services and the Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic and Future Plan  

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Lead Health Scrutiny Member Meetings  

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 15th December, 2020 10.30 am 

• RAMSAY UNIT, FURNESS GENERAL HOSPITAL - update on the challenges facing some of the 

mental health, learning disability and autism services within South Cumbria, to share Lancashire & 

South Cumbria Foundation Trust’s (LSCFT) improvement work to date and to have early discussions 

regarding a scoping and involvement exercise being launched regarding Mental Health inpatient 

provision in South Cumbria 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE UPDATE, COMMUNITY – update on community hospitals in the 

county. 

• HOSPITAL ACQUIRED INFECTIONS - report regarding the Infection Prevention and Control Board 

Assurance Framework 

• UPDATE ON ENGAGEMENT PROCESS REGARDING POSSIBLE CHANGES TO THE NHS 

PODIATRIC SERVICE PROVIDED BY UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS MORECAMBE BAY NHS TRUST - 

update on Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group’s engagement process regarding the 

proposal to implement consistent referral and treatment criteria for the podiatry service provided by 

University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Trust 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Lead Health Scrutiny Member Meetings  

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 5th October, 2020 10.30 am 

• URGENT AND EMERGENCY CARE & ELECTIVE – report detailing performance highlights for Urgent 

and Emergency Care, and Elective Care Services at NCIC to date together with delivery plans for the 

coming months. 

• WINTER – report outlining the collaborative approach towards winter planning for health and care 

organisations across north Cumbria, and an update in relation to the Winter Plan being developed by 

Bay Health and Care Partners for 2020/21 

• IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CARE COMMUNITIES ON ACUTE SETTINGS IN SOUTH CUMBRIA - 

report 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

68

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10460&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10459&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10458&Ver=4


PAGE 52 

 

o Appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Nomination for the Variation Sub-Committee 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 25th February, 2020 10.30 am 

• NORTH CUMBRIA VASCULAR SERVICES - report on North Cumbria Vascular Services which 

provided background information as to why those services needed to change 

• SYSTEM PLANS - update on the North Cumbria Health and Care Strategy 2020-24 from the North 

Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust, and a joint report from Morecambe Bay Clinical 

Commissioning Group and Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria regarding the NHS Long Term 

Plan (LTP) 

• CHILD AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES REDESIGN, SOUTH - overview of the 

redesigning of Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) in Lancashire and South 

Cumbria in line with THRIVE  

• PROPOSED ENGAGEMENT REGARDING POSSIBLE CHANGES TO THE NHS PODIATRIC 

SERVICE PROVIDED BY UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS MORECAMBE BAY NHS TRUST – advice of 

intention to engage widely regarding the proposal to implement consistent referral and treatment criteria 

for the podiatry service provided by University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Trust (UHMBT) 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 10th December, 2019 10.30 am 

• PRIMARE CARE – North Cumbria overview of the changing models for service delivery in General 

Practice, and information in relation to Primary Care Networks (PCNs)/Integrated Care Communities 

(ICCs) within Morecambe Bay CCG 

• WINTER PREPAREDNESS - draft 2019-20 Winter Plan from North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS 

Foundation Trust, and a report from University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust 

regarding their Winter Plan for 2019/20 

• RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION - report by North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust 

(NCIC) which provided an update on workforce plans and issues facing the Trust on both a short and 

long-term basis, and update from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust 

(UHMBT) regarding Recruitment and Retention. 

• DIGITAL RECORDS - presentation from North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust (NCIC) 

which gave a North Cumbria Digital Update, and a report from the Bay Health and Care Partners 

Integrated Care Partnership which provided a digital overview and update 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

 

 

69

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10455&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10454&Ver=4


PAGE 53 

 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 7th October, 2019 10.30 am 

• CHANGES TO MENTAL HEALTH REHABILITATION SERVICES IN CUMBRIA - joint report which 

provided information on the planned changes to the provision of mental health rehabilitation inpatient 

services 

• COPELAND SAME DAY HEALTH CENTRE – report on GP Practices in Copeland innovative ways of 

offering improved access to patients had been considered collectively by the seven practices 

• NORTH CUMBRIA PODIATRY SERVICE 2019 - update on the current North Cumbria Podiatry Service 

which provided assessment, diagnosis and treatments 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE UPDATE - report by the NHS North Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Group providing information regarding progress made on outstanding developments 

following the Healthcare For the Future Consultation 

• CANCELLED OPERATIONS - presentation from North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust 

regarding cancelled operations in North Cumbria, and report from University Hospitals of Morecambe 

Bay NHS Foundation Trust which provided an update on cancelled operations in south Cumbria 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Variation Sub Committee 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 18th July, 2019 10.30 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE - report from NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

which provided an update on the progress made following the Healthcare For the Future Consultation 

• FUTURE MENTAL HEALTH SERVICE PROVISION IN NORTH AND SOUTH - presentation from 

representatives of Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (NTW) regarding the future 

mental health service provision in north Cumbria, and a report on the current position in relation to the 

transfer of South Cumbria Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Services from Cumbria Partnership 

Foundation Trust (CPFT) to Lancashire Care Foundation Trust (LCFT) planned to take place on 

1 October 2019 

• ORTHODONTICS IN SOUTH CUMBRIA - report from University Hospital Morecambe Bay NHS 

Foundation Trust (UHMBT) on Orthodontic provision. 

• UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF MORECAMBE BAY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST (UHMBT) 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOLLOWING THE CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC) INSPECTION 

REPORT - report which provided an update on the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS 

Foundation Trust (UHMBT) Improvement Plan following the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

Inspection report 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Integrated Care Community (ICC) Visits 

 

70

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10453&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10452&Ver=4


PAGE 54 

 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 22nd May, 2019 10.30 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE UPDATE - report from NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning 

Group which provided an update on the progress made following the Healthcare For the Future 

Consultation 

• FAMILIAR FACES - presentation regarding ‘Familiar Faces’; a new service for North Cumbria which 

had been developed to address the needs of patients often termed ‘Frequent Attenders 

• MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN NORTH AND SOUTH CUMBRIA - joint report by North Cumbria and 

Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Groups on changes to mental health services in North and 

South Cumbria in respect of the CCGs’ joint Commissioning Intentions 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Appointment of a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for the Lancashire and South Cumbria 

Integrated Care System 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 26th February, 2019 10.30 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE UPDATE - report from NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning 

Group which provided an update on the progress made following the Healthcare For the Future 

Consultation 

• NORTH CUMBRIA PRIMARY CARE - presentation on North Cumbria Primary Care (NCPC), a new not 

for profit model for primary care in which GPs became salaried, with surpluses reinvested with patients 

and the third sector joining the Partnership Board. 

• NORTH CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS TRUST CARE QUALITY COMMISSION - 

presentation from North Cumbria University Hospital NHS Trust (NCUHT) giving an update on the Care 

Quality Commission 

• POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CUMBRIA PARTNERSHIP FOUNDATION TRUST AND NORTH 

CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS - a report from the Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust (CPFT) and North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (NCUHT) on the potential 

merger of the Trusts 

• NORTH CUMBRIA CANCER BRIEFING - report on cancer care in north Cumbria 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 18th December, 2018 10.30 am 

• WHAT DOES A GOOD LIFE LOOK LIKE FOR PEOPLE WITH LEARNING DIFFICULTIES IN 

CUMBRIA - report by Healthwatch Cumbria 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE UPDATE - report from North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning 

Group which provided an update on the progress made following the Healthcare For the Future 

Consultation 

• FUTURE OF LEARNING DISABILITIES AND MENTAL HEALTH - report by Cumbria Partnership 

Foundation Trust on the agreements being developed by Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

(CPFT), Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT), Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust 

(LCFT) and Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (NTW) 

71

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10451&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9178&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9177&Ver=4


PAGE 55 

 

• POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CUMBRIA PARTNERSHIP FOUNDATION TRUST AND NORTH 

CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - report on the potential merger between Cumbria 

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust which provided 

an update on the proposals being developed 

• DIGITAL RECORDS UPDATE - report on the progress that was being made on digitising records and 

improving system interoperability across the West North & East Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS), 

and report from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust which gave 

members an insight into the history of collaboration and planning of the health informatics agenda 

between NHS organisations in Morecambe Bay. 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 9th July, 2018 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE - minutes of the Cumbria Health 

Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee held on 21 May 2018 

• POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CUMBRIA PARTNERSHIP FOUNDATION TRUST AND NORTH 

CUMBRIA - UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS - update on the proposals being developed by CPFT ad 

NCUHT to explore opportunities to merge in order to form one NHS Foundation Trust. 

• CANCELLATION OF OPERATIONS - report from North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust on 

Cancellation of Operations, and report which outlined performance against the national headline 28 

Day Cancellation Standard and local total Last Minute Cancelled Operations standard, benchmarked 

performance and the causes, implications and actions to resolve from Morecambe Bay NHS 

Foundation Trust  

• UPDATE ON BETTER CARE TOGETHER COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT PLAN - report 

from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust which gave an update on the 

Better Care Together Communications and Engagement Plan 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE OF WEST, NORTH AND EAST UPDATE – update from NHS 

North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group on the progress made following the Healthcare For the 

Future Consultation 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Variation sub-committee 

o Proposal regarding the relocation of the DEXA scanning service 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Mental Health Service Stakeholder Group feedback 

o Quality Accounts 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 14th May, 2018 10.30 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE OF WEST, NORTH AND EAST – update from NHS North Cumbria 

Clinical Commissioning Group on the progress since the decisions were made in March 2017 following 

the Healthcare for the Future Consultation 

• EATING DISORDERS IN CUMBRIA - a report from Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

regarding Community Eating Order Services in Cumbria 

• NORTH CUMBRIA PRIMARY CARE COLLABORATIVE - ALLIANCE MODEL UPDATE - progress 

update on the ‘alliance’ model being developed with a number of GP practices in North Cumbria 

72

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9175&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9174&Ver=4


PAGE 56 

 

• FUTURE OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES - presentation from Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust (CPFT) regarding the future of mental health services highlighting the national focus on improving 

quality 

• PUBLIC HEALTH STRATEGY - presentation from the Director of Public Health (Cumbria County 

Council) on the Public Health Strategy 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Variation sub-committee 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Quality Accounts 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 26th February, 2018 10.30 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE - report from NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

updating members on progress since the decisions were made following the Healthcare For The Future 

Consultation 

• COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT PROGRAMME, BAY HEALTH AND CARE PARTNERS - 

report by Bay Health and Care Partners (BHCP) regarding their Communications and Engagement 

Programme 

• BETTER CARE TOGETHER UPDATE - report from Bay Health and Care Partners which provided a 

summary of the key focus areas for the South Cumbria Integrated Care Communities in addition to the 

Communication and Engagement activity which had taken place across South Cumbria over the past 

quarter 

• HELME CHASE MIDWIFE LED MATERNITY - report from Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning 

Group regarding Helme Chase Standalone Midwife Led Unit 

• SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PARTNERSHIP (SOUTH) - presentation on the 

Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) for South Cumbria highlighting challenges 

• NORTH WEST AMBULANCE SERVICE, CARE QUALITY COMMISSION IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND 

USE OF OTHER AGENCIES - report from the North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust (NWAS)  

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Variation sub-committee 

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Development Opportunities 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 14th December, 2017 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB- COMMITTEE - minutes of the Cumbria Health 

Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee held on 10 November 2017 

• CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE, TERMS OF REFFERENCE – 

revision of the Terms of Reference for the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee 

• ACCESS TO HEALTH SERVICES FOR SERVICE USERS WITH HEARING - update from Healthwatch 

Cumbria on Improving Access to Health Care Services for Deaf Patients in Cumbria, and a report and 

presentation from the Cumbria Deaf Association regarding the challenges faced by Cumbria in meeting 

the health needs of the deaf community 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE OF WEST, NORTH AND EAST – update from NHS North Cumbria 

Clinical Commissioning Group on the progress since the decisions were made following the Healthcare 

for the Future Consultation 

73

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9173&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10105&Ver=4


PAGE 57 

 

• SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PARTNERSHIP (STP), NORTH - presentation from the 

Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust regarding the North Cumbria Integrated Health and Care 

System 

• CO-PRODUCTION - ALSTON, WIGTON AND MARYPORT - report from Cumbria Partnership NHS 

Foundation Trust on the co-production model used to develop the community plans following the 

decision in March 2017 to close community in-patient beds in Alston, Wigton and Maryport. 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Referral to the Secretary of State  

o Joint Health and Adults Scrutiny Advisory Group 

o Variation Sub Committee 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 9th October, 2017 10.30 am 

• HEALTHWATCH - presentation from Healthwatch Cumbria 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE - report from North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group on the 

service areas where decisions were made following the Healthcare For The Future Consultation 

• CUMBRIA ADULT AGE MENTAL HEALTH UPDATE - joint report from NHS North Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Group and NHS Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group which provided an 

update on the progress made in Cumbria against the 2015–2020 Cumbria-wide Mental Health Strategy 

and alignment with the priority actions outlined in the NHS England Five Year Forward View for Mental 

Health 

• ORGANISATIONAL LEADERSHIP OF COMMUNITY SERVICES IN THE BAY AREA -  joint report 

from Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS 

Foundation Trust on the Organisational Leadership of Community Services in the Bay Area 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Referral to the Secretary of State  

o Health Scrutiny Development Session 27 October 

o Variation Sub Committee 

o Scrutinising the Lancashire and South Cumbria STP 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 24th July, 2017 10.30 am 

• CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE – to agree the new membership of the 

Sub-Committee 

• LOOKING FORWARD, THE HEALTH AND CARE SYSTEM IN CUMBRIA - joint presentation from the 

Corporate Director – Health, Care and Community Services, Chief Operating Officer, North Cumbria 

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and Chief Operating Officer, Morecambe Bay NHS Clinical 

Commissioning Group on the Health and Care System in Cumbria 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Health & Care Integration Task Group 

o Variation Sub Committee 

o Scrutinising the Better Care Together Programme 

 

 

74

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9171&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9170&Ver=4


PAGE 58 

 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 22nd March, 2017 5.30 pm 

• DISPUTE RESOLUTION MEETING  

o Referral No 1 - Children's Services 

o Referral No 2 - Maternity Services 

o Referral No 3 - Community Hospitals 

Special Meeting, Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 22nd March, 

2017 10.30 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE, WEST, NORTH AND EAST CUMBRIA - report from the Corporate 

Director – Resources and Transformation (CCC) outlining the decisions made by NHS Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Group (NHS CCCG) Governing Body on ‘The Future of Health Care in West, North & 

East Cumbria’ proposals and as part of Stage 3 of the Committee’s Variation Protocol. 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 28th February, 2017 10.30 am 

• BETTER CARE TOGETHER UPDATE - report which updated the Committee on the delivery of the 

Better Care Together Programme 

• SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN FOR SOUTH CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE - 

update on progress on the production of the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for South 

Cumbria and Lancashire from Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria 

• NWAS, CARE QUALITY COMMISSION – presentation from North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) 

on the Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection 

• NHS ENGLAND, STATUS OF FORMAL DIRECTIONS TO THE CUMBRIA CLINICAL 

COMMISSIONING - update from NHS England on the status of formal directions to the Cumbria 

Clinical Commissioning Group 

• HELME CHASE MIDWIFE-LED MATERNITY UNIT – report from Cumbria Clinical Commissioning 

Group with the outcome of the consultation on the proposed variation to Helme Chase Midwife-Led 

Maternity Unit 

• CANCER SERVICES - two separate reports from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

considering the progress made in delivery cancer service standards in Cumbria, and a report from 

Healthwatch on people’s experience of cancer services to help the Committee consider how this 

supported or challenged those findings 

• NEVER EVENT AND SALINE INCIDENT EXCEPTION REPORT - report from North Cumbria 

University Hospitals NHS Trust which provided an update on how Never Events were being managed 

across the Trust 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Health & Care Integration Task Group 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 13th December, 2016 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE VASCULAR SERVICES REVIEW - report which provided an update on 

the progress of implementing the reorganisation of vascular services. 

• CUMBRIA CLINICAL COMMISSIONING RESPONSE TO NHS ENGLAND RATING - update from the 

Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group on its response to the NHS England assessment 

75

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=10045&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9882&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=9882&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8239&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8238&Ver=4


PAGE 59 

 

• SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLANS - update from Cumbria County Council on the 

production of Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STP) for Cumbria, and report on the West North 

East (WNE) Cumbria STP 

• CUMBRIA PARTNERSHIP FOUNDATION TRUST, IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CARE QUALITY 

COMMISSION ACTION PLAN - update from the Cumbria Foundation NHS Trust (CPFT) on the 

implementation of their action plan to address key areas of improvement highlighted in the recent Care 

Quality Commission (CQC) report 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Scrutinising the Better Care Together Programme 

o Scrutiny Site Visits 

o Sight Loss Services Task Group – Progress Update on Recommendations 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 13th October, 2016 10.00 am 

• HEALTHCARE FOR THE FUTURE, WEST, NORTH AND EAST CUMBRIA – report from CCC 

outlining The Future of Health care in West, North & East Cumbria Public Consultation Document and 

the proposal contained within.  

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Scrutiny Site Visits 

o Member Champions – CCGs 

Special Joint Meeting with Children's Scrutiny Advisory Board, Cumbria Health 

Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 14th September, 2016 10.00 am 

• RECOMMISSIONING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES FOR 0-19 YEAR OLDS - report from the 

Assistant Director – Health, Care and Community Services (CCC) seeking views on proposals to re-

commission 0-19 Public Health services and integrate them with Early Health services 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 25th July, 2016 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE - draft minutes of the Cumbria Health 

Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee held on 23 June 2016 

• KENTMERE - report on the decisions and actions taken in respect of the Kentmere Unit at 

Westmorland General Hospital 

• HELME CHASE MIDWIFE-LED MATERNITY – report outlining the planned approach to consulting on 

the proposed variation to the Helme Chase Midwife-Led Maternity Unit, and seeking comments and 

recommendations 

• COMMISSIONING IN CUMBRIA AND NORTH LANCASHIRE – update from CCC on proposals to 

change commissioning arrangements. 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Scrutiny Review of Health & Care Integration 

o Scrutiny Review of CAMHS 

 

 

76

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8237&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8737&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8737&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8236&Ver=4


PAGE 60 

 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 16th May, 2016 10.00 am 

• CARE QUALITY COMMISSION COMPREHENSIVE INSPECTION OF CUMBRIA PARTNERSHIP 

FOUNDATION NHS TRUST - update from CCC Chief Executive from the Care Quality Commission 

(CQC) on their inspection of the Cumbria Foundation NHS Trust (CPFT) together with 

the CPFTs Response 

• SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN - update on progress to date on the production of 

Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STP) for Cumbria 

• CLINICAL STRATEGY CONSULTATION PLANS - outline of the planned approach to consulting on the 

Clinical Strategy for North Cumbria. 

• UPDATE ON COMMISSIONING OF PRIMARY CARE IN CUMBRIA - update on the Commissioning of 

Primary Care in Cumbria 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o CLINICAL STRATEGY – VARIATION PROCESS 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Variation Sub Committee 

o Scrutiny Review of Health & Care Integration 

o Scrutiny Review of CAMHS 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 13th April, 2016 10.00 am 

• SUCCESS REGIME UPDATE - presentation from the Cumbria Success Regime on developing safe 

and sustainable services for West, North and East Cumbria 

• CLINICAL STRATEGY - presentation from Chief Operating Officer, Clinical Commissioning Group on 

the public consultation exercise to be undertaken in respect of the reorganisation of services 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 24th February, 2016 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA PARTNERSHIP FOUNDATION TRUST - report from the Cumbria Partnership NHS 

Foundation Trust on current issues affecting the Trust 

• COUNTYWIDE REVIEW OF MATERNITY - update report on the Maternity Services Review from the 

Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group, and a report from Healthwatch Cumbria working in partnership 

with the Maternity Service Liaison Committees. 

• UPDATE FROM NORTH WEST AMBULANCE SERVICE - general introduction and an update on 

performance standards for 999 calls from North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust 

• INTERIM TRANSFER AUDIT - presentation from North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust on the 

Internal Review of Transfers and a review of what had happened to outcomes as a consequence of 

transferring the high risk pathways 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Scrutiny Review of Health & Care Integration 

o Complaints Handling Implementation Group 

o CLINICAL STRATEGY 

 

 

77

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8235&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8643&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8234&Ver=4


PAGE 61 

 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 15th December, 2015 10.00 am 

• CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY VARIATION SUB-COMMITTEE - draft minutes of the Cumbria Health 

Scrutiny Variation Sub-Committee held on 12 November 2015  

• OUTCOME OF CQC INSPECTION OF UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF MORECAMBE BAY - update 

from the Care Quality Commission (CQC) on their follow-up inspection of the University Hospitals of 

Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust (UHMBT) together with a response from the Trust 

• UPPER GASTROINTESTINAL BLEED AND CARDIAC PATHWAYS CONSULTATION - presents 

findings from consultation that has taken place following a proposal to change the pathway for a small 

number of patients 

• ROOT CAUSE REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL MAJOR INCIDENT IN NORTH CUMBRIA, MARCH 2015 

- update from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group on actions following the internal major 

incident affecting health and care services across North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust 

(NCUHT) in March 2015 

• RADIOTHERAPY, ONCOLOGY AND CHEMOTHERAPY PROVISION – report outlining the approach 

of NHS England for the provision of oncology services, including radiotherapy and chemotherapy 

delivery to the population of Cumbria 

• COMPLAINTS PROCESS – report on a joint Healthwatch Cumbria and Cumbria Health Scrutiny 

Committee task and finish group regarding the handling of complaints by health and social care 

providers in Cumbria. 

• CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE VASCULAR SERVICES REVIEW - update on the progress of 

implementing the reorganisation of vascular services 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 15th October, 2015 10.00 am 

• SUCCESS REGIME - update from the Programme Director, NHS Trust Development Authority on the 

Success Regime. 

• OUTCOME OF CQC INSPECTION OF NORTH CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS - update from 

the Care Quality Commission (CQC) on their follow-up inspection of the North Cumbria University 

Hospitals NHS Trust (NCUHT) which also contained the NCUHT’s Quality Improvement Plan 

• SUBSTANTIAL VARIATION PROTOCOL - proposals to agree a refreshed approach between the 

Health Scrutiny Committee of Cumbria County Council and NHS Organisations as to what constituted a 

‘substantial variation’ of health services  

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o CAMHS Scrutiny Review 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

o Glenridding Surgery 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 27th July, 2015 10.00 am 

• SUCCESS REGIME - update from NHS Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group on the Success 

Regime which set out the challenges facing the health and care system over the next five years 

• KIRKUP REPORT - report from University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Foundation Trust (UHMBT) 

which contained responses from NHS England and UHMBT to the recommendations contained in the 

Kirkup Report. 

78

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8233&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8232&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=7323&Ver=4
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=7323&Ver=4


PAGE 62 

 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Member Champions - Trusts and the CCG 

o Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee 

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 4th June, 2015 10.00 am 

• NORTH CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL TRUST, PATIENT EXPERIENCE - North Cumbria 

University Hospitals NHS Trust and NHS Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Trust update on the recent 

announcement about the Success Regime in North Cumbria 

• NORTH CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL TRUST, MAJOR INTERNAL INCIDENT - update from the 

Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group on actions following the internal major incident affecting health 

and care services across North Cumbria in March 2015 

• PROPOSED CHANGES TO RESPIRATORY HIGH RISK PATIENT - report from the Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCCG) regarding changes to respiratory pathways affecting a small number of 

transfers from West Cumbria to the Cumberland Infirmary, Carlisle 

• MATERNITY SERVICES REVIEW - report from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group (CCCG) on 

the outcome and actions following the independent review of maternity services 

• COMMITTEE BRIEFING - update on developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work 

Programme and monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda, including: 

o Mental Health Task Group 

o Joint Health Scrutiny Committee – Better Care Together 

o Health Scrutiny Development Session 

 

*All links correct at the time of collation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=8185&Ver=4


Appendix 6 – Scrutiny Recommendations and updates 
Date Board Route Recommendation/s Cabinet 

Response 
Progress 

27 Jan 22 Scrutiny 
Mange-
ment 
Board 
(SMB) 

Local 
Government 
Reform - Phase 
2: Locality 
Models T&F 

1. The characteristics of a locality model should be: 

• Locality Boards with significant devolved 
decision making to a local level, delegated 
from the executive. 

• Strong engagement mechanisms such as 
the Place Standard tool as evidenced 
through the Kirklees model and as used in 
some areas of Cumbria currently 

• Inclusion of addressing inequalities as a key 
principle. 

• Footprints shaped on community identities 
2. Unparished areas should become parishes to 

ensure uniformity and enabling effective 
participation with the system across Cumbria. 

3. From the outset cross party involvement should 
be sought to ensure that there is buy in to any 
approaches implemented. 

4. The role of the councillor as facilitator and enabler 
should be central to locality working. 
 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
response 
 

Recommendations shared with Shadow Authorities 
and LGR Programme 
 
 

18 Mar 21 SMB County 
Council’s Post-
Covid Ways of 
Working T&F 

1. Continue to review approach to managing 
wellbeing, stress and mental health and seeking 
new and innovative solutions to support staff and 
Members during and after the pandemic. 

2. Put in place a comprehensive, organisation-wide 
Post-Covid Ways of Working strategic plan 
centred around the following principles: 

• Ensuring staff health and well-being is 
central to future ways of working 

• Reviewing staff contracts and terms and 
conditions in light of the pandemic and its 
impacts 

• Putting in place further support and training 
for Members around new ways of working 

• Building an understanding of the impact on 
our customers of different ways of working 

• An in-depth review of the impact changes to 
Council working practices have on the 
equality of access for individuals and teams 
to 
engage with colleagues, obtain support and 
deliver priorities Completing a review of 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes (with 

conds) 
 
Cabinet 
response 

Recommendations delivered or currently progressing 
via the CCC New Ways of Working programme 
 
 

80

http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s120086/CAB%202701%20-%20Response%20to%20Local%20Government%20Review%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s120086/CAB%202701%20-%20Response%20to%20Local%20Government%20Review%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s111914/CAB%200402%20-%20Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Report%20-%20Provision%20of%20infr.pdf
http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s111914/CAB%200402%20-%20Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Report%20-%20Provision%20of%20infr.pdf


PAGE 1 

 

existing policies to ensure they support new 
ways of working 

3. Members should be connected into the Officer 
Future Ways of Working Group and fully engaged 
in the process of shaping, developing and 
supporting new ways of working 

4. As part of the strategic plan for post-Covid ways 
of working, consider new approaches to help 
increase the corporate understanding of staff 
needs, views and ideas around Post-Covid Ways 
of Working 

5. Develop policy and a comprehensive programme 
of support, training and engagement for future 
meeting formats, including online and hybrid 
meetings as appropriate. 
 

17 Dec 2020 SMB Local 
Government in 
Cumbria – 
Locality Models 
and Structures 
(Phase 1) 

1. That the following principles are considered for 
adoption when developing a locality model and 
structure for a future unitary: 

• The importance of centrality of information 
about the population when developing 
models, in terms of population health 
models, education, economic data and 
information on vulnerable or marginalised 
groups 

• Getting the balance right between the 
following geographical scales: whole 
authority, current districts, sub-district level 
(as with the Area Partnerships and Locality 
Boards) and parish level; this means 
considering levels of downward devolution 
and potentially taking a tiered approach 

• Consideration of which of functions to 
devolve – i.e. highways and infrastructure, 
preventative services, health and wellbeing 
responsibilities etc. 

• Adopting a strength-based approach which 
capitalises on what people want locally, 
what works well and what could aid 
prevention, rather than focusing most 
attention on interventions where things are 
not working 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
response 
 

Recommendations shared with Shadow Authorities 
and LGR Programme 
 
 

81

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s109746/CAB%201712%20-%20Response%20to%20Future%20of%20Local%20Government%20in%20Cumbria%20locality%20models%20and%20structures.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s109746/CAB%201712%20-%20Response%20to%20Future%20of%20Local%20Government%20in%20Cumbria%20locality%20models%20and%20structures.pdf


PAGE 2 

 

• Looking at participation models which move 
beyond a traditional council or committee 
approach, with partners, parishes and the 
public playing a greater role, while Members 
retaining key responsibilities (i.e. voting on 
spend) 

• Importance of relationships and networks 
and ensuring that structural arrangements 
act as enablers rather than barriers – 
enhancing what has worked historically 

• Resilience – developing an approach which 
can accommodate structural changes 
among partners (i.e. NHS reorganisation), 
introduction of new actors (i.e. Police and 
Crime Commissioner) and changes in 
personnel (i.e. elections with high turnover, 
key officers retiring or leaving), sudden 
changes in national policy (i.e. due to 
national politics, budgets or major shocks – 
i.e. COVID) 

2. That the following proposed approach to working 
with, supporting and strengthening the role of 
town and parish councils is considered: 

• Maximising a locally led approach that 
recognises that there is no one size fits all 

• Building the strategic capacity of town and 
parish councils for those who wish to do so, 
for example through locality structures, 
clustering and/or considering the merits of 
establishing a quality framework for town 
and parish councils e.g. the current Local 
Council Award Scheme (LCAS), or the 
Certificate in Local Council Administration 
(CiLCA) 

• If developing an Area Partnership or Locality 
Board approach, to ensure parishes can 
cluster based on their historical 
associations, and that they have flexibility to 
determine how much they wish to be 
involved 

• Considering working with Town and Parish 
Council on a programme of devolution of 

82



PAGE 3 

 

resources, potentially with stronger ties to 
the local elected Member of the Unitary 
Council to ensure a voice at all structural 
tiers 

• For unparished areas to consider learning 
from the Area Partnership/Locality Board 
models, in terms of developing structures 
between Parish/Town Council level and the 
current District levels. 

3. That Cabinet considers seeking further input from 
scrutiny on several aspects of this review 
including: 

• The role of the front-line Councillor in any 
future localisation model 

• For the resourcing work being carried out by 
Scrutiny to finalise initial work from this 
review on how to support the Councillor of 
the Future – and especially in terms of 
attracting Councillors from diverse 
backgrounds; and to work closely with the 
forthcoming Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
on new ways of working 

• To consider the Equality implications of any 
further models, including those protected 
under the Equality Act, but also people who 
may experience inequalities due to 
deprivation or rural isolation 

• To consider the implications of localisation 
on children and families and for Adult Social 
Care. 
 

30 Jan 20 SMB Absence 
management 
Review 

1. Occupational health services to be reviewed to 
ensure there is effective mental health capacity 
and specialist training in place to offer greater 
advice, support and guidance for managers and 
employees. 

2. A targeted, multi-disciplinary team approach 
should be implemented over a short period of 
time for services with high levels of absence and 
those furthest from target. This will provide a 
‘wraparound’ package of support and advice to 
address the levels of absence – including, but not 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
Response 
 
 

SMB receives regular updates as a result of this 
review, with the latest progress reported at the Sept 
2022 meeting. 

83

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s100977/Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20to%20Scrutiny%20review%20Absence%20Management.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s100977/Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20to%20Scrutiny%20review%20Absence%20Management.pdf


PAGE 4 

 

limited to, People Management staff, data 
analysts, service managers and Health and 
Wellbeing Coaches (HAWC’s). A pilot suggestion 
could take place with the Provider Services 
teams. 

3. . The resource levels of the People Management 
team should be reviewed to ensure that the 
service has the capacity and expertise to provide 
the necessary focus and intensive support to 
services and managers addressing absence 
management challenges. 

4. That health and wellbeing conversations are 
embedded in everyday business across the 
organisation, including CMT, DMT’s, 
management and team meetings and individual 
appraisals and ongoing discussions throughout 
the year. 

5. That measures be taken to ensure that existing 
tools and guidance for managers to support 
managing absence are well-communicated and 
fully embedded in all parts of the council, and that 
technological and automation4 opportunities to 
simplify and rationalise the policy, processes and 
administration requirements for managers, in 
relation to managing absence, are fully explored 
and maximised 
 

 

Date Board Route Recommendation/s Cabinet 
Response 

Progress 

18 Mar 21 Comm- 
unities 
and 
Place  
(C&P) 

Provision of 
Infrastructure to 
support new 
development 
T&F 

1. Early engagement with Local Planning Authorities 
in the development of the local plan was essential 
in securing contributions for social and physical 
infrastructure 

2. Cumbria County Council should explore the 
possible structures around planning in order to 
determine the most effective ways of securing 
contributions. 

3. strengthened dialogue between members and 
Cumbria County Council’s planning response 
officers may help to identify infrastructure 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Partially 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Partially 
6. Partially 

 
Cabinet 
response 

1. The importance of this recommendation was 
recognised, action has secured contributions for 
social and physical infrastructure. Early 
engagement has continued to be strengthened 

2. The review of planning process and securing of 
developer contributions has been taken into the 
programme of work for Local Government 
Reorganisation 

3. Steps have been taken to strengthen 
communication with members to ensure 
consistency and enabling elected members to be 
confident they are being communicated with in a 

84

http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s111914/CAB%200402%20-%20Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Report%20-%20Provision%20of%20infr.pdf
http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s111914/CAB%200402%20-%20Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Report%20-%20Provision%20of%20infr.pdf


PAGE 5 

 

requirements on receipt of a planning application, 
given Member’s knowledge of their communities. 

4. planning authorities should be asked not to use 
conditions which provide loopholes for developers 
to evade/avoid their obligations e.g. building a 
classroom when 200 homes have been built 
where the developer then stops at 198. 

5. Cumbria County Council, as the Local Lead Flood 
Authority, should set out the flood alleviation and 
drainage design requirements at the time a site 
was included as an allocated development site in 
the Local Plan. 

6. Cumbria County Council to provide a cost neutral 
advice service on specific planning applications to 
ensure all parties were made aware of the 
necessary infrastructure contributions that would 
be required on any given land allocation 

 

timely way. The Flood Development Management 
Team now attend local committees on a more 
frequent basis. 

4. The County Council have developed a set of 
standard planning conditions to be used where 
practicable. Processes have also been developed to 
improve dialogue where an LPA intend to amend 
recommended conditions to ensure CCCs 
obligations are being achieved. 

5. It is the requirement of the Local Planning Authority 
to produce an Infrastructure Development Plan 
(IDP) or Deficit Plans. However, the development of 
required drainage design is an iterative process as it 
must be developed to respond to the specific 
requirements of the proposed development. As part 
of the planning process, developers are required to 
agree the Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDS) with the Local Planning Authority who 
consult the County Council as the LLFA. 

6. As a Local Planning Authority, the council’s 
Development Control Team applies the appropriate 
fee to the applicant on submission of planning 
applications. The service also offers a chargeable 
pre-application advice service for applicants prior to 
the submission of their planning applications, with 
the aim of the applicant covering the cost of the 
advice given.  The council cannot levy charges for 
all pre-application advice, for example requests on 
the likely scope of information necessary from 
applicants to enable the council to provide as a 
statutory consultee a substantive response to the 
planning authority. Therefore, any income can only 
mitigate costs of delivering the service and is 
unlikely to provide for a cost neutral advice on 
specific applications. 

7 Feb 19 
 
 

C&P Waste and the 
third sector T&F 

1. Explore the approach towards reuse at HWRCs 
or periphery within contractual obligations and/or, 
capacity implications. 

2. The Council should reintroduce the Waste 
Prevention Fund on the same level that it was 
previously available. 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes 

1. Several other Local Authorities have been identified 
as part of the benchmarking exercise to have some 
form of reuse facility despite being bound by a long-
term waste disposal contract.  Conversations have 
been undertaken with several local authorities to 
establish how they overcame any contractual 
issues, it appears to be a willingness to do “the right 

85



PAGE 6 

 

3. To consider the role of the Waste Prevention 
Team in taking a more proactive co-ordination 
role in bringing together and strengthening the 
reuse activity across the voluntary sector and 
waste partners across the county. 

4. Local Committees take a more proactive area-
based approach towards the promotion of waste 
reuse benefits and opportunities in their locality. 

5. The Council should work in partnership with 
Cumbria Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) 
and district councils to encourage the 
establishment of a reuse forum for third sector 
organisations in Cumbria. 

6. The Council should develop an internal 
engagement programme to explore opportunities 
to maximise the benefits of waste re-use across 
its strategies and plans. 

 
Cabinet 
response 

thing” on the part of the contractor, and not putting 
purely commercial/contractual barriers in the way. In 
addition, the Permit Line has been brought in-house 
to CCC (previously under the management of 
Cumbria Waste Group).  This allows greater 
flexibility in ensuring that waste is not automatically 
disposed of through the HWRCs where it can be 
reused, with signposting to websites such as 
Freecycle and Freegle and Charity shops. 

2. Not accepted – no action 
3. The Waste Prevention Team is working with District 

Councils via the Cumbria Strategic Waste 
Partnership (CSWP).  Waste Prevention update 
reports are shared at the meetings on community 
reuse events facilitated/attended by the Waste 
Prevention Team, home composting schemes and 
campaigns etc.  Where the Districts have ideas for 
further waste prevention work these are shared with 
a view to joint working. Resourceful Communities 
Grant – publicising via the Local Committees 
encouraging local communities to apply for a grant 
to utilise funding on initiatives such as repair cafes, 
swishing events.  Example of Sustainable Carlisle 
who have applied and been successful in receiving 
funding for several events in 2019 – free stalls at 
markets receiving and offering household items to 
members of the Carlisle community, repair zones, 
clothes swapping etc.  Funding is still available and 
will be promoted again through social media.  Upon 
successful completion of a project, the community 
group will be officially endorsed as a Resourceful 
Community.  contact is Katharine Smith, Waste 
Prevention Officer – 
katharine.banks@cumbria.gov.uk/07831 205382. 

4. A programme of engagement with Local 
Committees has taken place, to promote activities 
being undertaken.  In addition, a third sector 
organisations map for Cumbria has been created to 
promote reuse and recycling  
www.recycleforcumbria.org/athome/reusemap.asp 

5. In tandem with the Reuse Map (see 
Recommendation 4. above) the Waste Prevention 
Team is working with Third sector organisations to 

86

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s86575/Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20-%20Waste%20and%20Third%20Sector%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s86575/Response%20of%20the%20Executive%20Director%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20-%20Waste%20and%20Third%20Sector%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group.pdf
mailto:katharine.banks@cumbria.gov.uk/07831%20205382
http://www.recycleforcumbria.org/athome/reusemap.asp


PAGE 7 

 

establish a Reuse Forum.  A similar forum had been 
previously established in 2007/8 managed by 
Cumbria Community Recycling Network.  A 
questionnaire has been created to establish the 
appetite for a forum and what type of format would 
be preferable to enable Third Sector organisations 
to engage, and for the forum to succeed and 
become self-sustainable.  This initial consultation 
with the third sector organisations is key to the 
Forum’s success.  Work is ongoing to create this for 
Cumbria. 

6. An internal (CCC) Waste Prevention group was 
introduced to look at waste reduction and reuse 
across the Council estate, specifically the reduction 
of Single Use Plastic (SUP).  This included 
initiatives such as the largest 8 council offices 
surveyed for SUP usage, SUP cups and plastic 
stirrers removed from all offices, awareness 
messages via communications to staff on SUP, 
reduction, and general waste reduction and a 
statement made to Full Council (5th September 
2018) by the Cabinet Member for Environment re 
CCC’s stance on Waste Prevention in the 
workplace and our intention to review our 
appropriate use of SUPs.  Other internal strategies 
include a commitment to the Cumbria Joint Public 
Health Strategy Action Plan – including waste 
prevention and love food hate waste campaigns. 
CCC have jointly ccommissioned a Partnership 
Development Officer, pivotal to the progress made 
on the production of the Cumbria Joint Municipal 
Waste Strategy, identifying, and implementing the 
impacts and opportunities of the National Waste 
and Resources Strategy, as well as the 
recommendations made as part of the WRAP 
Consistency Report for Cumbria.  These are key 
pieces of work that would shape waste 
management in Cumbria, and influence waste 
prevention activities going forward. Externally, the 
Council has engaged with local initiatives.  This has 
included: 

87



PAGE 8 

 

• Funding towards Plastic Clever Cumbria 
campaign through successful partnership 
working with Penrith Action for Community 
Transition, (PACT), supported by sustainability 
groups across the county. 

• Plastic Clever Cumbria Pledges hosted by 
PACT 

• Pledges publicised by CCC Waste Prevention 
team through social media and roadshows in 
main libraries and council offices 

• Green Spring Clean roadshows in libraries 
encouraging people to use homemade 
/natural cleaning products so reducing need to 
buy chemical cleaners in plastic 
bottles/packaging. 

• Supporting Plastic Clever Penrith through 
publicity – initiative by Penrith Town Council. 

• Supporting Plastic Clever Copeland initiative 
through CCC Area Support team – Copeland 
 

1 Feb 2018 C&P 
 
 

Equalities 
objectives T&F 

1. To introduce a council-wide Equality Action Plan 
setting out how the objectives agreed in 2016 will 
be met. 

2. To use the annual Equality Needs Assessment to 
provide an update on how the organisation has 
been delivering against its objectives 

3. To develop for Local Committees a suite of 
information on equalities for their local committee 
area that can inform Area Planning and 
integration work in localities. 
 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
response 
 

1. The Council’s Equality Plan (2018 – 2020) was 
agreed by Cabinet in October 2018, with 3 main 
areas of focus – customers, communities, and 
workforce. 

2. The Equality Needs Analysis in 2020 included a 
review of progress against the objectives 

3. A suite of local Equality profiles was produced for 
Local Committees. 

 

24 Sept 2015 C&P Digital 
Innovation T&F 

1. The needs of the customer are placed at the 
centre of the development and delivery of the 
Council’s strategic and transformation plans, 
particularly the delivery of the Council’s new 
Digital Strategy. 

2. The Corporate Director - Environment and 
Community Services should ensure a prioritised 
forward plan of services to be transitioned into the 
Service Centre over the next 18 months is 
produced as soon as possible, and that progress 
against this plan should be monitored on a six-

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. Yes 
 
 

This Task Group formed an important part of 
Scrutiny’s response to the 2015/16 strategic planning 
process, and recommendations helped inform the 
implementation of the Digital Strategy. 
 
1. Customer needs have and will continue to be fully 

considered and reflected in the implementation of 
the Strategy. This can be seen through several 
initiatives including the development of a customer 
portal, provision of public access Wi-Fi in all public 
buildings, the introduction of the 606060 customer 

88

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s72971/Cabinet%20Response%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20-%20Equality%20Objectives.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s72971/Cabinet%20Response%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20-%20Equality%20Objectives.pdf


PAGE 9 

 

monthly basis through the Scrutiny Management 
Board. 

3. An investment fund should be identified to deliver 
the infrastructure, systems and workforce 
changes that are needed to effectively and 
efficiently deliver an increased number of services 
through digital platforms and an improved 
customer experience. 

4. The Corporate Director – Environment and 
Community Services should ensure that new or 
redesigned ICT systems developed or 
commissioned to support this transformation in 
service delivery ‘talk to each other’, enabling 
integrated service delivery and an enhanced 
customer experience. This should also result in a 
rationalisation of the number of different systems 
the Council has in operation across the 
organisation. In addition, a service-by-service 
approach inclusive of significant testing should be 
taken to the implementation of a live web chat 
function. Progress on Recommendation 4 should 
be included in Scrutiny Management Board 
monitoring, as in Recommendation 2 above 

5. The Corporate Director – Environment and 
Community Services should ensure that the 
Service Centre infrastructure is future-proofed to 
ensure it enables future expansion to other local 
authorities, and partner organisations across the 
county, The Council should actively pursue 
opportunities to undertake joint service delivery 
work with district and parish councils and other 
organisations to move towards delivering a ‘single 
customer journey’ for people in Cumbria, and 
create opportunities for further savings 

6. The ongoing review of ICT systems in operation in 
the Health and Care directorate should ensure 
that systems ‘talk to each other’ – linking 
assessments, finance and performance which 
enable strategic and local management to be 
more streamlined – and lead to the rationalisation 
of systems 

7. Measures necessary to provide adequate training 
and public access to IT equipment and online 

Cabinet 
response 

number into the Service Centre used to provide 
advice and guidance for Adult Social Care users 
(and providers) during the floods, and the adoption 
of the North Yorkshire Customer Resolution delivery 
model. 

2. Programme and Project Management principles 
were adopted in the development, monitoring and 
delivery of the Service Centre Programme including 
the transition of services. The Programme Manager 
worked with all directorates to identify services for 
transition. 

3. Funding from both the ICT Development Budget 
and the Improvement and Efficiency Reserve was 
utilised to support the delivery of the required 
changes. The Service Centre Programme Manager 
worked closely with the People Management and 
Learning and Skills teams to ensure that collective 
improvement plans supported the development of 
skills needed. The appointment of a Digital 
Innovation Manager provides dedicated resource, 
working with the Service Centre Programme 
Manager to ensure alignment of resources and 
delivery priorities. Resource has also been provided 
by the Transformation team. 

4. The rationalisation of systems and the ability for 
systems to integrate effectively is a key 
consideration for delivery of the Service Centre 
Programme and supports the Digital Strategy. 

5. Full consideration for the future proofing of 
infrastructure and associated technology within the 
Service Centre took place. Opportunities for joint 
working in the delivery of services were to be 
explored. Future opportunities for joint delivery of 
services with other councils, including parish 
councils and other partners to be explored as 
appropriate. 

6. Please refer to the update for recommendation 4, in 
addition, the Care Act places new statutory 
responsibilities on the Council, some of which will 
be met by the implementation of functionality within 
a customer portal. These include financial 
assessments, provision of equipment and 

89

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s43619/Scrutiny%20Response%20-%20Digital%20Innovation.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s43619/Scrutiny%20Response%20-%20Digital%20Innovation.pdf


PAGE 10 

 

services should be implemented as a priority 
element of the digital strategy and transformation 
programmes, to enable increased numbers of 
customers to access services through online 
channels. These measures should recognise the 
key role of Councillors as leaders and mentors in 
communities and include the development and 
delivery of a programme of recruitment and 
training of a wide network of volunteers to deliver 
digital support to those who need it in 
communities across the county, building on 
existing community assets; and provision of 
access and training through all libraries across the 
county following the success of the Barrow Library 
project. 

8. A ‘Community Computers’ initiative should be 
considered which would promote the reallocation 
of unused Council ICT equipment to community 
settings (e.g., community centres, cafes, village 
halls, and other community-based organisations) 
to enable more people to access online services 
and engage with the Council through digital 
channels. 
 

adaptations and signposting to other sources of 
support and advice. 

7. Supporting communities to access technology forms 
part of the Digital Strategy. The Digital Innovation 
Manager to work with Councillors, Area Managers, 
Volunteers, Libraries and Local Communities to 
deliver digital support to customers across the 
County. Free public access wi-fi is to be installed in 
all county council buildings and officers to actively 
engage in working with a range of organisations in 
utilising national and regional digital inclusion 
schemes to make the most cost effective and 
efficient approach in supporting customers. 

8. This recommendation continues to be considered 
where appropriate. 

 

Date Board Route Recommendation/s Cabinet 
Response 

Progress 

15 Dec 16 Children 
and 
Young 
People 
(CYP) 

Children and 
Young People 
with Autism 
T&F 

1. The Task Group findings are reported to the 
Health and Well Being Board and assurances 
sought from partners about how the following 
issues of concern are being addressed in a co-
ordinated way across agencies: 

• Waiting times for assessment 

• Engagement with families and addressing 
their concerns 

• Training and early awareness of autism 
across education and early years’ settings 

• Effectiveness of services commissioned by 
the NHS 

• CAMHS performance in relation to autism 

• Consistency of specialist service provision 
across Cumbria 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
response 
 

1. The findings were reported to the HWBB.  
Subsequently the issues listed were also highlighted 
by Ofsted in 2019 and are now incorporated in the 
SEND improvement programme being delivered by 
the SEND Partnership Improvement Board which 
reports on progress to the HWBB.  Additionally 
regular updates are brought to CYP Scrutiny board. 

2. The Inclusion Strategy is delivering on these 
recommendations (especially on provision, multi-
disciplinary support and effective working with the 
school, families, and the child to keep them in 
education). The focus is on developing Alternative 
Provision, to release capacity within the whole 
school system to provide the kind of support that 
pupils will Autism experience. There is also 

90

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s55086/Response%20of%20the%20Corporate%20Director%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Autism%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s55086/Response%20of%20the%20Corporate%20Director%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Autism%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group.pdf


PAGE 11 

 

• Post-assessment pathways 

• Support for people in transition to adulthood. 
2. The Task Group findings are reported to CASL 

and assurances sought from the Learning 
Improvement Service and CASL about how the 
following issues are being addressed by schools 
around the county, and in particular in relation to 
the implementation of the Inclusive Cumbria 
Strategy that will be taken to Cabinet in December 
2016: Application of National Curriculum 
Guidance and examples of mainstream schools 
supporting pupils who are diagnosed to maximise 
their communication and independence 

• Effectiveness of multi-discipline support to 
ensure that the cognitive and behavioural 
needs of children is in place 

• Whether there is leadership in place to ensure 
that there is a whole school approach to 
autism 

• Effective work between the school, families 
and the child, to keep the child in education 
and maximise their chances (including 
provision of information and support in relation 
to statementing); 

3. Steps are taken to raise Members’ awareness of 
autism and the availability of support in local 
areas so that Members can champion the 
provision of support for all people with autism and 
their families and carers through the work of local 
committees and through area planning. 

4. Consideration is given to the role the County 
Council can play in supporting people with autism 
to access employment and apprenticeship 
opportunities within the County Council 
 

extensive work in preparation for Ofsted SEND local 
area inspections. Looking at how the whole system 
is working to support SEND children. Updates on 
progress are received regularly by CYP Scrutiny 
Board via the SEND Improvement Programme 
updates. 

3. As part of the Equality Action Plan, the Member 
Autism Champions are developing an action plan to 
improve Autism awareness in local communities. In 
addition, the Members’ Autism Network meets every 
2 months, attended by Member Champions from 
each Local Committee, Community Development 
Officers, and   SEND Senior Manager, and 
representatives from the Council Disability Staff 
network.  There is also a CCC Autism Champion 
network website: 

4. The Council’s Apprenticeships programme has 
been successful and there are several people with 
autism who are apprentices. Members Champions 
are working on providing autism awareness training 
to County Council teams taking on apprentices with 
autism. 

 

21 Jul 2016 
 
 
 

CYP CAMHS T&F 1. That Health Scrutiny Committee seeks a response 
from Cumbria NHS Foundation Trust to the CQC 
requirement that they take action to fully 
implement the findings of the independent report 
into CAMHS from 2012. 

2. That the Assistant Director Early Help and 
Learning keeps the Children and Young People’s 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
 

1. This was actioned 
2. Cumbria was unsuccessful and the Board was 

briefed in the Directors’ update to the Board. The 
Children’s Trust Board has a sub-group on 
Emotional Health and Wellbeing, which is 
implementing aspects of the services outlined in the 
bid – especially around schooling. The Council and 

https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/childrensservices/s

choolsandlearning/ils/specialeducationalneeds/

autismspectrumcondition/champions.asp  

 

91

https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/childrensservices/schoolsandlearning/ils/specialeducationalneeds/autismspectrumcondition/champions.asp
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/childrensservices/schoolsandlearning/ils/specialeducationalneeds/autismspectrumcondition/champions.asp
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/childrensservices/schoolsandlearning/ils/specialeducationalneeds/autismspectrumcondition/champions.asp


PAGE 12 

 

Scrutiny Advisory Board updated on progress in 
the delivery of Headstart, and a report to the 
Board on the implications of Cumbria not 
receiving the funding to roll out the programme 
countywide (in the event of this happening). 

3. That the Health Scrutiny Committee receives an 
annual update on impact of the Transformation 
Plan on improving outcomes for users of the 
CAMHS service. 

4. That the Health Scrutiny Committee seek 
assurances on whether there has been progress 
across the Morecambe Bay and North Cumbria 
NHS Trusts in standardising their protocols in 
relation to CAMHS. 
 

Cabinet 
response 
 

partners are tracking the Government Green Paper 
on Children’s Mental Health and are planning to 
submit to receive funding as a national Pathfinder. 
Scrutiny would be briefed on progress. 

3. & 4. A referral was made to Health Scrutiny, as a 
result the Health Scrutiny Committee receives 
regular updates regarding Mental Health Services, 
which includes the CAMHS service to provide 
oversight. 
 

22 Oct 2015 
 

C&P Transport and 
Young People 
T&F 

1. That the County Council assists the Cumbria 
Youth Parliament to work with bus operators and 
to participate in the Community Rail Partnerships 
to address the issues arising from the Task 
Group. This may result in a new survey co-
produced between the Youth Parliament and the 
providers. 

2. That there is a cost-benefits evaluation of the A2B 
NoW Card scheme that involves the Youth 
Parliament, so that Local Committees have clear 
evidence of value for money concerning this 
method of supporting young people to access bus 
services. 

3. That the Communities and Place Board invites the 
Youth Parliament to return to a future session to 
discuss whether there has been progress on 
these recommendations. 
 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
response 
 

1. The Cumbria Youth Parliament, Council officers and 
Stagecoach met in Rheged in February 2016. 

2. Stagecoach introduced several concessionary deals 
across other parts of Cumbria – notably in Barrow 
and West Cumbria, which have similar aims to A2B. 
This is part of a national programme for Stagecoach 
and has increased the number of concessionary 
travel options available.  Stagecoach have made 
their U19 offer permanent and consequently 
Dayriders in Barrow, Carlisle and Lancaster, 
Workington and Whitehaven are £2 and Kendal 
£1.50.  Dayriders plus in Barrow, Carlisle and 
Lancaster are £4 and in W Cumbria £3. 

3. Communities and Place Board were kept up to date 
with delivery of the recommendations and were 
supportive of the work of the Youth Parliament and 
Bus Operators 

 

24 Sept 2015 
 
 

CYP Child Sexual 
Exploitation in 
Cumbria T&F 

1. That the revised Child Sexual Exploitation 
Strategy being developed by the Local 
Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) is adopted 
by local authorities in Cumbria, and fully 
addresses the recommendations made by Ofsted. 

2. That the Corporate Director works with the LSCB 
to ensure that consistent and regular information 
on Child Sexual Exploitation is published, which 
can be used by Council Committees and partner 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
 
 

There has been significant progress in the 
implementation of the recommendations of the Task 
Group with the Directorate working with the Cumbria 
Safeguarding Children Partnership (CSCP). Work 
remains ongoing 
 
1. These arrangements are ongoing and continuing to 

strengthen the partnership around tackling CSE. 
The District Councils are represented on the CSCP 

92

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s51884/CAB%202107%20-%20Response%20of%20Corporate%20Director%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20CAMHS%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s51884/CAB%202107%20-%20Response%20of%20Corporate%20Director%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20CAMHS%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s44203/Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20Transport.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s44203/Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20Transport.pdf


PAGE 13 

 

decision making bodies as baseline information 
when considering issues linked to child 
safeguarding. Recommendation 

3. That the Corporate Director liaises with the LSCB 
to consider the findings of this review, and in 
particular considers historic cases and risks 
relating to transportation and hotels as a potential 
site for Child Sexual Exploitation. 

4. That Children’s Services strengthens its links with 
Local Authorities across the country where 
Cumbrian children are being placed in care. 

5. That the Senior Manager with lead responsibility 
for Child Sexual Exploitation in Children’s 
Services presents a 6 monthly report to the 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Advisory 
Board on progress in tackling Child Sexual 
Exploitation across the partnerships in Cumbria 

Cabinet 
response 

which supported engagement with them on these 
matters. 

2. The progress outlined in the Directorate response is 
ongoing and continuing to be monitored. The 
baseline information has been developed and is 
shared with Members as per the response to 
recommendation 5. 

3. This work is ongoing and subject to review by the 
CSCP. 

4. Cumbria has signed a North West Local Authority 
arrangement with other authorities to ensure that 
there is prompt communication about any potential 
placements and risks of CSE. This strengthens the 
arrangements that were in place when the Task and 
Finish Group was set up. 

5. 6 monthly reports are routinely taken to scrutiny and 
are on the Children’s Scrutiny Board Forward Plan. 

 
 

 

Date Board Route Recommendation/s Cabinet 
Response 

Progress 

4 February 
2016 

Adults Learning 
Disability 
service T&F 

1. Initiate a review of Respite Care to be undertaken 
by the Learning Disability Services Team in early 
2016 with scope, progress and outcome reported 
to the Adults Scrutiny Board. 

2. Recognise that when commissioning residential 
provision there needs to be a full range of 
services / models of accommodation and support 

3. Ensure the results of the brokerage scheme pilots 
are reflected in the new model of care being 
developed 

4. Continue to work with Healthwatch to encourage 
them to undertake a number of ‘Enter and View’ 
inspections of both residential care and day care 
facilities. 

5. Increase oversight of the Viaduct Hotel site in 
Workington, liaise with the developer to ensure it 
is on track and communicate progress back 
through the Learning Disabilities Partnership 
Board. 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. N/a 
 
Cabinet 
response 

 
1. The Shared Lives programme was launched.  Work 

was also undertaken with existing providers to 
review the long-term sustainability of residential 
respite. 

2. The Extra Care Housing programme was delivered 
across the county. A range of models of support for 
a number of individuals including moving on from 
residential care into supported living settings was 
commissioned. 

3. New service was launched in autumn 2016, which 
reflected the lessons learnt in the brokerage pilots. 

4. The HealthWatch contract commenced 1 April 
2016. Decisions on when and where to undertake 
“enter and view” visits are the responsibility of 
HealthWatch. 

5. Monthly meetings with the provider were 
undertaken, and weekly updates received. 

93

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s42890/Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20Child%20Sexual%20Exploitation.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s42890/Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20Child%20Sexual%20Exploitation.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s47355/Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Learning%20Disability%20Services.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s47355/Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Learning%20Disability%20Services.pdf


PAGE 14 

 

6. Step up the promotion of the ‘Health Passport’ 
amongst Service Users to increase its use 
amongst individuals with Learning Disabilities. 

7. Work with providers to ensure that they do not 
face financial disincentives by promoting the 
progression model. 

8. Cumbria Choice Partnership undertakes a review 
of the Choice Based Letting Policy in regard to its 
implementation for people who have a learning 
disability. 

6. The health passport was updated to include 
information about individual’s capacity.  ‘Health 
Facilitation’ training was delivered with providers. 

7. Discussions were held with providers relating to 
specific reviews. 

8. People who have a severe mental health or learning 
disability which significantly affects their ability to 
lead a normal life, and which puts them at risk of 
admission to hospital or residential care are in the 
highest priority group in the policy: Band A: Urgent 
Need for Housing due to Reasonable preference 
plus additional priority. 

 

26 March 
2015 

Adults Implementation 
of the Care Act 
T&F 

1. The organisation contracted to be the provider of 
‘Independent Financial Advice’ must be 
accessible countywide and be seen to provide a 
credible, robust and assured service. 

2. Customer insight must shape the changes being 
implemented particularly around information 
provision. 

3. The information produced by the Council to 
explain the changes to the public should include 
specific case studies/examples of customer 
pathways 

4. A summary of the key risks identified by The Care 
Act Programme Board and planned mitigating 
action should be shared with Members with 
regular progress reports provided through the 
Adults Scrutiny Board. 

5. An update should be provided to Full Council 
followed by discussions at Local Committees 
exploring links to service hubs/area plans. Area 
Managers should be asked to update Local 
Committee Members on plans for local delivery 
prior to the January launch of national 
communications. 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Partially 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Partially 
 
Cabinet 
response 
 

Information, Advice and Guidance requirements were 
developed. 
 
Self-service and self-assessment are high priority 
areas for Care Act implementation were developed 
within the Information Management programme.  
Statutory Guidance was provided by Government in 
March 2016. 
 
1. The information requirements to provide 

independent financial advice across Cumbria were 
addressed: 
a) As part of the contact process people are 
provided with information and advice relating to 
financial advice in terms of signposting and within 
the assessment stage. 
b) At any part of the pathway people can/may be 
advised to seek regulated financial advice. 
c) Community Finance Officers (CFO’s) advise 
individuals through the financial assessment 
process to seek independent financial advice in 
particular where a person is a full cost fee payer 
and where they may be looking to enter into a 
Universal Deferred Payment Agreement. 
d) Staff offer customers a factsheet alongside a 
wide-ranging offer of detailed documents that are in 
place for members of the public and can be 
accessed from the Council’s website. 

94

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s36492/Response%20of%20Corporate%20Director%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20Implementation%20of%20the%20Care%20Act.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s36492/Response%20of%20Corporate%20Director%20to%20Scrutiny%20Review%20-%20Implementation%20of%20the%20Care%20Act.pdf


PAGE 15 

 

e) The current signposting mechanism through the 
CFO’s means the Local Authority does not provide 
financial advice (as per the Care Act guidance) – 
they advise and guide re the regulations 
surrounding this area and policy that is being 
applied in terms of the financial assessment 
process. 

2. Statutory guidance was issued by the Government 
in March 2016 and Cumbria worked with teams to 
look at what this meant across operations alongside 
working with and engaging key partners in health, 
mental health, and housing in the next phase of 
delivery to ensure compliance. Many of the changes 
sat within the Safeguarding remit of the organisation 
and the policies were reviewed to reflect the 
change. Other areas of activity included 
a) Assessment and Eligibility – a two-day course for 
staff in early 2016 
b) The Act is now as referenced copy across all 
area offices for Social Work and with Mental Health 
Teams 
c) Safeguarding – new policy and procedure 
d) Transition – new policy and procedure 
e) Charging – refresh of charging guidance for ASC 
f) new Advocacy information, advice, and 
guidance/process 

3. Case studies are included within the financial 
publications and any materials produced moving 
forward will include case studies including all 
policies and procedures. 

4. The Care Act development group met to evaluate 
the roll out of the Care Act and how it translated into 
‘business as usual’ for the workforce and identified 
gaps.  Key risks were identified through the audit 
process, reported, and mitigated with action and 
learning at pace. 

5. The Portfolio holder is kept informed of 
developments across the Care Act regularly 
including updates in relation to the refresh of the 
legislation. 
 

95



PAGE 16 

 

Date Board Route Recommendation/s Cabinet 
Response 

Progress 

Feb 2020 Health 
and 
Adults 

Joint Advisory 
Group – Health 
and Adults 

1. Proposal that there is a mapping exercise of 
services available for people with dementia at an 
area level (ICC footprint) 

2. Adults Scrutiny Board to consider the draft All 
Ages Carers Charter and ensure the specific 
challenges associated with caring for a person 
with dementia are included. 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
 
Accepted by 
Alzheimer’s 
Society & 
Adults 
Scrutiny 
Board 

1. Feedback was provided through the Alzheimer’s 
Society.  An update on the development of the 
Pathway was seen by Health Scrutiny in December 
2020. 

2. The All-Ages Carers Charter was considered by the 
Adults Scrutiny Board in October 2020 which had a 
specific line of enquiry on support for those caring 
for a person with dementia. 

 

Feb 2019 Health 
and 
Adults 

Joint Advisory 
Group – Health 
and Adults 

1. Examples and Case Studies of mobilised 
communities working in both systems working in 
and within Integrated Care Communities which 
have led to tangible outputs to be shared with 
Members. 

2. Importance of ‘Activated Communities & 
Individuals’ to be included in the ‘Improving health 
and wellbeing throughout the life-course’ section 
of the draft Health and Well Being Strategy. 

3. Consideration of the resources required to enable 
communities to engage in the co-production of 
services to be undertaken within both System 
Leadership Boards. 

4. Findings of the Population Health Management 
Accelerator Programme pilot in Barrow to be 
reported back to the Cumbria Health Scrutiny 
Committee. 

5. Information and data from Social Care to be 
incorporated in the Population Management 
System (Radar) in North Cumbria. 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
 
Accepted by 
Cumbria 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board 
 
 

1. Examples and Case Studies were collated and 
shared with Members. 

2. The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy was 
updated with a focus on independent, activated, and 
resilient individuals and communities as a principle 
that underpins the strategy. ‘Activated Communities 
& Individuals’ has been included in the person-
centred care theme in order to create a link with the 
focus on providing the right care ‘downstream’ 
which empowers individuals to stay activated and 
independent for longer. Updated strategy was 
approved by Cumbria Health and Wellbeing Board 
on Thursday 18th April 2019 

3. Morecambe Bay’s System Design Authority group 
provided oversight of the pathway design process; 
the group required 1/3 of those who were engaged 
with to be service users. In North Cumbria, officers 
demonstrated engagement using the co-production 
toolkit. This was followed by North Cumbria building 
a ’system engine’ which is a single portfolio 
approach to delivering business as usual and 
transformation across the health system. As part of 
this work, System Leaders reviewed and aligned 
business planning processes in order to create a 
single approach across the health system. 

4. An update on the Mental Health Pilot was 
incorporated into the work programme for Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee. 

5. There was commitment from all parties to 
incorporate social care information and data into the 

96



PAGE 17 

 

radar system. North of England Commissioning 
Support Unit shared their template with the Council 
to support the development of data collection 
processes.  However, there were information 
governance legalities that had to be dealt, with only 
one local authority in the whole of the country who 
has solved this issue. Despite these challenges, 
some data sharing took place using ammonised 
data, but this was not to the aspired level.   Cumbria 
County Council also required North of England 
Commissioning Support Unit to review its data 
controls with NHS digital to support the 
incorporation of social care data. 
 

Oct 2018 Health 
and 
Adults 

Joint Advisory 
Group – Health 
and Adults 

1. The Integrated Care Communities Engagement 
Frameworks for both systems to enshrine a 
consistent approach to communication and 
engagement with the County Council Local 
Committees. 

2. Formal mechanisms be put in place to allow two-
way learning on the approach to Integrated Care 
Communities across the two systems. 

3. Briefing on what will be part of ‘phase 2’ of 
Integrated Care Communities implementation in 
North Cumbria to be provided to the Health 
Scrutiny Committee and Adult Scrutiny Board. 

4. Consideration to be given to how local services, in 
particular third sector provision, within each 
Integrated Care Community area can be mapped 
and what system might be needed to keep this 
information up to date 

 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
 
Accepted by 
North 
Cumbria CCG 
and 
Morecambe 
Bay CCG 

1. Integrated Care Communities had two forums in 
place to engage with local Councillors: The Health 
and Wellbeing Forums and/or Local Committees. 
Either could request more information from 
Integrated Care Communities but it is the choice of 
each group to make the request. 

2. Two-way learning events took place between ICCs, 
facilitated by Cumbria Learning Improvement 
Collaborative and Bay Learning Improvement 
Collaborative. 

3. A briefing was shared with Health Scrutiny 
Committee and Adult Scrutiny Board. 

4. In North Cumbria, a pilot was run which embedded 
a third sector representative within two ICC hubs, to 
improve knowledge and linkages with local systems.  
It was suggested that to produce a database of third 
sector provision would be too large a task and 
quickly become outdated.  However, the ICC 
stakeholder groups include a wide range of 
stakeholders including the third sector who fully 
engage with the ICC development process. In 
addition, North ICCs built a community asset base, 
including the third sector, supporting developments 
around Population Health Management. 
 
 

97



PAGE 18 

 

June 2018 Health 
and 
Adults 

Joint Advisory 
Group – Health 
and Adults 

1. Review of the H&WBB terms of reference and 
membership should strengthen the role of the 
third sector and the independent sector on the 
Board. Recognising that they will require support 
and facilitation to engage with the Board. 
Consideration should be given to what could be 
done to pull together an Independent Providers 
Group. 

2. To support the assurance process, members 
recommended that the HWBB co-ordination group 
should include senior officer representation from 
each member of the Board to ensure it is an 
effective ‘engine room’ for the board. 

3. Both Acute Trusts should prioritise recruitment of 
a stable nursing workforce within wards 
recognising that the role of discharge co-
ordinators is highly valued but supplementary to 
the core responsibility of nurses on the wards to 
manage discharge of patients. 
 

Accepted? 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
 
Accepted by 
Cumbria 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board 
 

1. The revised Terms of Reference for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board included third sector 
representation in the Membership. This gave the 
third sector direct input into Health and Care 
conversations on a strategic level.   As part of the 
CQC action plan, existing engagement forums were 
identified for stakeholders which include 
independent providers. The development of 
Independent Provider Groups continued to be 
discussed as part of the CQC Action Plan. 

2. To ensure proportionate representation, the co-
ordination group is made up of the following officers: 
Chief Executive – HealthWatch Cumbria; Chief 
Executive – South Lakeland District Council; The 
Director of Public Health - Cumbria County Council; 
Director of Strategy – North Cumbria Integrated 
Health and Care System; Chief Operating Officer – 
Morecambe Bay CCG; Chief Operating Officer – 
HealthWatch Cumbria; Director of Planning and 
Performance – Morecambe Bay CCG; Programme 
Director – Bay Health and Care Partners; Assistant 
Director Integration and Partnerships – Cumbria 
County Council; Deputy Director of Commissioning 
– North Cumbria CCG; Senior Manager Health and 
Care Integration – Cumbria County Council; Head 
of Communications and Engagement - North 
Cumbria CCG; Performance Manager - Cumbria 
County Council. 

3. The CQC action plan committed to the development 
of a system wide workforce strategy across Health 
and Social Care. Comments were fed into the 
development of the strategy’s framework. 
 

22 Sep 16 Health 
and 
Adults 

Heath and Care 
Integration T&F 

1. Ensure the Health and Well Being Coaches 
(HAWCs) are closely aligned with the ICCs 

2. Establish Integrated Care Communities (ICCs) to 
a common framework across and within North and 
South Cumbria. Any differences should be by 
design rather than default. 

3. Include within the key success criteria for 
Integrated Care Communities (ICCs) 

Accepted? 
1. Yes/already 

delivered 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 

1. HAWCs were in post November 2016 and 
operational from January 2017. HAWCs work 
closely with both Adult Social Care and ICCs. 
HAWCs bring a vital prevention role to ICCs 
because they support people to address the wider 
determinants of health (such as financial wellbeing 
and mental resilience). In addition, ensuring that 
HAWCs are fully engaged with ICC multi-
disciplinary teams supports effective and 

98



PAGE 19 

 

strengthening the prevention agenda, specifically 
referencing the wider determinants of health 

4. Ensure that when Integrated Care Communities 
(ICCs) are identifying and collaborating with key 
stakeholders these should include the District 
Councils and Housing Associations. 

5. Provide clear guidance that the largest Integrated 
Care Communities (ICCs) should establish 
subgroupings reflective of natural communities 

6. Produce clear and accessible information for 
communities to outline how patients will access 
services through Integrated Care Communities 
(ICCs), particularly for patients with Learning 
Disabilities. 

7. Provide clarification on what Mental Health 
Service Provision is expected to be delivered 
through the Integrated Care Communities (ICCs) 
and what will be at a Clinical Network level. 

 
Cabinet 
response 
 

appropriate referrals between HAWCs and health 
and care partners. 

2. ICCs in North and South Cumbria were developed 
within a common framework. Centring on the 
overall approach of developing a range of 
integrated services in and around a given 
community to proactively manage health and care 
needs of the population with mobilised 
communities. Aligning with ICC developments 
across North Cumbria, the Morecambe Bay area 
with colleagues in Lancashire North. The nature of 
the differences (e.g., socio-demographic) in each 
ICC area inevitably means the methods of 
development varies, but this detailed work is by 
design and not default. 

3. This was a core priority from the outset of ICC 
development. 

4. Health Partners committed to the establishment of 
health and wellbeing fora at locality level which 
increasingly interact with ICCs and take a view on 
service improvements which may be best 
organised across groupings of ICCs. 

5. The ICCs within the South Cumbria area of Better 
Care Together range from sizes of 11,500 to 
36,000 and in Lancashire North CCG, one of the 
ICCs supports over 50,000 residents. Within the 
development of ICCs any Sub groupings is 
reflected in localised plans, particularly when it 
comes to engaging with local communities, and are 
not viewed as separate units but a key part of the 
ICC. There is a matrix approach required in an ICC 
as the communities themselves stratify into many 
different sub groupings with geography being just 
one. Therefore, they are sensitive to natural 
communities but did not establish formal 
subgroupings. 

6. Health Partners recognised the need to 
communicate with residents in a range of different 
ways. 

7. Health Partners recognised that Mental Health 
requirements in ICCs needed further exploration 
and part of the wider strategic work of the STP for 
Lancashire and South Cumbria, understanding 

99

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s53804/Response%20of%20the%20Corporate%20Director%20-%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Integration%20of%20Health%20Care%20Integrated%20Care.pdf
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/s53804/Response%20of%20the%20Corporate%20Director%20-%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Integration%20of%20Health%20Care%20Integrated%20Care.pdf


PAGE 20 

 

which elements of mental health care are best 
delivered across the STP, within the Bay area and 
at ICC level. They identified an ICC in South 
Cumbria to work with and develop test cycles that 
help to understand the opportunity for improving 
care within an ICC as part of the wider integrated 
team. 
 

 

Date Board Route Recommendation/s Cabinet 
Response 

Progress 

27 Jan 22 Health Fluoridation 
T&F 

1. That when making a decision, the decision maker 
should factor in the known oral health benefits of 
water fluoridation and that they should make their 
assessment based on the current balance of 
scientific research on the wider health risks, if the 
question were to arise in the future.  Therefore, 
currently, Members recommend that existing 
water fluoridation schemes in Cumbria should be 
maintained, and that consideration should be 
given to extending water fluoridation 

2. That fluoridation works best as part of a package 
of interventions to improve oral health, and that 
decision makers should not view water fluoridation 
in isolation from other topical fluoride application 
methods and behavioural interventions for better 
oral health and diet 

3. That decision makers recognise that the science 
on wider health risks is constantly changing, and 
that the evidence of the wider health implications 
of fluoridation are kept under review. 

Accepted? 
1. Partially 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
 
Cabinet 
response 

1. Any future decision should take the balance of 
evidence at that time into account.  The current 
community water fluoridation scheme should be 
maintained. However, in light of Cabinet’s position 
on not further considering fluoridation until after the 
Catfish study has reported, extending fluoridation to 
other parts of Cumbria is not something that 
Cabinet wishes to consider at this time. 

2. Fluoridation is already part of a wider Oral Health 
Improvement programme that includes a 
supervised brushing programme for young children. 

3. Every four years, formal health monitoring report for 
Community Water Fluoridation schemes are 
produced by the Office for Health Improvement & 
Disparities (formerly Public Health England) and 
these will be reviewed on publication 

 

100

http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s119688/CAB%202701%20-%20Cabinet%20Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Task%20Group%20Review%20Fluoridation%20of%20Water%20Supplies.pdf
http://moderngov.ccc/documents/s119688/CAB%202701%20-%20Cabinet%20Response%20to%20Scrutiny%20Task%20Group%20Review%20Fluoridation%20of%20Water%20Supplies.pdf


 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 

Meeting date: 8 September 2022 

From: Scrutiny Chairs 

 
 

Scrutiny Chairs’ Updates 
 

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 This report provides an update to Scrutiny Management Board from each of 
the Chairs of Scrutiny Boards and Committees, attached as Appendices 1 to 
6. 

2.0 Issues for Scrutiny 

2.1 Members are asked to note each of the updates attached as Appendices 1 
to 6. 

3.0 Background 

3.1 To provide an overview of the recent and planned activity of each of the 
Scrutiny Boards and Committees, each Chair has provided a short update. 
These are appended to this report. 

 
Clare Killeen 
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager 
August 2022 
 
 
  
 
 
Appendices 
 
Updates from the Chair of each Scrutiny Board and Committee as follows: 
Appendix 1 – Children and Young People Scrutiny Advisory Board 
Appendix 2 – Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board 
Appendix 3 – Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board 
Appendix 4 – Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
Appendix 5 – Adults Scrutiny Board 
Appendix 6 – Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 

101

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions 
[including Local Committees] 
 
No previous relevant decisions. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
No background papers. 
 
 
Contact: Clare Killeen. Telephone 07771913588 
Email: clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

 
 

102

mailto:clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

Scrutiny Management Board Briefing from Chair of 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Board 
 

1.0 Purpose of Update 

1.1 This report updates Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) on the work of the 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Advisory Board and any issues and 
developments that have occurred since the last meeting of SMB. 

2.0 Board Meeting Update 

2.1 The last meeting of the Board took place in May and an update to SMB was 

provided in June. The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for 21 October. 

The Board will receive an update on the following items: 

• Annual Ofsted Letter – in which Ofsted make recommendations based 
on their annual visit. 

• SEND update - Members requested this includes an update on access 
to mental health services for children and young people. 

• Child exploitation six monthly update – this is an update which gives 
the Board an opportunity to scrutinise arrangements for tackling child 
exploitation and any key safeguarding issues. 
 

3.0 Conclusion 

3.1 The Board will continue to focus on developments in the children and young 
people’s agenda over the coming few months particularly providing input into 
the development of emerging policies and new ways of working as we begin to 
scrutinise how services are responding to the needs of children and families as 
Local Government Reorganisation progresses. 

 

Chair: Cllr Phil Dew 

August 2022 

 

 

103



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

 

Scrutiny Management Board Briefing from Chair of 

Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board 

1.0 Purpose of update 

1.1 This report updates Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) on the activity of the 

Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board and any issues and 

developments that have occurred since the last meeting of SMB.  

2.0 Board meeting update 

2.1 The Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board last met on the 10 June 

2022. 

2.2 Fire Service Performance: The Board received a report from the Assistant 

Chief Fire Officer and Resilience examining the Cumbria Local Resilience 

Forum Debriefing and the lessons learnt. Members were satisfied that 

debriefing and lessons learnt processes were robust which enabled learning 

to be taken forward effectively. Members raised specifically the challenges 

faced by communities when isolated due to an incident along with the 

upcoming impact the telephony changes may have i.e. ‘analogue switch off’. 

Officers assured Members this was being planned for.  

2.3 Highway Information Asset Management System: Following a referral from 

Performance Working Group, the Board requested an item to look at the 

implementation of the HIAM System. Members asked officers what mapping 

was used to identify locations. They were assured that a combination of 

technologies, such as what three words, would lead to effective 

implementation. Officers also committed, at the request of Members, to 

ensure elected Members know how to have the system on mobile devices, 

enabling them to support communities effectively.  

2.4 Draft Local Flood Risk Management Strategy: The Board received a report 

on the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy and were reassured on the 

approach. Officers agreed to follow up regarding some of the maps in use as 

errors had been identified.  

3.0 Conclusion 

3.1 The Scrutiny Advisory Board has scrutinised key areas of focus for the Board.  

 

105



3.2 The next Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board meeting is 

scheduled to take place on 15 September 2022. The agenda includes Nature 

Recovery and the role of the Council, and Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service 

governance update.  

 

Chair: Cllr Stan Collins  

August 2022 

106



Appendix 3 

 

Scrutiny Management Board Briefing from Chair of Local 

Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board 

 

1.0 Purpose of update 

1.1 This report updates Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) on the activity of the 

LEP Scrutiny Board.  

2.0 Board meeting update 

2.1 The LEP Scrutiny Board has not met since the last update to SMB  

2.2 The LEP Scrutiny Board Chair has remained in contact with the Chief 

Executive of the LEP and will develop the agenda for the next meeting being 

held in September 2022 to ensure continued scrutiny on LEP activity.   

2.3 This will include ensuring that the LEP is providing the necessary, appropriate 

and adequate support for businesses and the economy in Cumbria.  

 

3.0 Conclusion 

 

3.1 The Board will continue to scrutinise matters relating to the Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP).  

 

3.2 The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for 27 September 2022.  

 

Chair: Collr Bill Wearing 

August 2022 

 

107



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 

Scrutiny Management Board Briefing from Chair of Health 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

1.0 Purpose of Update 

1.1 This report updates Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) on the work of 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee and any issues and developments that 
have occurred since the last meeting of SMB. 

2.0 Board Meeting Update 

2.1 Since the last meeting of Scrutiny Management Board, Cumbria Health 
Scrutiny Committee has been monitoring changes across a number of Health 
Services and will continue to do this through regular meetings with System 
Leaders in both areas. The last meeting of the Committee took place on the 
25th July. 

 
2.2 The specific items considered at the 25 July meeting are listed below:  

 

• Update on the Health & Care Act and the impact on powers of Health 
Scrutiny - the Committee considered the measures for the Secretary of 
State (SoS) to intervene in proposals for NHS reconfigurations. The 
SoS will have to ask for views on the changes from local NHS 
organisations and health overview and scrutiny committees and publish 
a summary of their responses.  
 

• Mental Health Services at Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear 
Foundation Trust (CNTW) – Members received an update on the 
Improvements Made to Pathways of Care since the Transfer of Mental 
Health Services to CNTW. 
  

• Dentistry Services in West Cumbria - the Committee scrutinised the 
measures being put in place to address the fragility of dentistry 
services in West Cumbria following on from the report received by the 
Committee in October 2021.  
 

2.3 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for the 3 October and the 
items on the draft agenda are listed below 
 

• Stroke Care and Rehabilitation across North and South Cumbria - To 
receive an update on the implementation of the Enhanced Network 
Model of Acute Stroke Care and Rehabilitation in Lancashire and 
South Cumbria as well as the Hyper Acute Stroke Unit in North. 
Cumbria including a comparison of the different operating models, what 
learning can be applied from one to the other. 

 

109



• L&SC Pathology Collaboration - To receive an update on the 
programme. 

 

• Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee - To note the 
outcome of the Joint Committee meeting planned for September which 
will consider the delivery of the CQC and NICHE action plan by 
University Hospitals Morecambe Bay Trust and the Community Beds 
Consultation outcome. 

 

• Digital Strategies - Report on the progress being made on digitising 
records and improving system interoperability across both Health 
Systems. By 2025 records of health and care delivery will be required 
to be digital, not paper, everywhere.  The Government aim to have 
shared care records for all citizens by 2024 that provide a single, 
functional health and care record which citizens, caregivers and care 
teams can all safely access. 
 
 

3.0 Additional Scrutiny activity undertaken by the Committee 

3.1 Additional activity that has taken place by or is planned by the Board is noted 
below: 
 

3.2 Meetings between the Lead Health Scrutiny Members and Chief Officers and 
Chairs of key Health Partners have taken place periodically and are continuing 
on a quarterly basis. 

 
3.3 The first meeting of the Joint Health and Adults Task and Finish Group took 

place on Wednesday 8 June, Members discussed: How the Integrated Care 
Partnership will relate to the Health and Wellbeing Board and other health 
related organisations, How elected members will engage with the Integrated 
Care Systems, and in addition how the voice of the communities will be 
included, What changes the new Integrated Care System will bring to the Health 
Scrutiny function.   
 

4.0 Conclusion 

4.1 The Committee will continue to scrutinise matters relating to planning, provision 
and the operation of health services to ensure that decisions reflect local needs. 
They will also hold health service bodies to account publicly; assist in 
addressing health inequalities; support continuous improvement of health 
services and support and strengthening improved partnership working; ensure 
that proposals for major changes to health services are equitable, reasonable 
and reflect local need. 

 

 Chair: Cllr Carni McCarron-Holmes 

August 2022 

110



Appendix 5 

Scrutiny Management Board Briefing from Chair of Adults 
Scrutiny Board 
 

1.0 Purpose of Update 

1.1 This report updates Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) on the work of the 
Adults Scrutiny Advisory Board and any issues and developments that have 
occurred since the last meeting of SMB. 

2.0 Board Meeting Update 

2.1 The last meeting of the Adults Scrutiny Board took place on the 24 June 2022, 
issues considered included: 

• Adult Social Care Strategic Position - A situational update and 
presentation providing a strategic overview of the Domiciliary and 
Residential Care Sector, Adult Social Care and Day Services.    

• Local Government Reorganisation - Members received a short paper 
and presentation outlining the current position on the plan for Adults 
Services transition to the new authorities. 

• Quality (Provider Services) - Members had the opportunity to scrutinise 
a summary of the inspection and performance reports from across the 
provider sector with a particular focus on Cumbria Care 

• Safeguarding Adults at risk from abuse and neglect - The Board was 
presented with an update and analysis of adult safeguarding activity in 
the fourth quarter of 2021/22, briefing members on progress against 
key areas of performance relating to ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’, 
providing a benchmark against other local authorities and describing 
actions planned to strengthen and consolidate improvements in adult 
safeguarding in Cumbria through the Safeguarding Adults Board. 

2.2 The next meeting of the Adults Scrutiny Board will take place on 14 October. 
Issues to be considered will be discussed at a planning meeting with the 
Executive Director – People, key officers and the Chair and Vice Chair to 
consider the work programme. Currently the draft agenda includes: 

• Adult Social Care Strategic Position - A situational update and 
presentation providing a strategic overview of the Domiciliary and 
Residential Care Sector, Adult Social Care and Day Services.    

 

• Use of enhanced Assistive Technology to support discharge - The 
Board to examine the work with North Transfer of Care Hub to increase 
use of assistive technology to support discharges. 

 

• Policy framework for the Better Care Fund from 2023 - For Members to 
understand and scrutinise how the programme will support 
implementation of the new approach to integration at place level and 
what this will mean in Cumbria. 

 

111



• Learning Disabilities Residential Care Framework - For Members to be 
presented with details of the new Framework for the provision of 
Learning Disabilities Residential Care. 

 

• Safeguarding Adults at risk from abuse and neglect - Standing Item for 
each board meeting.  
  
 

3.0 Additional Scrutiny activity undertaken by the Board 
 

3.1 The first meeting of the Joint Health and Adults Task and Finish Group took 
place on Wednesday 8 June, Members discussed: How the Integrated Care 
Partnership will relate to the Health and Wellbeing Board and other health 
related organisations, How elected members will engage with the Integrated 
Care Systems, and in addition how the voice of the communities will be 
included, What changes the new Integrated Care System will bring to the Health 
Scrutiny function.   
 

 
4.0 Conclusion 

4.1 The Board will continue to focus on developments in the People Directorate, 
building on the positive working relationship with the Board. 

 

Chair: Cllr Mark Wilson 
August 2022 

112



Appendix 6 
 

Scrutiny Management Board - Update from Chair of Cumbria 
Police and Crime Panel 
 
1.0  Purpose of Update 

This report updates Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) on the work of the 

Cumbria Police and Crime Panel and any issues and developments that have 

occurred since the last meeting of SMB. 

 

2.0  Board meeting Update 

2.1 The Police and Crime Panel last met on the 19 July 2022. 

2.2 Police and Crime Commissioner’s Annual Report 2021-22: The Panel 

considered the sixth PCC Annual Report, following the publication of the PCC’s 

Police & Crime Plan last year. Members explored how each of the police and 

crime objectives were being met, including key successes such as Cumbria’s 

response time for answering 101 calls being one of the best performing in the 

country, as well as the Force currently being the fourth best rated in the country 

for managing offenders. Members drew particular focus to the lack of 

performance data which would help to enable scrutiny of the information in the 

annual report. It was agreed that the availability of future performance 

information to the Panel would be considered. 

2.3 Police and Crime Panel Chairman’s Annual Report 2021-22: The Panel 

received the Chair’s Annual Report which highlighted activity over the last year, 

including reviewing the PCC’s new Police & Crime Plan 2021-2025.  

2.4 Performance Update on the Police and Crime Plan: Members considered 

how the PCC was meeting Objective 3 of the Police & Crime Plan: A Focus on 

Victims. This was part of an overall work programme to provide scrutiny of all 

objectives of the Plan. While this opened discussion of important issues, 

Members stated they would value a review of trends and trajectory covering all 

key objectives of the plan and it was agreed that this will be considered with the 

Chair and officers for the next meeting.  

2.5 Governance of Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service: The PCC has recently been 

successful in his business case to take on the governance of Cumbria Fire & 

Rescue Service. Members suggested during the meeting that additional 

training and development regarding fire governance be made available to 

members. Officers will work with the Chair to ensure that the Panel are 

prepared for the changes that local government reorganisation and the 

additional responsibility of fire governance will bring in the future.  

 

113



3.0  Conclusion 

3.1 The next Police and Crime Panel meeting is scheduled for 14 October 2022.    

 
Chair: Clr Bill McEwan  
September 2022 

114



 

 

. 
 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 

Meeting date: 8 September 2022 

From: Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager 

 
 
 

Scrutiny Management Board Update Report and Work 
Programme 
 
 

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 This report provides Scrutiny Management Board with an update on issues 
and developments that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board in 
June 2022. 

1.2 This report also provides Board Members with the current Scrutiny Work 
Programme for 2022.23 attached as Appendix 1, and the current Forward 
Plan of Key Decisions 1 October – 30 November 2022 attached as Appendix 
2. 

1.3 Also attached as Appendix 3 is a briefing note on customer engagement 
undertaken and feedback received to help shape the county’s library 
services, as requested by Members at the last meeting of the Board in June. 

2.0 Issues for Scrutiny 

2.1 Members are asked to: 

2.2 Note the activity set out in the report; 

2.3 Consider the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2022/23 attached as Appendix 1; 

2.4 Note the Forward Plan of key Decisions 1 October 2022 – 30 November 
2022 attached as Appendix 2; and, 

2.5 Note the briefing note on customer engagement undertaken to help shape 
the County’s library services, attached as Appendix 3. 

 

115

Agenda Item 9



 

Page 2 of 3 

3.0 Background 

Scrutiny Work Programme 

3.1 The current Scrutiny Work Programme for 2022/23 is attached as Appendix 
1. This remains under review as issues emerge and as the Local 
Government Reorganisation process progresses. 

Task and Finish activity 

3.2 The Health and Care Task and Finish Group is progressing with its work. 
The Group is exploring the implications of the recent reforms set out in the 
Health and Care Act and the impact on the Health Scrutiny function. The 
Group is scheduled to complete its work in the Autumn, and their findings 
and recommendations are due to be considered by SMB in November. 

Call-Ins 

3.3 There have been no Call-Ins received since the last meeting of the Scrutiny 
Management Board. 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

3.4 Members are asked to note the Forward Plan of Key Decisions for 1 October 
2022 – 30 November 2022. 

Library Services engagement  

3.5 Member are asked to note the briefing note attached as Appendix 3 which 
sets out the engagement undertaken with the public and how the feedback 
received has helped to shape the recent work to transform library services in 
the county. 

 
Clare Killeen 
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager 
August 2022 
 
 
  
 
 

116



 

 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Scrutiny Work Programme 2022.23 
Appendix 2 – Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1 October 2022 – 30 November 2022 
Appendix 3 – Library Services Briefing Note 
 
 
Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions 
[including Local Committees] 
 
No previous relevant decisions. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
No background papers. 
 
 
Contact: Clare Killeen Tel. 07771913588. 
Email clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk. 
 
 

117

mailto:clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

COMBINED SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 
 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD   

 Issue Description Timeline 

Task & Finish 
activity 
 

None 

Board 
Meetings 
 

Review of Council 
Scrutiny work and 
achievements 
 

To review recommendations and their implementation during this 
Council to inform a final Scrutiny Report, and to consider approach to 
evaluation and sharing of information, knowledge and skills to inform 
future scrutiny arrangements in the two new unitary authorities in 
Cumbria. 
 

September 2022 

Absence Management Update on absence management, employee wellbeing and support – 
including case studies and relevant comparative information. 
 

November 2022 

Health and Care Task 
and Finish Review 
Report 
 

To consider and approve the report from the Health and Care Task 
and Finish Group for submission to the relevant decision-making 
bodies. 

November 2022 

Final Scrutiny Report To consider a draft Final Cumbria County Council Scrutiny Report for 
presentation to full Council and for publication and sharing with the 
two new councils. 
 
 
 
 
 

November 2022 

119



2 
 

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD 

 Issue Description Timeline 

Task & Finish 
activity 
 

None 

Board 
Meetings 
 
 
 
 

Natural Capital / Nature 
Recovery 
 

Nature recovery and Cumbria County Council’s role. September 2022 

CFRS Her Majesty’s Inspectorate Update. 
 

September 2022 

CFRS Future Governance of Fire and Rescue Service 
 

November 2022 

Community Power Impact and benefits of community asset transfers through an asset-

based community development approach. 

 

November 2022 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD   

 Issue Description Timeline 

Task & Finish 
activity 

 
None 

 

Board 
meetings 

Annual Ofsted Letter Board to receive update on Ofsted visit April and scrutinise progress 
in addressing Ofsted recommendations for improvements in 
Children’s and Family Services. 

October 2022 

120



3 
 

SEND Update To receive an update on the SEND Improvement Plan and to receive 
an update on how Cumbria is responding to the proposals set out in 
the SEND Green Paper. 

October 2022 

Child Exploitation 
Update 

Board to receive a six-monthly update on action to tackle Child 
Exploitation in Cumbria. 

October 2022 

School Exam Results Board to receive update on 2022 public examinations, including KS 2, 
GCSE and A-Levels. Report also to consider action to narrow 
attainment gaps and comparisons with previous years. 
 

December 2022 

ADULTS SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD 

 Issue Description Timeline 

Task & Finish 
activity 
 
 

Health and Adult Social 
Care 

Health and Adults Task and Finish group to:  Scrutinise the 
implementation of the Health and Care Act and, understand the 
implications the Act has on the integration of Health and Care across 
the systems in both North and South Cumbria. 
 

March 2022 – 
October 2022 

Board 
Meetings 

Use of enhanced 
Assistive Technology  
to support discharge 
 

The Board to examine the work with North Transfer of Care Hub to 
increase use of assistive technology to support discharges. 

October 2022 
 

Policy framework for the 
Better Care Fund from 
2023 

For Members to understand and scrutinise how the programme will 
support implementation of the new approach to integration at place 
level and what this will mean in Cumbria. 
 

October 2022 

121



4 
 

Learning Disabilities 
Residential Care 
Framework 
 

For Members to be presented with details of the new Framework for 
the provision of Learning Disabilities Residential Care. 

October 2022 

Shared Outcome 
Framework 

The Integration White Paper sets out the government’s approach to 
designing shared outcomes which will place person-centred care at 
the centre of their plans for reform, Implementation of shared 
outcomes will begin from April 2023. 
 

January 2023 

Safeguarding Adults at 
risk from abuse and 
neglect   
  

Standing Item for each board meeting.  
  
  
 

Ongoing Standing 
Item   

Board Briefing Standing Item for each board meeting.  
  
  

Ongoing Standing 
Item   

CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 Issue Description Timeline 

Task & Finish 
activity 
 

Integration of Health and 
Care 

Health and Adults Task and Finish group to:  Scrutinise the 
implementation of the Health and Care Act and, understand the 
implications the Act has on the integration of Health and Care across 
the systems in both North and South Cumbria. 
 

March 2022 – 
October 2022 
 

Committee 
Meetings 
 

Stroke Care and 
Rehabilitation across 
North and South 
Cumbria  
 

To receive an update on the implementation of the Enhanced 
Network Model of Acute Stroke Care and Rehabilitation in Lancashire 
and South Cumbria as well as the Hyper Acute Stroke Unit in North. 
Cumbria including a comparison of the different operating models, 
what learning can be applied from one to the other. 
 

October 2022 

122



5 
 

L&SC Pathology 
Collaboration 
 

To receive an update on the programme. 

 

October 2022 

Cumbria and Lancashire 
Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee 

To note the outcome of the Joint Committee meeting planned for 

September which will consider the delivery of the CQC and NICHE 

action plan by University Hospitals Morecambe Bay Trust and the 

Community Beds Consultation outcome. 

 

October 2022 

Digital Strategies Report on the progress being made on digitising records and 
improving system interoperability across both Health Systems. By 
2025 records of health and care delivery will be required to be digital, 
not paper, everywhere.  The Government aim to have shared care 
records for all citizens by 2024 that provide a single, functional health 
and care record which citizens, caregivers and care teams can all 
safely access. 
 

October 2022 

Cardiac Care Committee to receive a report on Cardiac Care across both systems 

in Cumbria with a particular emphasis on the safety, quality and 

sustainability of the services that patients receive. 

 

To be confirmed 
 
 
 
 

CUMBRIA LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP SCRUTINY BOARD 

 Issue Description Timeline 

Board 
Meetings 

To be confirmed To be confirmed 

 

 

 

 

September 2022 

123



6 
 

CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 Issue Description Timeline 

Panel 
Meetings 

Police and Crime Plan 

 
 
 

To focus on assurances relating to specific elements of the delivery of 
the Police and Crime Plan 2021-2025 and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s statutory duties 
 
 

October 2022 
 
 
 

PCC Precept Proposals 

2023/24 

To consider and respond to the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
Council Tax Precept proposals for 2023/24. 

January 2023 

 

124



 

 
 
 
 

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
1 OCTOBER 2022 - 30 NOVEMBER 2022 

 
PUBLISHED ON 31 AUGUST 2022 

 
 

125



 
CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 
 
Explanatory Note 
 
The County Council is required to publish a Forward Plan of all key decisions to be taken 
in the following two months. This Plan begins on 1 October 2022 and replaces the Plan 
published on  31 July 2022. It will be updated monthly and will be available on the last 
working day of each month. Previous versions of the Plan can also be found on the 
Council’s website http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-democracy/councillors-democracy-
elections/decisions/forwardplan/2011.asp  
 
The Forward Plan shows details of key decisions to be taken by the Council’s Executive 
(ie the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet), Local Committees and by Officers under 
their delegated powers. It also shows significant decisions to be taken by the Executive 
which are not Key Decisions. The membership of the Executive and the Local Committees 
is set out in Appendix 1 at the end of this document. 
 
A key decision is one which is likely to be:-  
 
(i) Significant in terms of expenditure or savings if it relates to a matter which exceeds 

£500,000 in value, except those decisions taken by:- 
 

1. the Chief Executive under delegated authority in connection with Treasury 
Management; 

 
2. the Executive Director – People (Deputy Chief Executive) under delegated 

authority in relation to care plans for individual children and young people or 
adults; 

  
3. Executive Directors generally under delegated powers in relation to the 

submission of or acceptance of tenders. 
 
OR 
 
(ii) Significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area 

comprising two or more electoral divisions if it would change, or proposes changes 
to, the way in which services are used or provided.  Significant in this context 
means important or far reaching.  Examples would include proposals for changing 
the character of a school, closing down or opening Council services, and major 
changes in transport arrangements affecting an area.  This is not an exhaustive list, 
and in considering whether a decision is a ‘key decision’ for the purposes of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012, the Council seeks to apply the principle that the public 
in the area affected should not be taken by surprise by the proposed decision.  

 
 
 

126

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-democracy/councillors-democracy-elections/decisions/forwardplan/2011.asp
http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-democracy/councillors-democracy-elections/decisions/forwardplan/2011.asp


 
The Plan shows:- 

when these decisions will be made 

who will make the decision 

to whom representations can be made and how 

what arrangements are proposed to consult the public and stakeholders about the 
decisions 

what documents relating to those decisions will be available and when 

 
For completeness, the Plan includes important decisions which will be taken by the full 
Council which are not strictly key decisions. 
 
Once they are available copies of documents referred to in the Plan may be obtained on 
the Internet, or by e-mail democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk.  A report to the decision 
maker will be available one week before the Meeting.  If any documents are available 
before that period then that will be specified.  However, in a small number of cases it may 
not be possible to make available certain documents as they contain confidential 
information. 
 
The Plan is available free of charge on request from Daniel Hamilton 
(daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk) . It will also be available for inspection at Cumbria 
House, Carlisle and County Offices, Kendal from 9.00 am to 5.00 pm Mondays to 
Thursdays and 9.00 am to 4.30 pm on Fridays and on the County Council’s website 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?bcr=1&RPId=117 , as well as at all 
the libraries in the County. 
 
 
 
MR STEWART YOUNG 
Leader of the Council 
 
 

127

mailto:democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?bcr=1&RPId=117


 

 

 
FORWARD PLAN 

1 OCTOBER 2022 - 30 NOVEMBER 2022 
INDEX OF CONTENTS 

 

Subject 
Type of 

Decision 
Who will take 

Decision 
Consultation 

Representations 
to 

Relevant Cabinet 
Portfolio/Local 

Committee Chair 

Relevant Scrutiny 
Board 

Public 
(Part 1) 

or  
Private 
(Part 2) 

1. A595 Grizebeck 
Improvement Scheme - 
Land Acquisition, 
Compulsory Purchase 
Order and Side Roads 
Order 

Approval for the 
acquisition of land 
(including new rights over 
land) and the making if 
confirmed, implementation 
of a Compulsory Purchase 
Order (CPO) and a Side 
Roads Order (SRO) in 
order to construct the 
A595 Grizebeck 
Improvement Scheme. 

Key 
Decision 

Cabinet 
on 

13 Oct 2022 

 Angela Jones, 
Executive 
Director - 

Economy and 
Infrastructure 

Cumbria House, 
117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle CA1 1RD 

Cabinet Member for 
Highways and 

Transport 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - 

Communities and 
Place 

Public 
 

 

128



Subject 
Type of 

Decision 
Who will take 

Decision 
Consultation 

Representations 
to 

Relevant Cabinet 
Portfolio/Local 

Committee Chair 

Relevant 
Scrutiny Board 

Public 
(Part 1) 

or  
Private 
(Part 2) 

2. Adult Social Care 
Funding Reforms: Fair 
Cost of Care (FCOC) and 
draft Market Sustainability 
Plan submission to DHSC 

To approve the required 
submissions to DHSC 
relating to Adult Social 
Care Funding Reforms. 
 

Key 
Decision 

Cabinet 
on 

13 Oct 2022 

 John Readman, 
Executive 

Director (People) 
Cumbria House, 
117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle CA1 1RD 

Cabinet Member for 
Health and Care 

Services 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - Adults 

Public 
 

 

3. To Award a contract for 
the Single Stage Design, 
Build and Launch of the 
new Windermere Electric 
Ferry 

To award a contract for 
the single stage design 
and build of the New 
Windermere Electric Ferry 
to facilitate the design, 
construction and launch of 
the new electric ferry. The 
new ferry will replace the 
current ferry, the Mallard, 
which is reaching end of 
life. 
 

Key 
Decision 

Cabinet 
on 

13 Oct 2022 

 Angela Jones, 
Executive 
Director - 

Economy and 
Infrastructure 

Cumbria House, 
117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle CA1 1RD 

Cabinet Member for 
Highways and 

Transport 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - 

Communities and 
Place 

Public 
 

 

129



Subject 
Type of 

Decision 
Who will take 

Decision 
Consultation 

Representations 
to 

Relevant Cabinet 
Portfolio/Local 

Committee Chair 

Relevant 
Scrutiny Board 

Public 
(Part 1) 

or  
Private 
(Part 2) 

4. Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy 

To approve the draft Local 
Flood Risk Management 
Strategy (LFRMS).  
 
This document is an 
update on the Strategy 
that was produced in 
2015. The LFRMS is a 
requirement for all LLFA to 
set out how local flood 
risks will be managed in 
the county, who will deliver 
them and how they will be 
funded. It helps our Flood 
Partnership Organisations 
and communities 
understand different roles 
and responsibilities and 
how agencies or 
authorities will work 
together to manage local 
flooding throughout 
Cumbria. 

Key 
Decision 

Cabinet 
on 

13 Oct 2022 

 Angela Jones, 
Executive 
Director - 

Economy and 
Infrastructure 

Cumbria House, 
117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle CA1 1RD 

Cabinet Member for 
Highways and 

Transport 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - 

Communities and 
Place 

Public 
 

 

130



Subject 
Type of 

Decision 
Who will take 

Decision 
Consultation 

Representations 
to 

Relevant Cabinet 
Portfolio/Local 

Committee Chair 

Relevant 
Scrutiny Board 

Public 
(Part 1) 

or  
Private 
(Part 2) 

5. A592 DfT Safer Roads 
Programme – To Award a 
Contract for the 
Construction Stage of a 
Two-stage Design and 
Build Contract 

To award a contract for 
stage two of a two stage 
design and build contract 
for the A592 DfT Safer 
Roads Programme to 
facilitate the construction 
of safety interventions on 
Kirkstone Pass including 
resurfacing, VRS, signage, 
drainage improvements 
and lining. 
 

Key 
Decision 

Cabinet 
on 

13 Oct 2022 

 Angela Jones, 
Executive 
Director - 

Economy and 
Infrastructure 

Cumbria House, 
117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle CA1 1RD 

Cabinet Member for 
Highways and 

Transport 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - 

Communities and 
Places 

Public 
 

 

6. Subject Fire Service 
Statement of Assurance 
2021/22 

For Cabinet to agree the 
Statement of Assurance 
for 2021/22 
 

Non Key 
Decision 

Cabinet 
on 

10 Nov 2022 

 John Beard, 
Chief Fire Officer 
Fire HQ, Carleton 
Avenue,  Penrith 

CA10 2FA 

Cabinet member for 
Customer Services, 
Transformation and 

Fire and Rescue 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - 

Communities and 
Place 

Public 
 

 

131



Subject 
Type of 

Decision 
Who will take 

Decision 
Consultation 

Representations 
to 

Relevant Cabinet 
Portfolio/Local 

Committee Chair 

Relevant 
Scrutiny Board 

Public 
(Part 1) 

or  
Private 
(Part 2) 

7. Supported Living at 
Kirkland View Care 
Support Award 

Approval to award a 
supported living care 
provider for the Kirkland 
View scheme 
 

Key 
Decision 

Executive 
Director - People 

(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 
Not before 
3 Oct 2022 

 John Readman, 
Executive 

Director (People) 
117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle CA1 1RD 

Cabinet Member for 
Health and Care 

Services 

Scrutiny Advisory 
Board - Adults 

Public 
 

 

132



Appendix 3 

Scrutiny Management Board Briefing Note. Library 

Service: Approach to customer engagement and feedback  

Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this briefing note is to provide SMB with an overview of the 

Library and Archive Service’s approach to customer engagement, insight and 

feedback. 

 

1.2 This builds on the June update to the Board on the transformation of the 

service since 2019. 

2.0 Background 

2.1 Libraries and Archives are universal public facing services, available to all 

local residents and communities. Therefore, customers of the services are 

incredibly diverse as the offer is available to everyone. 

 

2.2 The Council Plan and Customer Strategy clearly stated the need to put 

customers at the heart of everything we do; and the Library and Archive 

service has sought to integrate this ethos into all aspects of its work including 

capital projects, selection of book stock; delivery of activity and development 

of the workforce. This briefing note provides examples. 

 

3.0 Developing our customer insight 

 

3.1 Understanding our customers is important. We do this using a range of 

sources  

• Information from our customer and catalogue data base (Koha) which gives 

us numbers of members, age profile, geographic spread, gender identity, 

types of books being selected, numbers of books being borrowed and location 

of where they are being borrowed from. 

• Feedback provided directly from customers on the customer feedback forms 

available in every library. Often the feedback we receive via this route 

highlights individual members of staff and the support they have provided to 

customers.  

• Complaints – either formal or informal, made directly to the service or via the 

corporate complaints team. These are investigated and responded to – 

adopting an approach to seek resolution informally without the issue 

escalating. 

133



• Making good use of the local intelligence available from Area Managers, 

Community Development Teams and feedback from Local Committees. The 6 

Library and Customer Managers proactively engage with the local teams to 

understand local need and priorities; so that the library offer can be tailored 

accordingly. 

• Proactive engagement with partners to understand customer need and 

demand – for example DWP, the federation of small businesses and chamber 

of commerce, local voluntary and community groups. 

• Engagement with target groups to understand their requirements – this has 

worked well with young people, some of the autism groups in the county, 

refugees and asylum seekers. 

• Use of evaluation forms after events to understand impact as well as gather 

information about numbers of attendees. 

• Social media – we have been reviewing our approach to use of social media 

and considering how we can use it as a two way tool, not just for information 

sharing and marketing. Posing questions on there has resulted in us getting 

some feedback about services. 

• Analysis of customer emails/ queries – as part of a review to streamline 

communication routes and support consistency of response, the service 

analysed the types of queries and emails coming into the service. This 

provided the team with a better understanding of frequently asked questions 

which could be dealt with online to provide a faster response to customers.  

• Covid recovery survey – once libraries were able to re-open following the first 

closures at the start of the pandemic an online survey was conducted with 

customers to understand any concerns they would have about returning to 

libraries and the sort of service they would be looking for in the future. This 

information helped inform the approach to re-opening and helped the 

service’s understanding of what was important to customers to support their 

confidence to return. 

 

4.0 Project specific engagement and consultation 

 

4.1 The service is taking forward several capital projects aimed at redesigning 

and improving the space in some key locations. Barrow library was the first of 

these and the service sought to ensure customers informed the final design. 

The approach taken was to use apprentices to observe customer and staff 

interaction to understand how customers were being served on the library 

floor. The views of local residents about the library were gathered through 

informal interviews at a local supermarket. Engagement sessions took place 

with schools in the local area to get views on how young people wanted to 

use the library and the type of space they would like to see. Once designs 

were developed these were displayed online and also in the library – with 

134



questions posed to take views on the proposed designs. Views from carers for 

those with autism were also sought to inform the autism room in the library. 

 

4.2 A similar approach was adopted to support Kendal library refurbishment; and  

the work to redesign Carlisle library has now started with early learner, user 

and public engagement sessions taking place in September. 

 

4.3 The input of our frontline team members is also critical to ensuring the needs 

of customers are taken into consideration. They have considerable insight 

about how customers use the space and which events are successful and 

make a difference to people. Staff engagement is built into the design 

development process to ensure they can make this contribution. 

 

5.0  Using the information to inform service delivery and our practice 

 

5.1 As part of the restructure, additional capacity was introduced to ensure the 

business systems could be better interrogated so the management and 

customer information held in the system can be put to more use. Management 

information is now being used on a more routine basis to inform decision 

making and service delivery. 

 

5.2 The service has started analysing the digital customer interactions we have, 

which is also leading to improvements being made – for example the 

introduction of an online booking system for events and activities, FAQs and 

query functions on the website to support customers get the answers they are 

looking for quickly and without making a call or email to the service. 

 

5.3 Frontline staff are encouraged to share their feedback through regular 

sessions in the local areas and with the senior managers in the service so that 

changes can be made at all levels throughout the service. 

 

6.0  Areas for development and next steps 

 

6.1 The service is always seeking to ensure as many people as possible can 

make use of the resources and activities on offer online and onsite. Many 

people are not aware of the library service offer and therefore concerted 

efforts will be made to look at how we can market and promote our offer with 

existing and potential new customers. 

 

6.2 Workshops to explore our approach to marketing have been facilitated by the 

communications team and this work will inform promotional activity. 

 

6.3 Work will also continue to ensure we make the best use of the information in 

the business system to inform stock selection and purchasing – along with the 

135



involvement of frontline staff in sharing their customer insights about book 

preferences and trends with the stock management specialists. 

 

6.4 And finally, the service will continue to seek to embed a customer focused 

culture at all levels. Putting the customer at the heart of the work of the 

service is a message which is revisited in all staff engagement sessions, with 

teams encouraged to share their practice and successes with each other. 

 

Helen Blake,  
Senior Manager Customer, Policy and Scrutiny 
August 2022 

 

 

136


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	7 Review of Scrutiny Work and Achievements
	Appendix 1 SMB 08 09 22 Scrutiny Review report

	8 SCRUTINY CHAIRS UPDATE
	Appendix 1 SMB 08 09 22 - Scrutiny Chairs Update
	Appendix 3 SMB 08 09 22 - Scrutiny Chairs Update
	Appendix 4 SMB 08 09 22 - Scrutiny Chairs Update
	Appendix 5 SMB 08 09 22 - Scrutiny Chairs Update
	Appendix 6 SMB 08 09 22 - Scrutiny Chairs Update
	Appendix 7 SMB 08 09 22 - Scrutiny Chairs Update

	9 SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD UPDATE REPORT AND WORK PROGRAMME
	Appendix 1 SMB 08 09 22 - SMB Board Update and Work Programme
	Appendix 2 SMB 08 09 22 - SMB Board Update and Work Programme
	FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
	when these decisions will be made
	who will make the decision
	to whom representations can be made and how
	what arrangements are proposed to consult the public and stakeholders about the decisions
	what documents relating to those decisions will be available and when


	Appendix 3 SMB 08 09 22 - SMB Board Update and Work Programme


